(LRI

YiChang HEC ChangdJiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
HERBARIZEXROBRAF

BRX3% Stock Code : 1558

(A joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)

(TEFEANRHFIEFMA L 2R BERLE])

Ouwr Mission: For EV;&Q#&VZ/&)J f'[m%/
A o 120m — 5 G A o (221 -




Corporate Structure
Financial Summary
Corporate Profile
History of Development
Chairman’s Statement
Highlights of the Year

Management Discussion and Analysis

Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Report of the Directors
Report of the Board of Supervisors
Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

Definitions

Corporate Information

EERE
HHRE
NERET
BRER
EERBEE
FRAERL
BEE MMM

BE RERSMREBABBN

EREWRE

EEEWmE

GANBRAE
GARREDE

TeHERER

el

AR R M ot
Bx
NG

44

57

84

88

107

6

17

[19

120

122

195

198



CORPORATE STRUCTURE
I RRE

As at the Latest Practical Date, the Structure of the Group is as follows:
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A
2 R
i = = g
- g GRS 2®| o
SEgE 2 mgé =
j_-,-.J'@ 5:9& S —,
Z- gaE o
"co-ﬂg S KK ;E
=S¥ ESx 2
Oz O =) .
2 i SRR LE 3
sSR! | x| BED e $
€38 | 8| T éx|R °wE
S B S| E 8 S GRS
e A =} N'—""ﬂé B oN
S E|] 7| E w SB
& ER
g4
< o=
=
= 3k
> gb%ik
<
5 "l
3w EES
EZ24 £
b N O
2Ex
£ [OF:3
0
bzﬂr T Ol
Egm %
258 E
@) Q
:‘Sgﬁ* : =
o 5 | 4
. S S
BER|S Y
= e o=
£z |7 | 3E
s S o
Z S
O
E —
-
<3 Eﬁ
s U | &
I 2E| z
= T P
= B Judig et
52wy i
:'—lg‘%
o o3
=
S SEm
_,m§f<_
T XK
§g~+lﬂ<+@
Q - <
£1825 |3
S :81{\}{ v
gla7& |
o)
? &
s
Egx
S
o =5
e
S8 Oz
o -
HER
B
NECENE
QT EE |2
) F
gls B |
S HE
3 #

On 10 February 2017, the Company has completed the issuance of 1,200,000 new Domestic
Shares to HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd, details of which are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 February 2017. Following the completion of the issuance, HEC Pharm Co., Ltd. holds
50.04% of the total issued share capital of the Company.

On 10 January 2017, the Company and TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co. (Beijing), Ltd. jointly
established the Dongguan HEC TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co,, Ltd, in which the Company holds
51% of the registered capital.
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Set out below is the financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2016 (“the year”

or “the reporting period"):

Revenue of the Group in 2016 increased by 35.88% from RMB692.91 million to
RMB941.50 million.

Profit attributable to the owner of the Company in 2016 increased by 43.22% to RMB
380.60 million.

Basic earnings per share in 2016 increased by 6.33% from RMB0.79 in 2015 to RMB0.84.

The Board proposed to pay a final cash dividend of RMBO.3 per share, subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming 2016 AGM of the Company.
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2013 2014 2015 2016

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTL ARETT ARBTLT AR®TR

Operating result RExE
Revenue Yoz 269,207 316,429 440,904 692910 941,504
Gross profit e 153,483 200461 321,075 514,576 727,270
Profit from operation e E R 77,589 119,124 205,445 339,605 460,299
Profit before taxation BR AT A 30,692 70,180 163,115 314,706 453,066
Profit and total AARERHEBABLEEE

comprehensive income for M RFEEZERARE

the year attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company 23,008 57,800 135,343 265,750 380,597
Profit margin gy B
Gross profit margin ESp 5701% 63.35% 72.82% 74.26% 77.25%
Net profit margin AR = 8.55% 18.27% 30.70% 38.35% 40.42%
Earnings per share BRER
Basic & Diluted (RMB) ERREE(ARY - T) N/A N/A 045 0.79 0.84
Assets condition BEEMRR
Total assets BEE 1,490,787 1,658,116 949,531 2577415 2,831,109
Equity attributable to equity ARrE=EA AEGER

shareholders of the Company 421,121 478921 277255 2142849 2,457,807
Total liabilities waf 1,069,666 1,179,195 672276 434566 373,302
Cash and Cash Equivalents RekReFEER 31,236 32367 86,554 1,353,651 1,212,072
Quick ratio (times) RE X (1F) 08 08 06 6.1 6.3
Current ratio (times) MENLLE (%) Il N N 6.7 6.7




CORPORATE PROFILE
AEEN

The Company (also referred to as "HEC Pharm” in the Annual Report) is a
pharmaceutical manufacturing company that focuses on the development, manufacturing
and sale of pharmaceutical products in the therapeutic areas of anti-virus, endocrine
diseases, cardiovascular and antineoplastic diseases. We are the domestic pharmaceutical

manufacturing platform of the HEC Group.

The Company entered into China's pharmaceutical industry through the establishment of
our predecessor, Yichang Changjiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd, in 2001. Up to now, we
have been operating for more than 16 years, and are becoming one of the top players in
the domestic pharmaceutical industry in terms of pharmaceutical sales performance and

R&D capability.

The Company was converted into a joint stock limited company on | May 2015, and
was listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 29 December 2015,
with the stock code 01558 HK.

Since its establishment, the Company has always followed the motto of “serving the
Chinese with higher standards”. Meanwhile, we have a strong industrial foundation and
leading competitive edges in the manufacturing, marketing and sales of pharmaceutical
products. As of 31 December 2016, the Company has manufactured, promoted and sold
a total of 33 pharmaceutical products with a product distribution network throughout
the country. We are currently the only manufacturer of oseltamivir phosphate granules
in the China market, while our key product Kewei (oseltamivir phosphate) has been the
leading product in China's anti-influenza market. During the years from 2013 to 2016, the

Company's oseltamivir phosphate product ranked first in China in terms of sales volume.

In addition, the Company has set up strategic relationships with many renowned domestic
and international pharmaceutical enterprises. We entered into a strategic agreement with
Lannett Company, Inc. (LCLNY) for the joint development of insulin generic drugs to enter
the USA market; we also established a joint venture with TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals
Holdings Limited (“TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals”) (4157.TWO) to conduct clinical trials
of combination therapy with Yimitasvir Phosphate and Furaprevir; we reached a strategic
cooperative partnership with China National Accord Medicines Corporation Ltd. (“China
National Accord Medicines™) (000028.52) with the first operation project duly launched in
the year. We believe these powerful partnerships will bring huge development prospects

for the Company's business growth.
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In the future, the Company will remain committed to the implementation of
professionalism, branding and differentiation development strategy. We are committed
to the establishment of a professional marketing team, a steady and innovative operation
and a strategic integration of resources, in order to create brand characteristics and core
competitiveness unique to “Pharm HEC" in the industry and create the greatest value for

our customers and partners.

In the future, we will further develop and expand our product lines and markets, enhance
the international production standards and quality of the products and continue to expand
the coverage of marketing and sales to facilitate the further growth of our business and

profitability, and strive for more economic benefits and cost-effectiveness for our investors.
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HISTORY OF DEVELOPMENT
HRERR

Establishment of the Company
AR B

2001

Obtained permission to produce
oseltamivir phosphate in the PRC
AR S ] Al 2 e
A ERFR]

Entered into the pediatric
pharmaceutical market

HEH SR R AT

Oseltamivir phosphate was selected
into Central Medical Reserve
WM B F] b 251
N L B it

HE b,

Kewei product took the largest
market share for products
of the same category
AT B A
RIS i 117355
ICONix |

Completed its
reorganization and
listed successfully

SERE AL
) i

Reached a historical high
turnover of RMB942 million
in the first year since listing
LiigE A HEE
SRR 9400
JC > AR SR R

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. BEEXRBXRIZXRHERAT



On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2016 and the future prospects for 2017.

REVIEW OF 2016

Looking back, 2016 was the first year since the listing for HEC Pharm, and was also a year
of substantial reformation for the policies and systems of the PRC pharmaceutical market.
Going forward, the pharmaceutical industry has entered into the stage of development

with the deepening of the reformation of the PRC pharmaceutical market.

Through the listing of its H Shares, HEC Pharm has established a complete corporate
governance system. Under the leadership of the Board, the management strived to eam
reputation and win the competition in the market by increasing its efforts in compliance
management, system establishment and internal governance, and adhering to our
operation philosophy of producing drugs of high quality that reach international standards

in the daily management.

Under such high standards and stringent requirements, the Company has achieved
historical breakthrough in operation result in 2016 despite the challenges and difficulties in
the market. Our revenue amounted to RMB941.50 million and the net profit amounted to
RMB380.60 million, representing a significant increase as compared to the last year, with a
CAGR of 46.13% for the revenue from 2014 to 201 6.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEREEE

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Amidst the volatile PRC pharmaceutical market, the Company will continue to focus on
enhancing the quality and cost-effectiveness of the products in 2017 to make further
progress. We will further strengthen the market leading position of existing products on
the original basis, and increase our market share further through first-mover advantages of
our key products. We will increase our marketing and promoting efforts, develop other
marketing modes and channels, and strive to maintain our strong growth momentum.
Meanwhile, we are committed to continuously expanding products lines of the Group
in areas of anti-virus, endocrine and metabolic and digestive diseases to enrich the our

product reserve.

We believe that only through innovation and pursuit of quality, as well as continually
pursuing high level development of the Company in the future, will we be able to create
stable and excellent value for our customers. “The road ahead will be long and our climb

will be steep”.

TANG Xinfa

Chairman

20 March 2017
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FERSER

HEC Pharm and TaiGen Biotechnology Holdings Limited (KSEMBERHBEMRADF) (“TaiGen”) reached an
agreement on intention of cooperation in respect of the development of a novel treatment for chronic Hepatitis
C virus (HCV) and achieved strategic cooperation intention to jointly conduct clinical development with the two
National Class |.| innovative anti-Hepatitis C virus drugs held by both parties to form an all-oral interferon-free
combo treatment for Hepatitis C.
RERBEXSEVREENBERABA(TAR DA AREEALTRARERLBEENAERRGHE @ 513
REFMBSENMERR | BRAREFRARSHERSETRAZRR  ARX2ORETEARAFNENA
AEKBHEAERR

HEC Pharm and Lannett Company, Inc. (“Lannett”) reached strategic cooperation intention

REXEEZE Lannet AR ERBRSEZR

HEC Pharm and Lannett (LCl: NYSE) reached strategic cooperation intention for the joint development of insulin
generic products. At that time, HEC Pharm’s insulin generic products were at the later research and development
stage, Lannett would be responsible for the subsequent clinical trials and regulatory registration to ensure compliance
with US Food and Drug Administration requirements for sale in the market.

R EEZE Lannett AR (LCI: AIZFT) ERK T KRR RREZRH REEROBRAESR - K6 - REX
ENRESEMHREDERNMHBENERER - X8 Lannett ARIBABRENRRS D LOER T MR AR
REGXERREREERN EHER -

The donation ceremony was held successfully

BREXRRET

On the morning of |3 June, 2016, the donation ceremony of HEC Pharm was successfully held in the conference room
of Yidu Government building. Luo Lianfeng, party secretary of Yidu, Hu Zhili, mayor of Yidu, Wang Changjing, chairman
of the standing committee of the Municipal People's Congress of Yidu, Song Huali, chairman of the Municipal Political
Consultative Conference of Yidu, and other relevant leaders were present at the ceremony.

WI6F6ABALT  REXEREEAEENIBRNAAEEAERNET - ERNRECEMRE - MRATH -
MARFREIEIRE  TRBEIRRCHFHEREHETREES -

In the donation ceremony, Yidu HEC Pharm donated RMB2 million to Yidu Government to support the development
of education and medical care in Yidu. In the past 10 years, Yidu HEC Pharm has contributed an aggregate amount of
more than RMB3 | million to support local construction and various donations of more than RMB8 million in total, such
as for Wenchuan earthquake, point-to-point help of middle school students and charity foundations.

BREEAL RELEANEHTHAREARK00EL UXHERUSRBESEELR - B 0105
¥ BEBRGAFENTERESHFAREI0BET  SERFOYIIHE  BHEEHRDEL  BOA
TEFRMARKB00HET °
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEKRER

August
8 A7

Obtained CFDA Approval for Clinical Trial was obtained for our Insulin Products

REZRSERBAR CFDARKARM I+

In August 2016, HEC Pharm obtained China Food and Drug Administration (“CFDA") approval for clinical trials for
Isophane Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injection, Isophane Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injection
(Pre-mixed 30R) and Insulin Glargine Injection. By then, HEC Pharm had received four approvals of the clinical trials for
biologics for the treatment of diabetes.

WI658 7 REXEREAEAARER ISR KEAEAARSZIFTRARR) - HRERER ISR
ESERRREREEEEER(CFDAD BRARILIT - 2t - KRG EDWENELSRE KB LM E RO H
AL

On 28 August, 2016, Mr. Zhang Yushuai, the executive vice general manager of the sales company of the HEC Group,
and Mr. Lin Zhaoxiong, general manager of China National Accord Medicines, signed a strategic cooperation agreement
in Dongyangguang Scientific Park, Dongguan. The senior leaders of both parties reached a number of important
consensuses in respect of such strategic cooperation and agreed that it would be conducive to strengthening the
competitive advantages in the pharmaceutical industry, enhancing the business performance, as well as the promotion
of corporate images and brand value for both parties.

016F8 A28 REAKEHREARFHAQEERBMTE BEE - REEMKELEERZTRE R
EARRZEEAERE  EHREREHARBRAEATERSREELE T BRA LBELHENR
BRRHAEBETRNBRFEY  BARLES  08ENRETEEFRNmEBENR -

Mr. Chen Yangui, executive Director and sales director of HEC Pharm, entered into the National Ertongshu
(benzbromarone tablets) Exclusive Distribution Right Agreement as the first operational project under mutual strategic
cooperation on behalf of the Company, with Mr. Lin Min, general manager of Sinopharm Holding Guangzhou Co., Ltd,
the distribution division of China National Accord Medicines.

REAEXNTES  HEAERAEALRROAEBE - SN HEXRTEEZRENERDAGEERG L
HARZTARS (RRFR5E) 2HAKHEGS  FRENBBANERELER -
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FERSER

Signing ceremony of establishment of the Joint Venture between HEC Pharm and TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals in

Xiamen

REXERASBREEMAKITHEEDANENES

On November 7, 2016, HEC Pharm and TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals successfully held the signing ceremony for
establishment of the joint venture at the 2016 annual Cross-Strait Entrepreneurs Summit held in Xiamen. The Company
would establish a joint venture with TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co. (Beijing), Ltd. in Dongguan. The joint venture is
engaged in drug combination clinical trials of Yimitasvir Phosphate and Furaprevir, which is expected to be the first
domestic all-oral anti- Hepatitis C drugs to be launched locally in China, bringing good news to 40 million Hepatitis C

patients in China.

201611 A78 %%t@ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁrﬁE%Mmmﬁ;ﬁ% EeFe | KBTI TEERAINRY
B RABEASBE(IRMBER AR ERETARRIAE AR AEARBHERMB KM ZE SRR
%a%%é%%%ﬁaﬁ'ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬂ&¢lmmimmﬁ§ O BRI AT 24 - AR B 4000 & A TR &

it
BREE -

The signing ceremony was highly regarded by the Organizing Committee of the Cross-Strait Entrepreneurs Summit.
Vice chairman Chiang Pin-Kung, vice chairman Sheng Huaren, convenor Zhan Qixian, convenor Huang Jiefu, president
Chen Deming, president Yu Mingde attended the signing ceremony. Mr. Tang Xinfa, chairman of HEC Pharm and Ms.
Xu Mingzhu, chairman of TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals signed the agreement.

FOBEARITMRELCRXRESEZENREER  ITAHEIESER RECAEER EHEBEASEA BEX
AEA BRESER NARERFLFETEVES  RELEESERENELLEARBEEERTRRLL
TR T BA

Awarded as the “Listed Enterprises of the Year 2016”
SEI2016 ETEEARE]

On 17 November, 2016, the “Award Ceremony of Listed Enterprises of the Year 2016" was held at the Conrad Hotel
in Admiralty, Hong Kong. HEC Pharm was awarded “Listed Enterprises of the Year”" and, Mr. Tang Xinfa, chairman of
the Company, accepted the award at the stage on behalf of the Company.

WI6FITAITA 016 FFEREMEXBRAR NERCEEBEERERN RGN ERE LTEEX
B ARRAEEREFERERRATLAEE -
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEKRER

At the award ceremony, Mr. Tang Xinfa, chairman of the Company, delivered an acceptance speech on behalf of the
Company. He pointed out that the Company has made great progress in both sales and pharmaceutical R&D since its
listing on December 29, 2015. Under the current overall market downturn, the Company's outstanding performance
in operating results and share price is the result of the support from a vast of investors and the public. Such Company
will continue to maintain its determination to be the world's leading pharmaceutical company. Such award not only
represents recognition for the Company's outstanding performance by the industry and investors, but also expresses
their confidence in the Company's future development.

RRARD  ARREFRENELERRARFABRERYE - tHELARFBW0I5F12A9BLHESE
—FRE ERREHEREERERMERHINEG T RENES - HENERTHEXNERT - ARAE
FEARBRETENRERARTRAEAREEREANIS  ARABEERFBDTKARRALEELED
R e fERER - MERRRTRFURRBELEARABARENET  RETETHRARRARRRITFHE
REVED

Our products awarded as “2016 Outstanding Product Board of China Chairman Pharmaceutical Industry” and “2016

Outstanding Product Board of Pediatric Drugs of China Pharmaceutical Industry”

mREN06PEICERETEBEERGME (2016 AN BRETEXRERNEBTERRE IRE

On 15 November, 2016, the 2016 Annual Summit of China Chemical pharmaceutical industry” jointly organized by
the China Pharmaceutical Industry Association, China Association of Pharmaceutical Commerce, China Nonprescription
Medicines Association, China Pharmaceutical Enterprises Development Promote Association and Reed Sinopharm
Exhibitions Co. Ltd, was successfully held in Wuhan, Hubei. Oseltamivir phosphate granules (Kewei) produced by the
Company was awarded “2016 Outstanding Product Brand of China Chemical Pharmaceutical Industry”.
WI6FIAISE ATFBRCERETRRE  TRBEFXHE  TEFRTENHE  TEBELXBRR
£e BEBRREARACLAARIRN206PEBRETEFRES ERINERNEN - ARFE
ENBBRR A M2 () KB 2016 P BRETEBFEmmE RERER -

Kewei was also awarded the “2016 Outstanding Product Brand of Pediatric Drugs of China Chemical Pharmaceutical

Industry”, further consolidating Kewei's leadership in pediatric drugs.
WRKREN016TPELBRETEXZERERFERRIE ] E—SERTHERERENBGMA -
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FERSER

Class I.I innovative drug Yimitasvir Phosphate obtained approvals for Phase Il and Phase Il clinical trials

|| EEF TR B AOK A 22 1/ B ER AR Bt 4

In December 2016, Class |.| innovative drug Yimitasvir Phosphate, developed by HEC Pharm and innovative drug
R&D team under its controlling shareholder, HEC Group, obtained approvals from CFDA for Phase Il and Phase |l
clinical trials, which indicates that the Company has taken a historic step forward in the process of promotion of such
innovative drug product.

WeF 128 REABEZRRRRGLEERTHEREBEG A EREN | BAIRERRKRALECES
CFDATRE M NI R AR - ERTREARRHNEELBHENERER X AMEL TELEN—F -

Yimitasvir Phosphate is a hepatitis C virus NSSA protease inhibitor. This type of inhibitor has several advantages such
as strong inhibition of HCV genotype, strong inhibitory effect, no cross-resistance when combined with other DAA,
well tolerance and mostly support oral administration once a day, whose prospects are very optimistic. In the future,
the Company plans to combine this new drug with Furaprevir, a hepatitis C NS3/4A protease inhibitor developed by
TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals, to develop a new type of all-oral interferon-free combo therapy for Hepatitis C.
BREKMER-BRFHESNSARRMHIA - ZBRAHHAFMHHCV ERRERE - MHIERR - BEM
DAABSFITEAER NS « MXUFURASZZH—B I XORAESEY AR THLH - RRARAFEH
FATBERARBERTEN AT NSI/4AZRB B HI B RAIRE (Furaprevin) &4 AELH U2 ORETERER
FrapiEk -

Presently, there are a relatively small number of companies carrying out R&D of hepatitis C DAA drug in China. The
drug has now obtained approval for phrase II/lll clinical trials, and is leading over most of its domestic peers in the R&D
progress, which lays a solid foundation for the Company's future in hepatitis C treatment.

BAl - BAETRFDAARYIERN R BHERD - ZEMRCIEHRA NS  EREER LEXRAK
SHRE  EBVARRARTREATERIANMRETRELAR -
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEKRER

Awarded the “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical Stock Company” award

KERAEEBRRARIRE

The Company was awarded the “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical Stock Company” in the “2016 Golden HK Stock”
sponsored by Zhitongcaijing, jointly organized by the mainstream domestic financial media such as finance.qg.com and
Hexun.com and supported by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
AREEMERUELH BAMERNABEEAT RMEHKEBHA TN B RRXAERIHEMR
016l 2R IFEEDT  KEIRABEBRERLR R -

Awarded the “Best Investment Value Award”

KERAREEERIRR

The Company was awarded the “Best Investment Value Award" in the 2016 China Financial Market Listed Company

Awards.

ARBE06PERE LT ARARFRE REREBER] -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The pharmaceutical industry is not only an important industry concerning national
economy and people’s livelihood, but also a key area of the “Made in China 2025"
and the strategic emerging industries, which is strongly supported by national
policies of the PRC. The pharmaceutical industry developed rapidly during the
“12th Five-year Plan" period. According to the statistics of the Guidelines for
BETX%
[RIFEIFER ) ), the average annual growth rate of added value in large-scale

the Development and Planning of the Pharmaceutical Industry ( &

pharmaceutical industry was 13.4% during the “12th Five-year Plan” period,
representing an increase in the proportion to the added value of the industries in
China from 2.3% to 3.0%.

During the past year of 2016, the pharmaceutical industry experienced a painful
transformation as well as the joy of harvest. The publish of a series of policies had
a deep effect on the development of the pharmaceutical industry, which mainly
included: reinforcing the review and approval requirements for the launching of
new drugs in the stage of registration; emphasizing the enhancement of the quality
and therapeutic effect of innovative drugs and accelerating the implementation of
consistency evaluation on the quality and therapeutic effect of launched generic
drugs in the stage of production; focusing on regulating the distribution order,
reforming and improving the distribution system of drugs and reducing the falsely
high prices of drugs in the stage of distribution; reforming and adjusting the interest-
driven mechanism, facilitating the return of drugs to the original use of curing
disease, promoting reasonable drug usage and further eliminating the mechanism of

subsidizing medical costs with drugs in the stage of usage.

BEEBENWR DN

TEBERE
BEMEETERBABIRANEE
EXE - (P BIEE2025) M BB 14 3
BEXNSHEE  XIPEERHE
MANEH BETEE+ -1 |5
ﬂﬁﬁﬁvmwgﬁliﬁﬁﬁ%%
BORSE - [+2R 88 KRB
%%MEEW%ELM%'E¢EI%%
MEMLER23%REZE3.0% °

BEMWICFHBETERFMAEL
MERLARENER A — %7
ﬁﬁm%%ﬁ SETEBERELTRE
WEE TEERE: AXMRE KB

MELED % o HEEERE EE
RBAFNBELEERY MREED LD

TREZENEN—HMUTE : AR
fg/ﬁﬁ BERBBERBRT  RETER
nﬂ' FEEMESER: ERAR
CRERBANRBEHAG EEmA
ﬁﬁr$f’ﬁﬁA@ﬁﬁ'ﬁ—ﬁﬁ
FROAZE R B I

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmED M

Efficiently implementing the priority evaluation system, focusing on high-quality

innovation and highlighting on clinical value

On 26 February 2016, the CFDA issued the Opinions Concerning the
Implementation of Priority Evaluation to Resolve the Backlog of Applications for
Drug Registration ( (AR BAEMEMBEEFRERETELETERNE
) ), which expressly states that the priority evaluation system shall be an organic
integral part of the supply-side reform for the pharmaceutical industry in China. The
implementation of drug evaluation reform provided a positive policy environment
to change the current supply condition, backlog of applications for registration and
oversupply of low level and repeated capacities, in the pharmaceutical industry of
China at the source. The priority evaluation system led the industry to innovation,
focusing on innovative drugs with higher clinical value and generic drugs of former
patent drugs with larger sales and better competitive landscape. In the short
run, the review process for drugs included in priority evaluation will be greatly
shortened, which will create an invisible market advantage for post-marketing
promotions. In the long run, the priority evaluation system will guide and encourage
enterprises to pursue innovations, promote the change of emphasis from speed to

quality and realize a positive cycle for industrial development.
Enhancing quality of generic drugs by consistency evaluation of drugs

On 31 May 2016, CFDA published two relevant policies regarding the consistency
evaluation of drugs: Guidelines on Certified Service for Good Laboratory Practice
(GLP) ( (EYIFERRAMAEE ETERARZRBIEE) ) and Guidelines on
Qualification Recognition Service for Drug Clinical Trial Institution ( ¥R RE
BB ERREMRBIER) ), which resolved the critical point of implementing

the consistency evaluation of drugs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to further promote the consistency evaluation, corresponding incentive
policies were also launched successively by the government. In March 2016, the
Office of the State Council issued the Opinions of the Office of the State Council
on the Commencement of Consistency Evaluation on the Quality and Therapeutic
Effect of Generic Drugs ( (Bt AEENRE M REE SNREY—H
MEHERER) ) and pointed out that generic drugs produced by domestic
pharmaceutical enterprises which had obtained approvals for launching in the
markets of European Union, United States and Japan could make an application for
market launch under the new registration category of the chemical drugs based on
the relevant information submitted under the overseas registration. Having obtained
approval for launching by CFDA, such drugs would be deemed to have passed the
consistency evaluation. Drugs produced by the same production line and launched
in the PRC, which have obtained approval for market launch in the European
Union, United States and Japan are also deemed to have passed the consistency

evaluation.

Looking ahead in the future, with the continuous median to high growth rate
of the PRC economy, it is expected the pharmaceutical market will maintain
relatively rapid growth under the driving factors such as the continuous increase
in the disposable income of residents, the ongoing upgrading in the consumption
structure, the steady progress in building a healthy China, further improvement in
the medical reimbursement system, the severity in the aging trend of population,
the continuous increase in the morbidity rate of some diseases and the full

implementation of the two-children policy.

The Research and Consulting Report on Investment Strategy for the Pharmaceutical
Industry in China for 2016-2020 ( €2016-2020%F 7 Bl 8 517 % 15 & B BE AF 5T
FHIRE) ) published by ASKCI Corporation (P EIE#FEPT) pointed out
that during the "13th Five-year Plan” period, the pharmaceutical industry in China
will continue to develop rapidly and the market size will reach RMBI,791.9 billion
by 2020, with a CAGR of 8% from 2015 to 2020. The transformation of the
pharmaceutical sector from large to strong will speed up in such period and the
pharmaceutical industry of China will completed its upgrading through encouraging
innovations, accelerating the internationalization process of pharmaceutical

enterprises and improving the quality of drugs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmED M

BUSINESS REVIEW

. H¥KEE

l. Summary of Overall Results -

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB941.50 million for the year ended

31 December 2016, representing an increase of 35.88% as compared to

2015. Net profit after tax amounted to RMB380.60 million, representing an

increase of 43.22% as compared to 2015. In terms of the product portfolio,

Kewei, Ertongshu, Oumeining, Xinhaining and Xining were still the top five

core products of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Products, Research and Development

On 30 December 2016, Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd.
(FYITERIG R EEEREBMRAR]) (“Shenzhen HEC Industrial) entered
into a renewed licensing agreement with Oseltamivir Phosphate Licensor,
pursuant to which the royalty rate was agreed to reduce by approximately
10% and the licensing shall be effective until the date when the last patent
of the licensed patents expires or is declared invalid or unenforceable.
Shenzhen HEC Industrial agreed to irrevocably license its interest under the
licensing agreement entered into with Oseltamivir Phosphate Licensor at
nil consideration to the Company, together with an undertaking made by
Shenzhen HEC Industrial that, unless with prior consent from the Company,
its interest under the licensing agreement shall cease to be licensed to any
other companies, including Sunshine Lake Pharma Co., Ltd. ( FEHR 5 1 2%
Z B2 7)) (“Sunshine Lake Pharma”).

In addition, the Group made certain achievements in the research and

development of anti-virus therapeutic and endocrine areas during 201 6.

I. Anti-virus therapeutic area

In February 2016, the Group and TaiGen Biotechnology Holdings
Limited (KREDRHERRM BRAF]) (“TaiGen”) reached an
agreement on intention of cooperation in respect of the development
of a novel treatment for chronic Hepatitis C virus (HCV), and the
cooperation was formally commenced on 10 January 2017 through
the establishment of Dongguan HEC TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co,,
Ld. (RERG X AR BEMEAREELF) (the “JV company”)
to jointly conduct clinical development with the two National Class .|
innovative anti-Hepatitis C drugs held by both parties to form an all-

oral interferon-free combo treatment for Hepatitis C.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In this cooperation, the product from our Group was NS5A inhibitor
Yimitasvir Phosphate, a National Class |.| innovative drug, which had
completed Phase | clinical trial and obtained approvals from the CFDA
for Phase Il and Phase Ill clinical trials in December 2016. The product
from TaiGen was Furaprevir, an NS3/4A protease inhibitor, which
had completed Phase Il clinical trial in Taiwan successfully in February
2017. The JV company would strive to promote the clinical research
of combining Yimitasvir Phosphate and Furaprevir in China with a
view to launch a novel all-oral interferon-free direct anti-viral agents
(DAAs) combo. Since the DAA combo did not require the use of
interferon, and the treatment period would be notably shorter than
that under the standard of care by using Ribavirin with interferon, the
compliance and tolerance of the patients for such treatment would be
improved, which is also the standard treatment regimens commonly

used intemationally.

Moreover, since such research and development was positioned at the
Hepatitis C treatment area where new drugs were extremely needed,
both Yimitasvir Phosphate of the Group and Furaprevir of TaiGen
were selected in the priority evaluation list of the Centre of Drug
Evaluation (“CDE") under CFDA in 2016, which would be helpful for

the above products to obtain the CFDA approvals as soon as possible.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Area of endocrine and metabolic diseases

In the area of endocrine and metabolic diseases, the Group focused
on developing portfolio of insulin products for the treatment of
diabetes. As at 31 December 2016, the Recombinant Human Insulin
Injection of the Group, a second generation insulin product, was
under clinic trials, and other second generation insulin products,
such as Isophane Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injection
and Isophane Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injection (Pre-
mixed 30R), and Insulin Glargine Injection, a third generation insulin
product, had already obtained clinical trial approvals in August 2016.
The clinical trials for such products are being conducted as planned
currently. Insulin Aspart Injection and Insulin Aspart 30 Injection, both
belonging to the third generation insulin products, are currently in the

stage of clinical trial application.

The Group strives to provide diabetic patients in China with high
quality and affordable drugs of genuine biologics. As the Group
follows the latest research and development guidelines on biosimilar
drugs adopted in Europe and United States, and adopts the
development strategy of making strict comparison with the biologics,
all insulin products of the Group are highly similar to the biologics in

terms of quality, purity and stability.

By leveraging on the high standard of research and development and
the excellent product quality, the Group and Lannett (NYSE: LCI)
reached an agreement in April 2016 on the intention of strategic
cooperation for the joint development of insulin glargine biologics.
The two parties will jointly apply for registration of the insulin

biosimilar drugs of the Group in the US market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Strong product reserve

In 2015, the Group entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
with Shenzhen HEC Industrial, our controlling shareholder, pursuant
to which the Group is entitled to the pre-emptive right of purchasing
products developed by the HEC Research Group (including Yichang
HEC Research Co., Ltd. (E &R R EHEBR DA, Linzhi
HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Co,, Ltd. (N RGBT E
BPR7AE]) and their respective subsidiaries, being the subsidiaries
of Shenzhen HEC Industrial). Yimitasvir Phosphate and the following
DAAs are the first batch of excellent products introduced to the
Group through the agreement. By relying on the strategic cooperation
with the controlling shareholder, the Group will obtain an abundant
supply of competitive products, advanced technological support and a

strong patent reserve in the future.

Intellectual property rights
(1) Trademarks

On 12 June 2016, the Parent Company and the Group signed
three trademark transfer contracts, whereby the Parent
Company transferred the following three main authorized
trademarks to the Group with nil consideration. Currently, the
transfer of the trademarks is still under relevant registration

progress.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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No. Transferor Transferee Registered trademark
FFof HEBA XEA EMmER

| Parent Company the Company ‘? FE 5‘&
SN AR s
2 Parent Company the Company m m ﬁ

27 ARF

3 Parent Company the Company @
SN ARF —

Patents

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of the
intellectual property and encourages the application for new
patents in order to improve the core competitiveness of the
Group. In 2016, the Group had five newly granted patents
including three invention patents and two utility model patents,

as well as one patent under application process.

Registration
number/ International
Application classification
number number
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Ill.  SALES PERFORMANCE REVIEW M.

The subsectors participated by the Group mainly include the areas of the anti-
viral drug, metabolic and endocrine drug and cardiovascular drug. According to the
development stage of the relevant disease spectrum in China, the development

trend of the relevant subsectors is optimistic.

Looking back into 2016, Kewei (granules and capsules), the core product of
the Group, still maintained a strong growth trend. Revenue from sales of Kewei
recorded for the year of 2016 amounted to RMB736.27 million, increased by
62.24% as compared to 2015,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the reporting period, the Group further improved its national sales network,
especially reinforced the academic promotional efforts for pharmaceuticals in
provinces including Guangdong, Anhui, Hubei and Zhejiang, organized a number
of national and provincial level large-scale academic seminars, including the First
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Respiratory Forum and the Launching Ceremony
of Guangdong Influenza Standardized Diagnosis and Treatment Academic Direct
Through Train (F—EEB R KB ERRBME 2 REMEBER
#)E), Tenth Hospital Pharmacy Academic Conference in Central and Southern
Regions (PRI 5 1[5 BT B2 2 21f7) and Annual National Pediatrics
Conference (EBISZRHFE®), and further established extensive relationship
with major medical institutions and relevant academic institutions to lay a solid

foundation for academic promotions, enhancing product and brand awareness.

In respect of the sales team development, we had a total of 404 employees
engaged in sales and marketing as at 31 December 2016. The Group enhanced
its sales performance through optimizing the core management of the sales group,
adjusting the sales organization structure, establishing an effective training system
and building a specialist sales team, which also providing professional opinions for
the further development of the Group through the predicting of development
tread of the pharmaceutical industry.

Moreover, while adhering to the concept of self-operation, the Group introduced
pilot of reforms under the “horizontal and vertical combination” model and fully
implemented sales by product lines in all provinces. Meanwhile, the Group also
followed the macro trend of “collaboration with manufacturers, alliance with strong
partners” and entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with China National
Accord Medicines Corporation Ltd. (BIZ5 B —BIEEER M AR DA to lay a

solid foundation for sales and distribution of future products by the Group.

In future, based on the precise understanding on the overall pharmaceutical market,
the construction of sales team by the Group and the refined management of
customers, together with the advantages of the listing of oseltamivir phosphate
granules, the Group's core product, in the National Drug List for Basic
Medical Reimbursement, Work-Related Injury Reimbursement and Maternity
Reimbursement (2017 Version) (the “2017 National Reimbursement Drug List")
of the PRC by the China Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the

PRC, the Group will achieve a stable growth in its sales performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANUFACTURING REVIEW

In 2016, by adhering to our consistent strategies of producing drugs of better
quality and international standard, the Group has increased its efforts in respect of
the compliance management, system establishment and internal governance, and
improved quality control with the focus on the establishment of a quality control

system to ensure the continuous improvement in product quality.

In respect of the safety management, the Group has been adhering to the principles
of “safety first, prevention at core, integrated governance”. Guiding by the safety
culture, the Group has put in great efforts to promote the establishment of a risk
management system and safety standards. By enhancing the guidance, assistance,
review and incentives in the safety management process, the Group motivated all
its employees to participate in the practice of safety management and achieved

zero material safety incident in 2016.

In respect of environmental protection and governance, the Group has increased
its investment to formulate and implement specific methods jointly with external
experts for the “three wastes” generated from its own products according to the
characteristics of their ingredients and categories. The Group also explored new

solutions for environmental protection and utilization of resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

V. OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS V. REXERIN
I.  Revenue . EX®
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of BZEWI6FNAABILEEE K
RMB941.50 million, representing an increase of 35.88% as compared with SERGEEEAR®M41508
RMB692.91 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase B BEZ205F12A3181
was primarily attributable to the increase in the sales of our core products FEMNAR®E29I BETEM
Kewei and Erongshu and the further optimization of the marketing network. 35.88% c ZEMFERERVEM

TR B 4T A S A R 4
e — Bl -

The table below sets forth the sales revenue of the Group by therapeutic TR AEBE SERHERDN
areas as a percentage of total revenue: HEBMALEREXENAI IS
W
Year ended 3| December
BZ12A3ALEE
2016 2015
Year-on-year
Growth
AlLER
(RMB'000) % (RMBU00) % (%)
(AEEFT) % (AREFI) % (%)
Anti-iral drugs nREEN 739,824 78.58% 457436 6602% 61.73%
~Including core product —Ef RUERAR
Kewei (oseltamivir phosphate) (BERAME) 736,273 78.20% 453830 65.50% 6224%
~ Kewei granules — Al EBA 544,324 5781% 1514 46.40% 69.30%
—Kewei capsules -IRBE 191,949 20.39% 132316 19.10% 4507%
Cardiovascular drugs HIEEY 89,182 9.47% 107,083 15.45% -16.72%
Endocrine and Metabolic drugs R RSB 46,739 497% 39047 5.64% 19.70%
Others Eth 65,759 6.98% 89,344 12.89% 2640%
Total At 941,504 100% 692910 100% 35.88%
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BEEENWmED M

2. Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales consists of (i) cost of materials, primarily including cost

of active pharmaceutical ingredient (API), ancillary materials and packaging

materials, (i) labour cost, primarily including salaries and welfare benefits

of our staff directly involved in the manufacture of our products, (iii)

manufacturing cost, primarily including depreciation charge of machinery,

equipment and plant and cost of labour protection materials, fuel, machine

oil and maintenance, and (iv) royalty fee paid to third parties in relation to

various patents.

The Group's cost of sales increased by 20.13% to RMB214.23 million for the
year ended 3| December 2016 from RMB178.33 million for the year ended

31 December 2015, which was mainly due to the increase in sales volume.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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The table below sets forth the cost of sales of the Group by therapeutic TR AEBZABEETER
areas and as a percentage of total cost of sales: HERARIGRHERANBE D
=g -
I

Year ended 3| December

BZENA3NBLEE

2016 2015

Year-on-year

Growth

AR

(RMB'000) % (RMBOO) % (%)

(AREFT) % (AREFTL) % (%)

Antiviral drugs nREEN 169,782 79.25% 106,170 59.53% 5991%
~ Including core product —Ef: ROERAR

Kewei (oseltamivir phosphate) (BEETMNE) 168811 78.80% 104469 5856% 61.59%

~Kewel granules —H AR 112,535 5253% 68735 3854% 6372%

~ Kewei capsules —EdAEBE 56,276 26.27% 35,734 2004% 5749%

Cardiovascular drugs DIME & 14925 6.97% 18994 1065% 21 42%

Endocrine and Metabolic drugs A RRHEED 6,591 3.08% 5030 282% 3100%

Others Eth 2,936 10.70% 48,140 27.00% 5235%

Total aat 214,234 100% 178,334 100% 20.13%
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3. Gross Profit 3. ER
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's gross profit increased BZE2016F12A31HILEEE &
to RMB727.27 million, representing an increase of 41.33% as compared with SEMENENEARK 727278
RMB514.58 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase in Ex BEZ205F12A3181E
gross profit was mainly due to the increase in the sales of Kewei, a product FEMARBSI4AS8EET « &M
with higher gross profit margin. 41.33% « EMERENZHRDE

M G ] B SHE BRI PR ER -

The table below sets forth the gross profit of the Group by therapeutic TR A EB R ERHE DD
areas: EF

Year ended 3| December

BZNA3NBALEE

2016 2015

Year-on-year

Growth

Rt E R

(RMB'000) % (RMBOOO) % (%)

(AREFT) % (AREFTL) % %)

Anti-viral drugs MmEEY) 570,042 78.38% 351,266 6826% 6228%
Including core product Kewei —Hf: BOERAR

(oseftamivir phosphate) (BERAME) 567,460 78.03% 349,36 67.89% 6243%

— Kewei granules — ] R BT 431,788 59.37% 252,779 49.12% 70.82%

— Kewei capsules -TRBE 135,672 18.66% 96,582 18.77% 4047%

Cardiovascular drugs L M BEY) 74,257 1021% 88,089 17.12% -15.70%

Endocrine and Metabolic drugs A9 R A AR 2% 40,149 5.52% 34017 6.61% 18.03%

Others Hth 4282 589% 41204 801% 393%

Total CE 727,270 100% 514576 100% 41.33%




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other revenue

The Group's other revenue mainly includes (i) government subsidies,
primarily including amortisation of government subsidies for our construction
of the production line of Kewei by instalment in accordance with accounting
standards, and other research and development subsidies and awards
granted by local government, and (ii) interest income and miscellaneous

income.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's other revenue was
RMB16.00 million, representing an increase of 1.25% as compared with
RMBI5.80 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Such increase was
due to the increase in interest income, offset by the decrease in government

subsidies.

Other Net Income

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's other net income
was RMB30.63 million, representing an increase of 357.85% as compared
with RMB6.69 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase
was due to foreign exchange gains from the fluctuation of exchange rate
between HKD and RMB.

BEEENWmE DM
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Expense Analysis 6. EBRAMMN
For the year of 2016, the Group's total expense amounted to RMB320.83 RWICEE REEERB#3
million, representing an increase of 44.29% as compared with RMB222.36 A R #320838 8 - ®20I5
million for the year of 2015. The main components of the Group's expenses FOARB22236BE T &M
are as follows: 4429% - REBHN T EE BB
T

Year-on-year

Growth

2016 2015 AR &

(RMB’000) (RMB000) %)

(AE#ETFT) (AE#Fr) (%)

Distribution costs g IS 180,887 77,287 134.05%
Administrative expenses TTHERRX 132,711 120,171 10.44%
Finance costs BAMA 7,233 24,899 -7095%
320,831 222,357 44.29%

Distribution costs mainly consist of (i) marketing expenses relating to

conducting academic promotion activities and other marketing activities, (ii)

travelling expenses for marketing purposes, (i) labour cost, and (iv) other

expenses.

PHEKATEARENEBRARS
ot R H i SR B A S
Ko ()RR R 2 ZHRAK -
(iil) 5 TR » I (iv) ELAAK A o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The increase in distribution costs was mainly due to the increase in operating
cost and travel expenses in relation to academic promotion and other
marketing activities, closely relating to our increased efforts on academic
promotion of our core product Kewei. In addition, the Group also expanded
its sales force in 2016 and its sales and marketing staffs increased by 208 as

compared to 2015.

Administrative expenses mainly consist of (i) research and development
cost, (i) salaries and welfare benefits for management and administrative
personnel, (iii) depreciation and amortisation costs relating to our office and

facilities and land use rights, and (iv) other miscellaneous expenses.

The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in

labor costs and research and development expenses.
Finance costs mainly consist of interests on bank loans.

The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to that the Group had
sufficient funds and used such funds to repay matured bank loans which

resulting in the decrease in interest expenses.

BEEBENWR DN
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Profit Before Taxation

For the forgoing reasons, profit before taxation increased by 43.96% to
RMB453.07 million from RMB314.71 million in 2015.

Income Tax

For the year ended 3| December 2016, the Group's income tax expenses
were RMB72.47 million, representing an increase of 48.03% as compared
with RMB48.96 million for the year ended 3| December 2015, which was

mainly due to the increase in profit before taxation.

Profit After Taxation

For the forgoing reasons, the Group's profit after taxation was RMB380.60
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing an increase
of 43.22% as compared with RMB265.75 million for the year ended 31
December 2015.

IV. FINANCIAL POSITION

Overview

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's total assets amount to RMB2,831.1 |
million, with total liabilities of RMB373.30 million and shareholders equity of
RMB2,457.81 million.

BRBL AT R A

EREMRE - BB A& &
WSEHAREI47TIBEE T
BIMEARE45307EETT - 20
43.96% °

Fri&
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2. Net Current Assets

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth our current assets, current liabilities and net

current assets for the date indicated.

BEEENWmE DM

RBEERE

TREFIHFRFARBHROREE
E RPABLRDEEFE

As at 31 December

RI12A31R
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB 000

ARKETT ANEETT

Current assets RBEE

Inventories e 110,624 154,628
Trade and other receivables 25 N E MR 337,149 260,568
Time deposits EHER 238,988 33,000
Pledged deposits BEERER 2,635 8,077
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER 1,212,072 1,353,651
Total current assets REEELE 1,901,468 1,809,924
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B9 REMERNTIE 182,377 155,96 |
Bank loans FITER 70,000 105,000
Deferred income EL W e 4,379 4,379
Current taxation JE < BNER R IR 27,525 5,826
Total current liabilities RBEEAH 284,281 271,166
Net current assets RBEEFH 1,617,187 1,538,758

Our net current assets increased from RMBI,538.76 million as at 31
December 2015 to RMBI,617.19 million as at 31 December 2016, mainly

due to sales growth, increase in trade and other receivables and decrease in

bank loans.

BRMEREEEFEE20I5F 12
AIBMARKEIS876EE T
BINE016FNRA BHARE
16171988 FERHREE
B - B5REMEYERRIE MNIA
RERITIE AR ©
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Gearing ratio and quick ratio

Gearing ratio represents total loans and borrowings as at a record date
divided by shareholders’ equity as at the same record date. Quick ratio
represents current assets excluding inventories as at a record date divided

by current liabilities as at the same record date.

The gearing ratio and quick ratio of the Group as at 3| December 2016
were 3.66% and 6.30 times respectively. The gearing ratio and quick ratio of
the Group as at 31 December 2015 were 9.10% and 6.10 times respectively.

The decrease in the gearing ratio as at 31 December 2016 as compared with
31 December 2015 was mainly due to the decrease in debts and increase in
total equity; the increase in the quick ratio was mainly due to the decrease in

current liabilities and increase in quick assets.

Capital Raising

The Company exercised part of the over-allotment option on |7 January
2016 to issue 163,000 additional H shares. The completion of such issuance
was on 20 January 2016. As at 31 December 2016, the total share capital of
the Company was 450,822,850 shares.

The Company entered into the capital increase agreement with the Parent
Company on |6 December 2016, pursuant to which, the Company has
agreed to issue and allot 1,200,000 new domestic shares of the Company
to the Parent Company at a consideration of RMB19,344,000 (the
"Subscription”). Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
16 December 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 20 January 2017
for detailed information. For the financial year of 2016, the Company has not
received all the consideration of the Subscription, and has not recognized
the increase of share capital. The Subscription has completed on 10 February
2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bank Loans

In 2016, all indebtedness of the Group were Renminbi-denominated bank
loans. As at 31 December 2016, the balance of the Group's bank loans was
RMB90.00 million, representing a decrease of 53.85% from RMB195.00

million as at 31 December 2015.

Capital Expenditure

In order to meet the production demand for our products, the Group
constructed plants and buildings, purchased machines and equipment in 2016
with an aggregate capital expenditure of RMB60.77 million, representing an
increase of 103.52% as compared to RMB29.86 million in 2015.

Major Purchase and Sales

On 22 July 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with Sunshine Lake
Pharma. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group have acquired the right to
use all the relevant knowhow and patents relating to yimitasvir phosphate
and follow-up direct anti-viral agent compounds (the “Compounds”) and,
upon obtaining necessary government approvals, the right to manufacture
and sell worldwide for a consideration of RMB700.00 million. The
consideration comprised a down payment of RMB250.00 million and
progress payments totalling RMB450.00 million payable upon each stage of
development or approval of Yimitasvir phosphate or the Compounds. The
agreement expires on 3| December 2030 or the date when the first patent

mentioned above expires, whichever is earlier.

BEEENWmE DM
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Establishment of the Joint Venture

On 30 October 2016, the Company entered into a shareholders’
agreement with TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals and its subsidiary, TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals Co. (Beijing), Ltd. ("TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals
(Beijing)"). Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, the Company and
TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals (Beijing) will jointly establish a joint venture in
China to engage in the research and development, production and sales
of new anti-Hepatitis C drugs, and TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals (Beijing)
will transfer its 9% equity interests in the joint venture to the Company
after the establishment of the joint venture in accordance with the terms
and conditions set out in the shareholders” agreement. The joint venture,
Dongguan HEC TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co., Ltd,, was established on 10
January 2017. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30
October 2016 and 27 March 2017 for detailed information regarding the

shareholders’ agreement and the equity transfer.

Foreign Exchange

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no investments in hedging of
any speculative derivatives. In view of the potential Renminbi exchange
rate fluctuations, the Group will consider arranging for proper financial

instruments at appropriate time to avoid the corresponding risks.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 3| December 2016, the Group did not provide any external

guarantees.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, except for bank deposits pledged to secure

certain bills payable, we had no other pledged assets.
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12.  Employee and remuneration policies 2. {8 FMEX
(1) Human Resource Summary () ADEREX
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 1,317 employees, BZENI6F12A318 K

EEXBEREIZITA:

by age: BREREED -
Age Distribution FER DM Number Percentage
AE BO
30 or below 305 (2 AT 594 45%
30-40 (inclusive) 30-405% (&) 525 40%
40-50 (inclusive) 40-50 3% (&) 181 14%
Above 50 S0mR0A L |7 1%
Total At 1317 100%
by education: REREEESD
Education Level ERE Number Percentage
N | BOM
Master or above BH(8)ME 50 4%
Bachelor EN S 395 30%
Associate A& 323 24%
Vocational or Below ERAT 549 42%

Total Bt 1317 100%
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&

&

Remuneration Policy

The objective of the Group's remuneration policy is to motivate and
retain talented employees to achieve the Group's long-term corporate
goals and objectives. The Group's employee remuneration policy
is determined by taking into account factors such as remuneration
in respect of the overall remuneration standard in the industry and
employee's performance. The management reviews the Group's

employee remuneration policy and arrangements on a regular basis.

The remunerations of Directors are determined based on their
responsibilities and experiences, with reference to the market

conditions.

Employee Benefits

The Group strictly complies with the Labor Law, the Labor Contract
Law and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, under which it
contributes various social insurance premiums and housing provident
fund for employees. In addition to the statutory requirement of
the PRC, the Group has established corresponding systems such
as the annuity system, housing benefits and children’s benefits, and
established public welfare facilities such as kindergarten and infirmary

room.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks that may have material effects on the operation of the Group are as follows:

The risk of products failing to pass consistency evaluation

According to the Opinions of the Office of the State Council on the
Commencement of Consistency Evaluation on the Quality and Healing
Effect of Generic Drugs ( (BIH5Fe it ABERA R AR R E 8B —
BIEFHERER) ) (Guo Ban Fa [2016] No. 8), for generic drugs which
have been approved for market launch prior to the implementation of the
new registration category of chemical drugs, if the approval was not carried
out according to the principle of consistency in quality and curative effect
as the original researched pharmaceuticals, such generic drugs are subject
to consistency evaluation and are required to have consistent quality and
curative effect as the original researched pharmaceuticals. In addition, a time
limit has been stipulated in such opinions for all types of generic drugs to

complete the consistency evaluation.

The risk of decline in drug prices

With continuous progress in the reform of drug prices, deepening of
reforms in the medical insurance payment system and the promulgation
of other relevant policies and regulations, a declining trend in drug prices
has appeared. On 4 May 2015, the Notice on the Publication of Opinions
on Proceeding with Reforms on Drug Prices ( €885 E135 HE it 22 (B
KRR EE RABA) ) was jointly issued by seven departments including
the National Development and Reform Commission to expressly remove
the drug prices originally set by the government except for narcotic drugs
and Category | psychotropic drugs. Currently, with increasing pressure on
payments of medical insurance, the government is also actively pursuing price
management and negotiations on pharmaceuticals. Drugs which are listed
in the Medical Insurance Catalogue will face further downward pressure on

their prices.
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VI.

In view of the above, the Group has implemented corresponding policies
in 2016 in response to the aforesaid risks. In respect of the consistency
evaluation of generic drugs, the Group has carried out consistency
evaluation for the relevant products based on product sales, competitors
and production conditions. Among which, key products of the Group, such
as oseltamivir phosphate capsules and granules, have entered the stage
of biological equivalent efficacy trials, and consistency evaluation for the

remaining products are conducted in a steady progress.

To tackle with the risk of decline in drug prices, while insisting on the
establishment of our own sales network, the Group had entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement with China National Accord Medicines.
Through such cooperation, the drug distribution process will be reduced
to ensure the control over drug prices by the Group. Meanwhile, by
leveraging on the extensive pharmaceutical retail network of China National
Accord Medicines, a solid foundation has been established for the sales and

distribution of the Group's future products.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In recent years, with the increasing demand for public health, acceleration in the
aging of population and the backdrop of complete implementation in two-children
policy, the pharmaceutical market in the PRC has developed rapidly with an
upward trend. Meanwhile, the launching of a series of industrial policies, such as the
Guidelines for the Development and Planning of the Pharmaceutical Industry, has
indicated a clear direction for the rapid, orderly and healthy development of the

pharmaceutical industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Optimistic development of the pharmaceutical industry

In 2017, the environment for the development of the pharmaceutical industry
in China will improve remarkably. With the comprehensive implementation
of structural reforms on the supply side, increasing supportive efforts from the
national policies on the pharmaceutical industry, increasing awareness of health
and preventive protection among national citizens, complete implementation
of the two-children policy, steadily increasing disposable income of residents,
and successive implementation of key strategies and plans such as “Made in
China 2025", Outline Plan of “Healthy China 2030" and the Guidelines for the
Development and Planning of the Pharmaceutical Industry, the pharmaceutical
industry in China will develop further under these supportive forces and recovery

of the pharmaceutical industry will continue.

More active innovations by enterprises

National technology plans, such as “The National Major Innovative Drug Projects”
and "Prevention and Treatment of Major Infectious Diseases such as AIDS and Viral
Hepatitis”, and industrial transformation and upgrading projects provide increasing
supportive efforts to biologics and innovative drugs. The registration, review and
approval processes for new drugs continue to improve. The strong guidance
from national policies has indicated the direction of technological innovation for
enterprises, which will stimulate tremendous vigor and momentum for innovations

in enterprises.

Looking ahead in 2017, the Group will benefit from the advantage of the Listing of
Kewei granules, a core product of the Group, in the 2017 National Reimbursement
Drug List, the Group will continue to increase marketing and promotional efforts
for its academic products, enhance brand building, expand sales network, actively
explore new markets with development potential and strengthen its market leading
position. Meanwhile, the Group will also respond to the relevant government
policies encouraging innovations by increasing investments in the research and
development of products to enable more high quality medicines with great market

demand to obtain government approvals and benefit the general public in China.

In future, the Group will continue to adopt sustainable development strategies,
actively get more approvals for innovative drugs and biologics, develop “strong-
strong alliance” with external parties, expand the coverage of products to more
disease treatment areas, accelerate the expansion of existing business by capitalizing
on the advantages of industrial resources, aiming to achieve a long-term sustainable
growth, become a leading pharmaceutical enterprise in China and maximize the

value created for shareholders.
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DIRECTORS s

Name Date of joining the Group Date of appointment Position

A MAXEEBH EZEAH B

Mr. TANG Xinfa (& %7%%) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Chairman and non-executive Director

EMBERE 2015F584AR 20155848 EERFFENTES

Mr. ZHU Yingwei (5K 5&) 8 August 2001 8 August 2001 Non-executive Director

RAREFFAE 20018 A8H 2001 F8 A 8A FMTES

Mr. JJANG Juncai (#7) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Executive Director

BT &t 2015F584AR 20155848 HITES

Mr. WANG Danjin (£ 1) 27 February 2006 27 February 2006 Executive Director

FrREE 200662 H278 20062 A 278 HTEF

Mr. MO Kit (E7R) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Non-executive Director

ERLE 2015F5H4R 2015F5H4A FHITER

Mr. CHEN Yangui (FRZEEE) | May 2014 4 May 2015 Executive Director

BREELE 014%5A8 1R 20I5%5A4A8 HITES

Mr. TANG Jianxin (5 EE$) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Independent non-executive Director

ERMRE 2015F5A84AR 20I5%5A4A8 BUFRITES

Mr. FU Hailiang (178 5%) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Independent non-executive Director

L 2015F5A84AR 20I5%5A4A8 BUFNTES

Mr. LEE Chi Ming (=) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Independent non-executive Director
EREE 2015F5H4R 2015F5H4A BUFNTES

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

HERBARIEERNDBERLA



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TANG Xinfa (/& #73%), aged 47, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director of the

Board. He joined the Company in May 2015 and has served as a non-executive Director

since then.

Mr. Tang has extensive working experience in the following companies or entities:

Period

5

Name of Company/Entity

NE,/BBEH

EX - EEREREEAE[HN

BHRBELE 475 RESENEEREIH
TESH R 20I5F5 BMAKRRR  hiE—
EEAHBITEEH -

BERERETNIIARERERSENTEER -

Position Principal Function
Bt TR

Since November 2015
B20I5F 11 A

Since March 201 |
B201143A8

Since October 2010
E2010F 10 A

Since May 2010
B201065A

Since September 2009
82009 %9 A

Since September 2005
B2005%9 A

From September 2002 to
September 2005
B20026 9 AZ 200549 A

Shenzhen HEC Industrial
FIMREGAEE

Parent Company

SYNG]

Dongguan HEC Medicine
Development and Research
Co, Ltd. ("Dongguan HEC
Research”)
=RENENEARRAE
(MRERB LR )

Linzhi HEC
Pharmaceutical Investment
Co, Ltd. (“Linzhi HEC

Pharmaceutical Investment)

MERBAERREBRLA

(IMZRBABEERE])

Ruyuan HEC

Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd.
ARRGHEXERAR
Sunshine Lake Pharma

ERRGREE

Shenzhen HEC Industrial
FYMREGAEE

Director, general manager

BE KR

Vice chairman, executive director

and deputy general manager
BESR 78S
REIRLE

Legal representative and

executive director

EERRARMTES

Director

B

Director
£

Director, head of

research institute

5% HEkhk

Director of the general office
MREEE

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRE

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERREK

Corporate management and decision-making

NAEEFRER

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRE

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERREK

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRE

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRE
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Mr. Tang received a master degree in literary aesthetics from the Department of Chinese

of Xiamen University in September 2002.

Mr. ZHU Yingwei (K #{&), aged 46, is a non-executive Director of our Company. Mr.

Zhu joined our Company in August 2001 and has served as a Director since then.

Mr. Zhu also serves in the following companies or entities:

BLEER2000FIARBEMAREPXREE

BRERRTSM -

REEREE 465 BARRERTES -
REER2001 F8AMAKRAR - BILELSE
go

RRETRBER T RAIHERE :

Period Name of Company/Entity Position Principal Function

e NE/ERER Bz TERH

Since September 2012 Linzhi HEC Director Corporate management and decision-making
201249 A Pharmaceutical Investment ~ E&H NREBRORE

Since December 2010
H2010F 128

Since December 2006
H2006 % 12 A

Since April 2004
H2004%F4 A

Since February 2004
B 200452 A3

46

WERBEHBERRE
Parent Company

SN

Yichang HEC Power
Plant Co,, Ltd.

HERBRXANEERRLA

Yidu Changjiang Mechanism
Equipment Co., Ltd.

BHRTIEMREER AR

Yidu HEC Industrial
Development Co,, Ltd.

EBTRERERER
YN

Director, general manager

and legal representative

B BEEFREIERRA
Director

B

Director

B

Director

s

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRE

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRE

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRER

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRE
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Period Name of Company/Entity Position Principal Function

5 NE/BRER Bt TERRE

Since December 2003 Sunshine Lake Pharma Director Corporate management and decision-making
B2003%F 12 BRRFEATER B% RAIBE AR

Since December 2001 Ruyuan Yao Autonomous Director Corporate management and decision-making
82001 F 12 A Region Yangzhiguang 5% NAEERRRER

Since December 2001
B2001 F 12 A

Since January 2001
B2001 1 A

Industrial Development

Co, Ltd.
RERBRKB 2K

EXERBRALA

Ruyuan Yangzhiguang
Aluminum Development
Co, Ltd.

ARG AR EERER LA

Ruyuan Yao Autonomous
Region Jingwei Industrial
Development Co,, Ltd.

ARERBABRREES
FRBERAF

Chairman and

legal representative

EERFEERRA

Legal representative and

executive director

EERRARHITES

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRK

Corporate management and decision-making

RAIEERRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 3 47



48

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE - EEREREEAE[HT

Mr. Zhu serves as the vice president of Yichang Foreign Investment Association since
December 2007, and was a standing committee member of Hubei Pharmaceutical
Industry Association from April 2012 to April 2015. Mr. Zhu graduated with a bachelor
degree in science from Jilin University in July 1993. He was recognised as a senior engineer

in pharmaceutical engineering by the Professional Title Reformation Office of Hubei (433t
BRBREHRAE) in July 2009.

Mr. JIANG Juncai (3#337), aged 35, is an executive Director of our Board and the
general manager of the Company. He joined the Company in May 2015 and has served as

an executive Director since then.

Mr. Jiang has also served as a director of Yidu HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. from
March 2012 to May 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Jiang was a director of Yichang Shancheng
Cordyceps Sinensis Co., Ltd. (EEILIBUKEL 2 EEHR R F]) from March 2012 to
July 2015, and successively served as a researcher at the biochemistry division, a researcher
and deputy head of the traditional Chinese medicine division and the deputy head of the
zoological and botanical division of Sunshine Lake Pharma from July 2006 to May 2012.

Mr. Jiang graduated with a master degree in science from Shenyang Pharmaceutical

University in June 2006.

Mr. WANG Danjin (£ F}#), aged 47, is an executive Director of our Board and a
deputy general manager of the Company. He joined the Company in February 2006, and

has served as a Director since then.

Mr. Wang has also served as a supervisor of Parent Company from December 2010 to
July 2015, and a director of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical since April 2006. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Wang was the head of production department of Jilin Tonghua Dongri
Pharmaceutical Joint Stock Co,, Ltd. (F & (LR A EERH BB AF]) from March
2002 to January 2006, and a technologist at Jilin Dandong Pharmaceutical Factory (75 #&
FFER BLEEER) from November 1991 to February 2002,

Mr. Wang graduated with a bachelor degree from Shenyang Pharmaceutical University
(B[S BERI K E2) through correspondence courses in January 2008, He is recognised as a
licensed pharmacist by Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s
Republic of China (formerly known as Ministry of Personnel of the People’s Republic of
China), and was recognised as a pharmacist-in-charge by Bureau of Human Resources and
Social Security of Dandong (formerly known as Bureau of Personnel of Dandong (F}E

AZE ) in October 2001,

KEEBAWTFNARESEEEMINGR
BEhEHereR UKB2012F4AF2015
FAREMLEBETERETHES - K%
ERI1993F7AREREMARE UGREE
T2 22009F7 A + ML B B IERE W

AREFRBEIREXSHIIEA -

BYTRE 355 BEZCHNTESRAR
BB o MR 2015F5 AIMAKRRAR » 18
—HEEARTEE B -

BEEB0NFIAZNISFSABTEIEE
MRGEHEEEREEBRARINES - a1 ¥
EEER12FIAZE0I5F7THA BB E
HEWHABLBERARADNES - TR
2006F7REWNFS ABEARETERR
BHREZEMCEMARE - BRPEMAR
BREFMRUEBEDHEIDE -

BRER2006F 6 HRENEGERAZE B
BEEEL+ B -

IRERE 45 BESSHTEEEAL
BRI 4E IR o A 2006 F 2 AMAKRRT] - It
B—EEARTEE B -

FTREB0I0FNAEWISFTARETE
DAIMESE  URBE2006F4 A RREES G
HEBEFES - EMAKXARZA - TEE
R2002E3AE20065F | AHFEEEEHER
CRABEERNERADEEDDR  UER
1991 F || AE2002F 2 BRI EE ME T RE
EFETIEE -

FRER008F | ARERBEBEMABHEK
I REELEM - tABPEARLMEA
NERMEERED(RPEARLNBEAS
20 RAI M BB - RR2001 F 10 A%
BARTANERIHERER(RIETAS
B RAI B £ E BERELE o
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Mr. MO Kit (E7R), aged 66, is a non-executive Director of the Board. He joined the

Company in May 2015, and has served as a non-executive Director since then.

Mr. Mo has also served as a director of North & South Brother Pharma since October
2006, a director of Dongguan Bisheng Electronic Limited since June 2002, a member of
the board of directors of Ruyuan Yangzhiguang Aluminium Development Co., Ltd. since

June 1998 and a director of North & South Brother (HK) since September 1998.

Mr. CHEN Yangui (FR#E1E), aged 35, is an executive Director of the Board. He joined
the Company in May 2014, serving as the head of the sales department, Mr. Chen has

served as an executive Director since May 2015.

Mr. Chen has also served as a general manager of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical since
March 2016, a supervisor of Ruyuan HEC Medical Instrument Co., Ltd. (FLIRERZ 12

ZEMABR A A]) since July 2012 and a director of Ruyuan HEC Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd.
since February 2010. Mr. Chen joined Dongguan HEC Research in 2005, and successively
held positions as a researcher, the deputy head of research and development department
and the head of synthesis department before he was appointed as the deputy head of

research institute and the head of generic drug department.

Mr. Chen graduated with a master degree in science from Hunan University in June 2006.

ENKE 6657 BEZCHHTES - 1
015FE5 AMAARRT - b —EETIEHNT
BEE-H-

EXREB06F 10 AREERIL LFER
EX BUNFAREAREVBETER
AEMES 51998 F 6 ARERIRBZ K
REERERARNESTGHERE 199859
AREARILF(BR)NES -

REELLE 355 AEFEHTES - 01
014F5 BMARR AW ETHERE - Rk
EB0I5F5 A-EHRTES -

S0 BREEBWICFIAREFEERBK
@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ'amu¢7ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
BEEBWMARARIMES  2010F2ARE
Eﬂﬁ%%tﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ%%%o%%&%
m%EMAﬁ RGN EME - EREAHR
BB EERGEHBEE  LWEREZA
ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ&#iﬂﬁ%ﬁi%%%°
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Mr. TANG Jianxin (JE#237), aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of our Board in May 2015.

Mr. Tang has also served as an independent director of Sino Great Wall Co,, Ltd. (SZSE
Stock Exchange stock number: 000018) since December 2015, an independent director
of Pingdingshan Tianan Coal Mining Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code: 601666) since May 2013,
an independent director of Zhongbai Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code:
000759) since December 2011 and an independent director of Shenzhen Huapengfei
Modern Logistics Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 300350) since August 2010. He was an
independent director of Wuhan Sanzhen Industry Holding Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code:
600168) from June 2009 to June 2015, and an independent director of Wuhan Zhongnan
Commercial (Group) Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 000785) from May 2008 to May
2014. Prior to that, Mr. Tang served as an independent director of Wuhan Accelink
Technologies Co,, Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 002281) from September 2006 to September
2009 and an independent director of Hubei Chutian Expressway Co., Ltd (#1t2 X &R
NEBMDBR AR (SSE stock code: 600035) from April 2002 to April 2008. Mr. Tang
has been a doctoral tutor at Wuhan University since 2006 and the dean of Accounting
Department of Economics and Management School. He has been a professor at Wuhan
University since 2004, and worked for the postdoctoral research center of the accounting

department of Renmin University of China from 2000 to 2002,

Mr. Tang received his bachelor degree from the Economics Department of Wuhan
University in June 1985, and then obtained a master degree in economics and a doctoral
degree in economics from Wuhan University in September 1988 and January 1999
respectively. Mr. Tang was granted independent auditor qualifications by the National
Audit Office of the People’s Republic of China in December 1992, and CPA qualification
by the China Institute of Certified Public Accountants in December 1997.

BEHAE 525 RWOISFESAEZTAE
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FTAR 71X 5% © 600168) RIB L EH - & B 2008
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Mr. FU Hailiang (178 75%), aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Board in May 2015.

Mr. Fu has been a partner and the head of administration function of Hubei S&H Law
Firm since May 2005. He was a partner of Hubei Haohan Law Firm (#13L /58RI E75
FfT) from October 2000 to May 2005 and an associate at Wuhan Third Law Firm (&
8 = ZENEEFT) from November 1996 to October 2000. Mr. Fu has been a council
member of the Wuhan Lawyers Association and the chief of the Association of Finance,
Securities and Law Industry (£ Bl HEEBEXZ B ) since February 2014.

Mr. Fu graduated with a professional certification in financial management from Wuhan
University in July 1993, and graduated with a bachelor degree in law from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law in June 1998. After that, he graduated with a master
degree in law from Wuhan University in February 2003. Mr. Fu has been admitted to
practice PRC law in June 1998 and was recognized as an excellent lawyer of Hubei by the
Department of Justice of Hubei and the Hubei Lawyers Association (43L& EEIIHE) in
March 201 1.

Mr. LEE Chi Ming (Z758), aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Board in May 2015.

Mr. Lee has also served as a director of Ever East Consultants Limited in Hong Kong since
August 2013 and served as a director of Knowledge Transfer, Office of Research and
Knowledge Transfer Services in the Chinese University of Hong Kong since September
2016. Prior to that, Mr. Lee served as an executive science director in the research of
central nervous system and pain control and a global product director of AstraZeneca
Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd, a section head, associate director and project manager at Bayer
Corporation and a senior group leader of neuroscience at Abbott Laboratories. He also
worked as a lecturer and then a senior lecturer at the Chinese University of Hong Kong

from September 1982 to February 1992.

Mr. Lee received a bachelor degree in science and a master degree in biochemistry from
the University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and July 1977 respectively, and a doctoral
degree in pharmacology from the University of Cambridge in July 1980 before he
completed his postdoctoral research at the Johns Hopkins University in July 1982,
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SUPERVISORS EE

Name Date of joining the Group Date of appointment Position

i MAXEBEBH BZERS B

Ms. HUANG Fangfang (2575) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
ENRLL 2015%5H4H 201565 4H EFEIR

Ms. XUE Lian (B£3) 20 November 2009 4 May 2015 Employee representative supervisor
REELTE 20094 11 A20R 2015%574H BRIRERES

Mr. LIN Jian (PR{2) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Supervisor

ML 201555748 2015%574H Rl

o o ok

Ms. HUANG Fangfang (225 77), aged 35, is a Supervisor of the Company. She joined
the Company in May 2015, and has been the chairman of the Board of Supervisors since
then. She has also served as the executive deputy head of the generic drug department
of Sunshine Lake Pharma since June 2014, and the head of formulation department of
Sunshine Lake Pharma since February 2009. Prior to that, Ms. Huang was the head of
analysis section under the formulation department of Sunshine Lake Pharma from July

2006 to February 2009.

Ms. Huang graduated with a master degree in science from Sun Yat-sen University in June

2006.

Ms. XUE Lian (&£3%), aged 37, is an employee representative Supervisor of the Company.
She joined the Company in November 2009 and has served as the chief quality officer and
the head of quality division of the Company. She has been an employee representative

Supervisor since May 2015.

Prior to that, Ms. Xue was the director of quality assurance department of Parent
Company from May 2006 to November 2009, a quality assurance specialist of Parent
Company from December 2004 to April 2006 and a quality control and quality assurance
specialist from March 2002 to December 2004.

Ms. Xue graduated with a bachelor degree from Wuhan Institute of Technology through
correspondence courses in January 2008, and also graduated with a master degree in
engineering from Peking University in July 2015. She was recognised as an engineer in
pharmaceutical engineering by the Professional Title Reformation Office of Yichang (B &
MM E A E) in December 2008.
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Mr. LIN Jian (#K{@), aged 33, is a Supervisor of the Company. He joined the Company in

May 2015, and has been a Supervisor since then. He has been an deputy director of the

generic drug department of Dongguan HEC Research since June 2012.

Mr. Lin graduated with a doctor's degree in science, majoring in organic chemistry from

Jilin University (&5 #RK22) in June 2012,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Date of joining

MREE 335 AEALFES - R20I5F
SAMARRAR tE—BEEAES B3
OB 2012F 6 AREFRZR G EH %
(FEFTHBIFTE o

MEER2012F6 ARERETHAE - BFE
BELBM - TBEARLEE -

SREEAE

oot

Name the Group Date of appointment  Position Responsibility

i MAXEBEBH EZERH Bt BE

Mr. JJANG Juncai (¥394) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 General manager Overall day-to-day management
BTkt 201545 H4H 20155 4H B ERNERER

Mr. WANG Danjin (£/12) 27 February 2006 4 May 2015 Deputy general manager  Operational management
IRREE 200662 A 278 20155 4H Bl BEER

Mr. LI Shuang (Z%8) 7 August 2005 4 May 2015 Deputy general manager  Operational management
FREE 200548 A7H 20155 4H Bl BEER

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (RT7#) 11 May 2002 I'l May 2002 Deputy general manager  Operational management
RIREE 2002658 11 200265811 R Bl BEER

Mr. LEI Xiantong (& J£ 1) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Chief financial officer Financial management
ERARE 201555748 2015%5A4H MR MBER

Mr. PAN Sanxiong (& =1f) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Secretary of the Board  Day-to-day operation of the Board
EorERLE 201545 A4H 201565 4H EFENE EZEMARZE

For the biography of Mr. IANG Juncai (¥#97") and Mr. WANG Danjin (£H%), please

refer to ""Directors” in this section.

BRRBOARERERRELENRE - F2H
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Mr. LI Shuang (Z3K), aged 36, is the deputy general manager of the Company. He joined
the Company in August 2005 and worked as a member of the insulin research team. He

has served as the deputy general manager of the Company since May 2015,

Mr. Li has also served as the deputy head of the Company’s insulin factory since October
2013 and the head of API department of that factory since February 2006. Mr. Li was the
head of purification department of the Company's insulin factory from December 2008 to
September 2013.

Mr. Li graduated with a bachelor degree in engineering from China Three Gorge
University (=K Z) in June 2004.

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (ART54t), aged 48, is the deputy general manager of the Company.
He joined the Company in May 2002, and has served as the deputy general manager of

the Company since then.

Mr. Zhu has been the vice chairman of Pharmaceutical Profession Association of
Hubei Province since April 2015, and has also served as a supervisor of Yichang HEC
Pharmaceutical since June 2005. Mr. Zhu was the director of GMP office of Apeloa
Kangyu Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. from October 1993 to May 2002, and a technician of the
General Security Station of the State-owned Ecological Forest (BI/A AR AT IRE
48k of Dongyang City from August 1990 to October 1993,

Mr. Zhu graduated with a bachelor degree in science from Jilin University in July 1990. He
was recognised as an engineer in pharmaceutical engineering by the Bureau of Human
Resources and Social Security of Jinhua (formerly known as the Bureau of Personnel of
Jinhua (2 ETAES)) in August 1999,
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Mr. LEl Xiantong (& 5c4), aged 47, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Lei

joined the Company in May 2015, and has served as our chief financial officer since then.

Mr. Lei has been the chief financial officer of Parent Company from December 2010
to May 2015. Mr. Lei has also been the deputy head of financial department of Yidu
Dongyangguang Industrial Development Co., Ltd. from January 2004 to December 2010
and a staff member at the financial department from September 2001 to January 2004.

Mr. Lei held positions relating to financial accounting in various companies before that.

Mr. Lei graduated with a professional certification in financial accounting from Zhongnan
University of Economics (currently known as Zhongnan University of Economic and Law)
in June 1997. Mr. Lei was recognised as a registered tax agent of China by the Ministry of

Human Resources and Social Security of the People's Republic of China.

Mr. PAN Sanxiong (7% =), aged 35, is the secretary of the Board of the Company. He

joined the Company in May 2015 and has served as the secretary of the Board since then.

Prior to that, Mr. Pan was a representative of the securities department of Parent
Company from April 2010 to April 2015, responsible for investor communication,
handling financing and corporate secretarial matters. Mr. Pan also worked in the securities
department of Starway Bio-technology Co., Ltd. in Guangdong (J& 5 2 4 ¥ RHE A% (7
BIR A 7)) from October 2008 to April 2010,

Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor degree in management from Guizhou University of
Finance and Economics in 2007. He obtained a Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary
issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange in November 2010 and passed the qualification
examination for practitioners in the securities industry held by Security Association of
China in November 2009.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE - EEREREEAE[HT

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. PAN Sanxiong (& = 1)

For the biography of Mr. PAN Sanxiong (& =), please refer to “Senior Management”

in this section.

Ms. NG Wing Shan (R 3k )

Ms. NG Wing Shan (R #kif) was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company on 24 July 2015. Ms. Ng is an assistant vice president of SW Corporate Services
Group Limited and is responsible for assisting listed companies in respect of professional
company secretarial work. She has over 10 years of professional experience in the
company secretarial field and is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom. Prior to joining SW Corporate Services Group Limited, she worked for a
corporate service provider and was responsible for handling secretarial and compliance
matters in relation to Hong Kong listed companies and private companies incorporated in

different jurisdictions.
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The Board hereby presents the Annual Report and the audited financial statements
of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 to

Shareholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising three executive Directors,
three non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The

Directors during the year ended 3| December 2016 and as the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. JIANG Juncai
Mr. WANG Danjin
Mr. CHEN Yangui

Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Yingwei

Mr. MO Kit

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Mr. LEE Chi Ming
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is a PRC pharmaceutical manufacturing company that focuses on the
development, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products in the therapeutic areas
of anti-virus, endocrine and metabolic diseases and cardiovascular diseases. For further
information of the principal business of the Company, please refer to the section “Business

Review" of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2016, the total share capital of the Company was RMB450,822,850,
divided into 450,822,850 shares of RMBI.00 each. Details of movements in the share
capital of the Company during the year 2016 are set out in note 22 to the Financial

Statements.

On 10 February 2017, the Company completed the issue of 1,200,000 new Domestic
Shares to the Parent Company. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 12 December 2016 and 10 February 2017, and the circular of the Company dated
20 January 2017 for detailed information. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the total
share capital of the Company was RMB452,022,850, divided into 452,022,850 shares of
RMBI.00 each.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed

securities of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DEBENTURES IN ISSUE

The Company did not have any debentures in issue for the year ended 31 December
2016.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

On 16 December 2016, the Company entered into the capital increase agreement with
the Parent Company, pursuant to which, the Company conditionally agreed to issue and
allot, and the Parent Company conditionally agreed to subscribe in cash for, an aggregate
of 1,200,000 new Domestic Shares at the subscription price of RMBI6.12 per new
Domestic Share (the “Subscription™).

The Subscription was conditional upon the fulfilment of the following conditions:

(i)  the completion and fulfillment of necessary internal approval procedures by the
Parent Company; and
(i) approval of the Subscription by the independent Shareholders at the 2017 first

extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

The Subscription enabled the Parent Company to apply for certain preferential tax
payment arrangement when it disposes of its entire equity interest in our Company to
Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (BR R[5 EHIZR RN ERAE)
in accordance with relevant PRC regulations. Furthermore, the Company could utilize
the net proceeds from the Subscription to supplement the general working capital of the
Company. The Subscription has completed on 10 February 2017. The net proceeds from
the Subscription was approximately RMB18.92 million. The Company intended to apply
the net proceeds from the Subscription to supplement the general working capital of the
Company. For details, please refer to the sections headed “(F) Use of proceeds” and "(G)
Reasons for and Benefit of the Proposed Subscription™ in the circular of the Company

dated 20 January 2017.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not entered into any equity-linked agreement,

nor did any equity-linked agreement exist during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has purchased appropriate liability insurance for its Directors, Supervisors
and senior management. The permitted indemnity provisions are set out in such liability

insurance.

Save as disclosed above, no permitted indemnity provision was made by the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and no permitted indemnity provision was in force as

at the Latest Practicable Date.

PLEDGING OF SHARES BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The Controlling Shareholder didn't pledge any of its shares in the Company to secure the
Company's debts or to secure guarantees or other support of the Company's obligations

for the year ended 3| December 2016.

LOAN AGREEMENTS OR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company didn't provide any financial assistance nor guarantee to its affiliated
companies for the year ended 31 December 2016, which would give rise to a disclosure
under Rule 13.16 of the Listing Rules. The Company didn't enter into any loan agreement
with covenants relating to specific performance of its Controlling Shareholder nor breach

the terms of any loan agreements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company did not adopt any share option scheme for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company is not
subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its existing

shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.
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RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income on page | 16. The financial condition of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position on pages |17 to |18. The consolidated cash flow of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement on pages 120 to [21.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements affecting
the results of operations and financial condition of the Company during the year are set

out in Management Discussion and Analysis of the Annual Report on page |5 to page 43.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the Group's
future business development are provided on pages 18 to 23 and pages 42 to 43 of
this Annual Report, respectively. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found on pages 41 to 42 of this Annual Report. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year are provided on note 27 to the Financial Statements. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is provided on

pages 27 to 34 of this Annual Report.

In addition, further information of the Company's environmental policies, performance and
initiatives can be found in the section heading “environmental policies and performance”
of this Report of the Directors. Our Company’ compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are provided in the section
heading “compliance with laws and regulations” of this Report of the Directors. An
account of the Company's relationships with its key stakeholders are disclosed in the

section heading “relationship with stakeholders” of this Report of the Directors.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of final dividends of RMB0.30 (tax
inclusive) per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “2016 Final Dividend")
with an aggregate amount of approximately RMBI35.61 million to shareholders whose
names are listed on the Company's register of members as at |7 June 2017 in the 2016
AGM to be held on 6 June 2017. The 2016 Final Dividend will be denominated and
declared in RMB. The Company will pay dividends in respect of domestic shares in RMB
and dividends in respect of H shares in HKD. Once the relevant resolution is passed at the

2016 AGM, the 2016 Final Dividend is expected to be paid on or around 14 July 2017.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China and its
implementation rules both effective since | January 2008, and other relevant provisions,
the Company is required to withhold and pay a 10% enterprise income tax when paying
the recommended 2016 Final Dividend to non-residential enterprise shareholders listed
on the Company's register of members of H shares. Any H share registered in the name
of a non-individual shareholder, such as HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees,
trustees, organizations or corporates, will be deemed as shares held by a non-residential
enterprise shareholder, and therefore the enterprise income tax on the receivable

dividend in respect of such shares will be withheld.

62

RERE
EEGRACARDABR017F6A6BETT
KNI FRRBFAS L BRREBE 2016
F12A3 BEFENRBREEGRARK0.30
T(EB) (2016 FREAKRE ) FR2017F6A
I7BRHADFRREAMOAAERRE - B8
BOARE 13561 BET ° 2016 FRMKREH
EUAREHERER - NERBREFUAAR
WA - T H AR AR S B LA TR © 575
RERRWICERRBAFAEBARE 2016
FROWETBER2017F7 B 14 BARIR
o

BIEBE2008F | A1 BEMK(REARLME
TEMEREIREEBED - AREAEER
o RARERAIIARRIHBRRRE M
BROEBRRSIREZ 016 FRAREE - A
BRBE 10 RIMRBEEMEH - RAUES
RREE(REA)ERAR - EREEALT
AATEMARKBESEEAARTREEE
TRMHE  BEEFEEEROERERE
MRt - YR AREREREENCERSE
o



CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM
and to the proposed 2016 Final Dividend, the H share register of members of the
Company will be closed from Saturday, 6 May 2017 to Tuesday, 6 June 2017 (both days
inclusive) and from Monday, 12 June 2017 to Saturday, 17 June 2017 (both days inclusive)
respectively, during which no transfer of H shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the 2016 AGM, all unregistered shareholders of the Company
shall lodge transfer documents with the Company's Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration before
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 May 2017. In order to qualify for receiving the proposed 2016 Final
Dividend (subject to the approval by the shareholders at the 2016 AGM), unregistered
shareholders of the Company shall lodge transfer documents with the Company’s Share
Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at the

above mentioned address for registration before 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 June 2017,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company and its

subsidiaries during the year of 2016 are set out in note 10 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year 2016 are set out
in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, of which details of reserves available for
distribution to Shareholders are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.
The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December
2016 represents the retained profits of approximately RMB483.7 million (2015: RMB208.8

million).
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DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, with an aim to generously contribute to society and promote
social harmony, the Company and its subsidiaries actively participated in social welfare
undertakings, among which, the Company made a donation of RMB2.00 million to Yidu
Government to support education and health development in Yidu City. The Company's
labor union has set up the Loving Heart Foundation to help and support staff and families
who live in hardship. The Loving Heart Foundation gave financial assistance amounting to
RMB20,000 to colleagues in hardship in 2016, which demonstrated our sense of corporate
responsibilities and concern on well-being of our employees. Furthermore, since 2012,
the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company have unanimously
agreed to give specific and continuous assistance to six high school students from poor
families who are good both in character and at studies, donating an annual scholarship of
RMBI18,000 to them until their high school graduation as well as giving great support to

other poverty-stricken high school students in their daily lives and learming.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as

at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 19 to the Financial Statements.

INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The partial information and the biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior

management of the Company are set out on page 44 to page 56 of the Annual Report.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent nonexecutive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and

considers all the independent nonexecutive Directors to be independent.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into service contracts with the Directors. The principal
particulars of these service contracts include: (1) each of the contracts is for a term of
three years following each Director's respective appointment date; and (2) each of the
contracts is subject to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The service

contracts may be renewed under the Articles of Association and applicable rules.

The Company has entered into contracts with the Supervisors in respect of, among
others, compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and

provisions of arbitration.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into a contract
of service with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statuary compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors in 2016 are set out in note 7
to the financial statements. None of the Directors or Supervisors waived any emoluments

during the year ended 31 December 2016,

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

At the end of the year of 2016 or at any time during the year, there were no transactions,
arrangement or contracts of significance subsisting in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, directly or indirectly, and
in which any Director or Supervisor (or an entity connected with any Director or

Supervisor) had a material interest.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company

or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year 2016, none of the Directors or their associates had any competing interests
in any business that constitutes or may constitute direct or indirect competition with the

Company's businesses.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors, Supervisors
and member of senior management of our Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of our Company and our any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including those taken or
deemed as their interests and short position in accordance with such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register kept by the Company referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to

the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Company class of shares
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Chief Executive Number of BENER R HER
EE/EE/BRTK Types of Shares  Nature of interest securities BREDHT BREDL
ABHA R4 &R BEHE EHHE (%) (%)
Mr. Mo Kit' H Shares Interest in controlled corporation 75,000,000 (L) 16.64% 3321%
EAELE H & REtAEER 75,000,000 (L) 16.64% 33.21%
(L) - Long position (L) —#HE
Note: Bfst -

Mr. Mo Kit owned 100% equity interest in North & South Brother Investment Holdings
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by North & South

Brother Investment Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors, Supervisors or member of senior management of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or our any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including those taken or deemed as their
interests and short position in accordance with such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register kept by
the Company referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code,

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the
persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors or member of the senior management of
the Company) who have an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRRROMOER

RNI6F12A318 RARRAESHMA T
SINT(RRRIZES  EFHRREBABR
IR AR AR PR BRIEES
BREEEBIEXVEELREIDBRALD AR
BOERIAR  ARBRBBEEFRBERK
Bl 336 AT RERNRARN B LM ER

Approximate
percentage of Approximate
shareholding in percentage of

the total share  shareholding in

capital of the the relevant

Company class of shares

ERARE HRER

Number of BENER RO R

Name of Substantial Shareholders Types of Shares  Nature of interest securities RN BAED

TERRER iSrEY] EHEME #EHE (%) (%)

The Parent Company Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%

[SYNS) NERK ERBAA 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%

Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment*? Domestic Shares  Interest in controlled 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
corporation

MERGHEXRE REK XA EEER 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
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Approximate
percentage of Approximate
shareholding in percentage of

the total share  shareholding in

capital of the the relevant

Company class of shares

FARARE L]

Number of BENER R 0K

Name of Substantial Shareholders Types of Shares  Nature of interest securities BRBSH R
TERRER R BEME EHHE (%) (%)
Shenzhen HEC Industrial Domestic Shares  Interest in controlled 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
corporation
AITRE R EE NER Rt LR R 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Domestic Shares  Interest in controlled 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
Electric Industrial Co, Ltd. ? corporation
AFEREAEBHETEXERAR NERK R EEER 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
Technology Development Co., Ltd.? corporation
RERB AR RRRERARRA) AEK REHEEER 225,000,000 (L) 49.91% 100.00%
Mr. Zhang Zhongneng® Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
corporation
RS NER R LR ER 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
Ms. Guo Meilan* Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
corporation
PRt NER R EEER 225,000,000 (L) 4991% 100.00%
North & South Brother Pharmacy Investment H Shares Beneficial owner 75,000,000 (L) 16.64% 3321%
Company Limited

Bl REEREBR AR HR BRBEBA 75,000,000 (L) 16.64% 33.21%
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total share

capital of the

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the relevant

Company class of shares

FARRE Lk

Number of BENER R 0K

Name of Substantial Shareholders Types of Shares  Nature of interest securities BRBSH R

TERRER R BEME EHHE (%) (%)

North & South Brother Investment Holdings Limited® H Shares Interest in controlled 75,000,000 (L) 16.64% 3321%
corporation

North & South Brother Investment Hx Rt LR R 75,000,000 (L) 16.64% 3321%

Holdings Limited®

Ample Market Investment Limited H Shares Beneficial owner 23847914 (L) 5.29% 10.56%

R ERRAA H & ERBAA 23,847,914 (L) 5.29% 10.56%

Silver Knight Investment Ltd. (Cayman) ¢ H Shares Interest in controlled 23847914 (1) 529% 10.56%
corporation

Silver Knight Investment Ltd. (Cayman)® HR Rt LR ER 23,847914 (L) 5.29% 10.56%

New Horizon Master IV Investment Ltd. (Cayman) ¢ H Shares Interest in controlled 23847914 (L) 5.29% 10.56%
corporation

New Horizon Master IV Investment Ltd. (Cayman)®  H R LR ER 23,847914 (L) 5.29% 10.56%

Apsif Investment Ptd Ltd® H Shares Interest in controlled 23847914 (L) 5.29% 10.56%
corporation

Apsif Investment Ptd Ltd? HR REHEEER 23,847,914 (L) 5.29% 10.56%

Champion Zone Investment Limited H Shares Beneficial owner 11,959,765 (L) 2.65% 5.30%

BERERRAA H & ERBAA 11959765 (L) 2.65% 5.30%

Kingsley Investment Ltd. (Cayman)’ H Shares Interest in controlled 11,959,765 (L) 2.65% 530%
corporation

Kingsley Investment Ltd. (Cayman)’ H Rt LR ER 11,959,765 (L) 265% 5.30%
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Approximate
percentage of Approximate
shareholding in percentage of

the total share  shareholding in

capital of the the relevant

Company class of shares

FARARE L]

Number of BENER R 0K

Name of Substantial Shareholders Types of Shares  Nature of interest securities BRBSH R

TERRER R BEME EHHE (%) (%)

Raisson Capital LP. (Cayman) ’ H Shares Interest in controlled 11,959,765 (L) 2.65% 5.30%
corporation

Raisson Capital LP. (Cayman)’ HR REHEEER 11,959,765 (L) 2.65% 5.30%

Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited H Shares Beneficial owner 15,503,000 (L) 344% 6.87%

Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited H & ERAA 15,503,000 (L) 3.44% 6.87%

Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co,, Ltd£ H Shares Interest in controlled 15,503,000 (L) 344% 6.87%
corporation

Ningbo Sanxing Medical Flectric Co,, Ltd¢ H & Rt LR ER 15,503,000 (L) 344% 6.87%

AUX Holdings Co, Ltd. ® H Shares Interest in controlled 15,503,000 (L) 344% 6.87%
corporation

Aux Holdings Co., Ltd£ H % RIEH)EERER 15,503,000 (L) 344% 6.87%

Mr. Zheng Jianjiang? H Shares Interest in controlled 15,503,000 (L) 344% 6.87%
corporation

BET A H & R EEER 15,503,000 (L) 3.44% 6.87%

Ms. He Yiju’ H Shares Interest of spouse 15,503,000 (L) 344% 6.87%

MEHIL H & [y 15,503,000 (L) 3.44% 6.87%

h e R REREREERARAT H Shares Other 11,705,490 (L) 2.60% 5.18%

hEERREREEEARAA H & Hit 11,705,490 (L) 2.60% 5.18%

China International Capital Corporation Limited'® H Shares Interest in controlled 11,705,490 (L) 2.60% 5.18%
corporation

hEERERRNERRR " Hi& REHEEER 11,705,490 (L) 2.60% 5.18%

(L) - Long position (L) —#E



72

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEWRE

Notes:

The Shareholding information of the Shareholders as at 3|1 December 2016 are based on the
information recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2016, Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment owned 60.70% equity
interest in the Parent Company, therefore Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by the Parent Company. Shenzhen HEC Industrial owned
100% equity interest in Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment, therefore Shenzhen HEC
Industrial is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Linzhi HEC
Pharmaceutical Investment. Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co.,
Ltd. owned 42.34% equity interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial and 58% equity interest in
Shaoguan Xinyuneng Industrial Investment Company Limited, which owned 27.01% equity
interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial, therefore Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng
Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested
by Shenzhen HEC Industrial. Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology
Development Co., Ltd. owned 30.66% equity interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial and 42%
equity interest in Shaoguan Xinyuneng Industrial Investment Company Limited, which owned
27.01% equity interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial, therefore Ruyuan Yao Autonomous
County Xinjing Technology Development Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares
which are interested by Shenzhen HEC Industrial.

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Zhang Zhongneng (“Mr. Zhang") owned 99.69% equity
interest in Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd., therefore
Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Ruyuan Yao

Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd..

As at 31 December 2016, Ms. Guo Meilan (“Ms. Guo") owned 99.51% equity interest in
Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology Development Co., Ltd. therefore
Ms. Guo is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Ruyuan Yao
Autonomous County Xinjing Technology Development Co., Ltd.. Ms. Guo is the spouse of
Mr. Zhang and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Mr. Zhang
under the SFO.

bt
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As at 31 December 2016, North & South Brother Investment Holdings Limited owned
100% equity interest in North & South Brother Pharmacy Investment Company Limited and
is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by North & South Brother

Pharmacy Investment Company Limited.

As at 31 December 2016, Silver Knight Investment Ltd. (Cayman) owned 100% equity
interest in Ample Market Investment Limited and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares which are interested by Ample Market Investment Limited. New Horizon Master
IV Investment Ltd. (Cayman) owned 45% equity interest in Silver Knight Investment Ltd.
(Cayman) and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Silver Knight
Investment Ltd. (Cayman). Apsif Investment Ptd Ltd owned 50.2% equity interest in Silver
Knight Investment Ltd. (Cayman) and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are

interested by Silver Knight Investment Ltd. (Cayman).

As at 31 December 2016, Kingsley Investment Ltd. (Cayman) owned 100% equity interest
in Champion Zone Investment Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
are interested by Champion Zone Investment Limited. Raisson Capital L.P. (Cayman) owned
100% equity interest in Kingsley Investment Ltd. (Cayman) and is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which are interested by Kingsley Investment Ltd. (Cayman).

As at 31 December 2016, Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co,, Ltd. owned 100% equity
interest in Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited and is deemed to be interested
in the Shares which are interested by Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited.
AUX Holdings Co,, Ltd. and Mr. Zheng Jianjiang owned 37.54% and 19.61% equity interest
in Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. respectively. Mr. Zheng Jianjiang owned 70%
equity interest in AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. Therefore, AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. and Mr. Zheng
Jianjiang are deemed to be interested in Shares which are interested by Ningbo Sanxing
Medical Electric Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2016, Ms. He Yiju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang and is deemed to
be interested in the Shares which are interested by Mr. Zheng Jianjiang under the SFO.
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0. As at 31 December 2016, China International Capital Corporation Limited owned [00%
equity interest in P& B BRI EEILBR L and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares which are interested by P & B 1ERIEREETRER AT

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors were not aware of
any interests or short positions owned by any persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company which are required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which are required to be recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of all or any substantial part

of our business was entered into by the Company or existed in 2016.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted certain non-exempt connected transactions during the year.

Connected Transactions

On 16 December 2016, the Company entered into the capital increase agreement with
the Parent Company (a substantial shareholder of the Company), pursuant to which, the
Company conditionally agreed to issue and allot, and the Parent Company conditionally
agreed to subscribe in cash for, an aggregate of 1,200,000 new Domestic Shares at the
subscription price of RMBI16.12 per new Domestic Share. The main purpose of the
Proposed Subscription is to enable the Parent Company to apply for certain preferential
tax payment arrangement when it disposes of its entire equity interest in our Company
to Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (BR RGN EHIER R HBER A
7)) in accordance with relevant PRC regulations. For details, please refer to the sections
headed “(G) Reasons for and Benefit of the Proposed Subscription™ in the circular of the

Company dated 20 January 2017.

The Subscription has completed on [0 February 2017. The net proceeds from the
Subscription was approximately RMB18.92 million. The Company intended to apply the
net proceeds from the Subscription to supplement the general working capital of the

Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has conducted certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions with the
Parent Company and subsidiaries of Shenzhen HEC Industrial, a substantial shareholder of

the Company, during the year:
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FEHERS

ARERFRERRARAARNEERTR
RENMBRAETTETHREHEBER
LR

Actual transaction

Annual caps value in 2016
for 2016 (RMB million)
(RMB million) R2016 FH

Connected transactions under Connected persons WI6FFELR ERXZE
HERZER BEAL (AE®EER) (AR®E&T)
Energy Purchase Parent Company 8356 6.288
Yichang HEC Power Plant Co,, Ltd.
R SN
HERGHXANEERRAT]
Purchase of Packaging Materials and Yichang HEC Power Plant Co,, Ltd 16417 12.880
Chemical Raw Materials Shaoguan HEC Packaging and Printing Co,, Ltd.
RO L RICBEH BERBAANERARAA
HRERG I BEHRERLR
Purchase of APIs Parent Company 19.000 3990
IRAB IR 2 =YNS]

Framework Energy Procurement Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework energy procurement
agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial in relation to the purchase of electricity
and steam from Shenzhen HEC Industrial and its subsidiaries from time to time. The
framework energy procurement agreement took effect upon the Listing Date and shall be

valid for a period of three years ended in 2017.

ERBER R
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Pricing Policy

According to the framework energy procurement agreement, the price for the electricity
to be charged under the framework energy procurement agreement was determined
with reference to the official written reply issued by Yidu Price Bureau (E#8m#{E
[®) in response to the pricing enquiry of the electricity and steam submitted by Yichang
HEC Power Plant Co., Ltd. in 2011 (the "Reply”), which provided the reference price
of electricity of RMBO0.383 per kWh. The price for the steam to be charged under the
framework energy procurement agreement will be determined pursuant to the price
range of RMB85 per ton to RMBI35 per ton as prescribed by Yidu Price Bureau in the
Reply.

Framework Packaging and Chemical Materials Purchase Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework packaging and chemical
materials purchase agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial in relation to the purchase
of certain packaging and chemical materials from Shenzhen HEC Industrial and/
or its associates (other than the Group) for the packaging and manufacturing of our
pharmaceutical products. The framework packaging and chemical materials purchase
agreement took effect upon the Listing Date and shall be valid for a period of three years
ended in 2017.

Pricing Policy

According to the framework packaging and chemical materials purchase agreement,
when selecting supplier of the packaging and chemical materials, the Company obtains
quotations from our connected person as well as from at least two independent
third party suppliers. During the Reporting Period, the price and terms offered by our
connected person were fair and reasonable and comparable to those offered by such

independent third party suppliers.

Framework API Purchase Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework APl purchase agreement
with Shenzhen HEC Industrial for the purchase of certain APIs from Shenzhen HEC
Industrial and/or its subsidiaries (other than the Group) for the production of our
pharmaceutical products, mainly azithromycin, clarithromycin and roxithromycin products.
The framework APl purchase agreement took effect upon the Listing Date and shall be

valid for a period of three years ended in 2017.
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Pricing Policy

According to the framework AP purchase agreement, when selecting supplier of the AP,
our Company obtains quotations from our connected person as well as from at least two
independent third party suppliers. As our Company is also engaged in manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products industry, we are familiar with the market price of relevant APls
required for the production. During the Reporting Period, the price and terms offered by
our connected person were fair and reasonable and comparable to those offered by such

independent third party suppliers.

Review by and Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected

transactions, and confirmed that such transactions were:

() carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i

made on normal commercial terms or better (as defined in the Listing Rules); and

(iif)

carried out according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements, which

are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

External auditor’s report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing the auditor's findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on page 77 of the Annual Report in accordance with
Main Board Listing Rule [4A.56. A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 25 of the

Financial Statements.
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Apart from the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions as disclosed
in this Annual Report, none of the related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules,

which are subject to announcement or independent shareholders” approval requirements.

NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

The Company had entered into a non-competition agreement on 6 December 2015 (the
“Non-Competition Agreement”) with the Controlling Shareholders, under which our
Controlling Shareholders agreed not to, and to procure its subsidiaries (other than the
Group) not to, compete with us in our businesses and granted us options to acquire the
businesses of production and sale of APIs and overseas sale of pharmaceutical products
operated by the Parent Company and/or its subsidiaries (other than the Group) and

certain future new business.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Agreement for disclosure in this report during the

Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-competition
Agreement and had determined that the Controlling Shareholders have not been in

breach of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) did not make any decisions in relation to whether to exercise
or terminate an option or a right of first refusal and take up or waive any business

opportunity.

STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENT

We refer to the section headed “Business” in the prospectus of the Company dated
IS5 December 2016. As disclosed in the prospectus, we have entered into the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial, pursuant to which we have a pre-
emptive right to acquire the right to manufacture and sell new pharmaceutical products
being developed by HEC Research Group. During the year of 2016, in consideration
of the R&D progress of new products conducted by the HEC Research Group and the
Company's product strategy, the Company didn't exercise the pre-emptive right under

the Strategic Cooperation Agreement.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total amount of procurement from the
five largest suppliers of the Company accounted for 43.0% of the total amount of
procurement of the year. Among the five largest suppliers for the year of 2016, Yichang
HEC Power Plant Co., Ltd. and Shaoguan HEC Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd. are
subsidiaries of Shenzhen HEC Industrial; the single largest supplier was the Parent
Company and our purchase from the Parent Company accounted for 12.6% of the total

purchase amount during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total amount of sales to the five largest
customers of the Company accounted for 26.8% of the total revenue of sales of the year.
The sales to the largest customers accounted for 8.1% of the total revenue of sales of the

year.

Save as disclosed above, during the year 2016, to the knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors, Supervisors, their close associates, or Shareholders of the Company (which,
to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the number of issued Shares
of the Company) had interests in the five largest suppliers or customers of the Company

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year of 2016 had the

Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance with the
Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance
been entered into for the services provided by the Controlling Shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the note 5(b) to the Financial Statements for detailed information on the

retirement and employee benefits scheme.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

As a company listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company always strives to maintain
a high level of corporate governance and complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained a public float of no less than 25% of the
issued shares as at the date of this Annual Report, which was in line with the requirement
under the Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds from initial public offering was approximately HK$1,255.5 million (net of
issue expenses) before exercise of over-allotment option. As at 3|1 December 2016,
approximately HK$116.2 million has been utilized, among which: (a) approximately
HK$0.4 million was used to construct a new oral formulation production plant; (b)
approximately HK$0.8 million was used to construct a new insulin production plant; (c)
approximately HK$24.2 million was used in promotional and marketing activities; and
(d) approximately HK$90.8 million, was used for working capital and general corporate
purposes. The Company intends to use the rest of the proceeds as stated in the section

headed "Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated |5 December 2015,

On 17 January 2016, the over-allotment option as disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated 15 December 2015 was partial exercised. The proceeds from partial
exercise of the over-allotment option was approximately HK$2.4 million. As at 31
December 2016, such proceeds have not been used. The proceeds will be used as

intended.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material importance is

known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company includes three non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Tang Jianxin, Mr. Tang Xinfa and Mr. Lee Chi Ming. With professional qualification
and experience in finance, Mr. Tang Jianxin was appointed as the chairman of the audit
committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make independent
recommendations on the effectiveness of our financial reporting procedures, internal
control and risk management systems and maintaining good relationship with external
auditors of the Group, so as to assist the Board, supervise the audit process and perform
other responsibilities and related duties assigned by the Board. The audit committee will
meet with the external auditors of the Company and in-house auditors, and review their
plans, internal audit procedures, their results of audits and review of the risk management

and internal supervision system.

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the Group's 2016 annual results
announcement, the Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2016 prepared in accordance with the IFRS.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the environment
and the society. In recognition of the potential climate impact due to manufacturing
of pharmaceutical products, the Company strives to enhance the environmental
performance of its pharmaceutical products manufacturing and development through
eco-friendly operational measures as well as supporting a number of external charters
with regard to energy efficiency and carbon reduction. In addition, during the Reporting
Period, the Group had continually increased investment in upgrading its technology,
improved production process, focused on the establishment of drug quality system,
extended the life cycle of pharmaceutical products and lowered the cost in order to
offer safe, efficient, affordable products and services. The Group constantly strengthened
environment protection, optimized the production process and improved the utilization
rate of the production facilities for the purposes of energy saving, emission reduction and
environment protection. The Group emphasized harmonious development with nature to
protect the sustainable development of the environment. The Group also improved clean
production as well as environmental protection construction, and proactively supported

environmental protection and charitable matters in the community.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory requirements
and the risk of noncompliance with such requirements could lead to the termination
of operating licences. The Group has been allocating system and staff resources to
ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and to maintain cordial working
relationships with regulators effectively through effective communications. During the year
of 2016, the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant rules and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company, including but not limited to the
Company Law, the Securities Law of the PRC, the Code of Corporate Governance for
Listed Companies in China, the Listing Rules, the Law of the PRC on the Administration
of Drugs, the Measures for the Administration of Drug Registration and the Good

Manufacture Practice of Drugs.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that our employees, customers and business associates are
keys to our sustainability journey. We strive to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging our employees, providing quality services for our customers, collaborating with

business partners and supporting our community.

The Company places significant emphasis on human capital. The Company provides a
fair workplace, promoting non-discrimination and diversity to our staff, together with
competitive remuneration and benefits, as well as a range of opportunities for career
advancement based on employees' merits and performance. The Company administers
its employee health and safety management system and ensures the adoption of the
principles across the Group. The Company provides regular trainings for staff to keep
them abreast of the latest developments in the market and industry, in the form of both

internal trainings and trainings provided by experts from external organizations.

To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-oriented culture within the
Company, we take ‘Customer First' as one of our Core Values. We value the feedback
from customers through daily communication, regular inspections and etc. We have also
established the mechanism about customer service, support and complaints. When dealing
with a customer complaint, we treat it as an opportunity to improve our relationship
with the customer, addressing the concern in a timely manner and in accordance with

international standards.
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We believe that our suppliers are equally important in driving quality delivery of our
products. We proactively collaborate with our business partners (including suppliers and
contractors) to deliver quality sustainable products and services. We have developed
included certain requirements in our standard tender documents. These requirements
include regulatory compliance, labour practices, anti-corruption and other business ethics.
We assure the performance of our suppliers through supplier approval process and by
conducting factory audits/site visits and spot checks on the delivered goods at site during

the contractual periods.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been audited by KPMG who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Company's auditors
will be proposed for shareholders’ approval at the 2016 AGM. The Company did not
change the auditor for the years of 2015 and 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Summary of results of operation and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 3 in the Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board

YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

TANG Xinfa

Chairman

Hubei, the PRC

20 March 2017
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In 2016, all members of the Board of Supervisors complied with the requirement of the
Company Law of the PRC (the “Company Law"), the Articles of Association, the Rules
of the Procedures of the Board of Supervisors as well as relevant laws and regulations to
diligently and honestly perform their duties. They independently exercised their power
under the law to ensure the standard operation of the Company and protect the interests
of the Company and the investors. The Board of Supervisors supervised the Company's
operation plans, use of proceeds from financing activities, connected transactions,
production and operation activities of the Company, financial position and performance
of duty of directors and senior management of the Company as well as the operation
of subsidiaries, and facilitated the compliant operation and healthy development of the
Company. The report of main works of the Board of Supervisors for the year is set forth

below:

[.  BASIC ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY’S OPERATION AND
MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES AND PERFORMANCE IN 2016

In 2016, the Board of Supervisors strictly complied with the requirement of the Company
Law, the Articles of Association, the Rules of the Procedures of the Board of Supervisors
as well as relevant laws and regulations to honestly perform its supervise duties in
pragmatically protecting the interests and rights of the Company and the many minority

shareholders.

After having attended each of the Board meetings and general meetings in 2016, the Board
of Supervisors is of the opinion that the Board has earnestly implemented resolutions
of the general meetings and faithfully performed fiduciary duties, it has not conducted
any acts which would damage the interests of the Company and the shareholders. Each
resolution of the Board has been in compliance with the requirement of the Company
Law and other laws and regulations as well as the Articles of Association. The Board of
Supervisors supervised the production and operation activities of the Company during
its session period. It considers that the management members of Company earnestly
implemented every resolutions of the Board with due diligence and conducted no acts of

violation in the course of business.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors held two meetings in aggregate:

()

@)

(1)

On 27 March 2016, the Board of Supervisors held its first meeting of 2016, on
which the following resolutions were considered and approved: Work Report
of Board of Supervisors for 2015, 2015 Final Accounts Report of the Company,
The Plan Regarding Dividend Distribution for 2015 and The Proposal Regarding

Continuing Connected Transactions for 2016;

On 14 August 2016, the Board of Supervisors held its second meeting of 2016,
on which the following resolutions were considered and approved: Interim Results
Announcement for the Period Ended 30 June 2016 and Interim Report for the
Period Ended 30 June 2016.

THE SUPERVISE OPINION FROM THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ON RELATED MATTERS OF THE COMPANY IN 2016

Financial Conditions of the Company

The Board of Supervisors of the Company conducted inspection with regard to
the financial conditions of the Company’s own segment and its subsidiaries after
having taken into account the actual situation of the Company in ways of hearing
reports from financial department and regular auditing and other methods, thus
strengthening the supervision over the Company's financial affairs. The Board of
Supervisors of the Company is of the view that the Company and each of its
subsidiaries have established their own independent financial departments with
separate financial books and have conducted auditing independently, and that
they have complied with Accounting Law as well as relevant financial regulations
and rules. In 2016, the financial management of the Company and each of its
subsidiaries was carried out on a standard basis and the accounting statements gave
a true and accurate picture of the actual situation of the Company and each of its

subsidiaries.
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(2)  Details of Connected Transactions

During the Reporting Period of the current year, the ordinary connected

transactions between the Company and Connected Parties have all been

considered and approved on the Board meetings and general meetings of the

Company. The connected transactions were carried out in accordance with

contracts or agreements in arm's length with no damages to the interests of the

Company.

COMPREHENSIVE OPINION FROM SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE ON
THE COMPANY'’S SITUATION IN 2016

(M

o)

During the Reporting Period, Members of Supervisory Committee honestly
and earnestly performed duties and supervised the Board's performance of
duties and its implementations of the Company's decision procedures by
attending Board meetings. The Supervisory Committee is of the view that
each resolution and decision procedure has been arrived by the Board in
due compliance of the requirements of the Company Law, the Articles of
Association and the Rules of the Procedures of the Board Meetings and are

legal and effective.

During the Reporting Period, the senior management members of the
Company fulfilled their duties in accordance with the Articles of Association
and relevant laws and regulations of China. With aims to protect the
interests of the Company and its shareholders, they earnestly implemented
the resolutions of the Company's general meetings, fulfilled obligations of
fiduciary and due diligence so as to facilitate the Company to carry out a
standard operation, democratic decision, reasonable management, clear
targeting and continuing innovation, having achieved favourable economic

benefits without acts of violation.

The Supervisory Committee has honestly reviewed the financial reports
for 2016 and other relevant information. It considers that such reports give
a true and fair view of the Company's financial conditions and operating

results.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Opinion Regarding The Company's Self-Appraisal on Its Internal Control

The Company has, taking into account of the Company's actual situation,
established and developed an internal control system that covers all areas
of the Company according to the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules, Corporate Governance Regulations, Company Law and Articles of
Association. Such system has ensured that the Company's operating activities
are in a normal and ordinary course and has safeguarded the security and
integrity of the Company's assets. The institutional frame work of the internal
control of the Company in complete and the internal auditing department
and personnel is in place, which has ensured that the implementation of
and supervision over key activities under the Company's internal control are
sufficient and effective. In 2016, no circumstances under which the Company
would violate the internal control system of the Company occurred.
The Board of Supervisors considers that the Company's self-appraisal on
its internal control gives a comprehensive and true picture of the actual

situation of the internal control of the Company.
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Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
HUANG Fangfang
Hubei, the PRC

20 March, 2017
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report as set out in the

Company's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company always strive to maintain high standards of corporate governance to
enhance Shareholders' value and safeguard Shareholders' interests. The Company’s
corporate governance principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective

internal controls and accountability to Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in Appendix |4 of the

Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company will review its corporate governance practices regularly to ensure its

compliance with the corporate governance code.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its code regarding Directors’ and Supervisors' dealings in the Company's securities
(the “Model Code™).

The Company has made specific enquiry to all of the Directors and Supervisors and all of
the Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model

Code during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's strategic development, and
determining the objectives, business strategies and policies of the Group. The Board
also monitors and controls operating and financial performance in pursuit of the Group's
strategic objectives. The Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2016 and

as the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. JIANG Juncai
Mr. WANG Danjin
Mr. CHEN Yangui

Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Yingwei

Mr. MO Kit

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships

with each other.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors,

Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the Directors (including the non-executive Directors) has entered into a service
contract with the Company. The principal particulars of these service contracts are: (a)
each of the contracts is for a term of three years following each Director’s respective
appointment date; and (b) each of the contracts is subject to termination in accordance
with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with the

Avrticles of Association and the applicable rules.
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Up to the date of this report, the Board at all times complied with the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Director of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in

accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shall exercise the following functions and powers:

. To convene the general meetings, submit relevant matters to the general meetings

for passing, and report on its work to the Shareholders;

. To implement the resolution of the general meeting;

. To decide on the business plans and investment schemes of the Company;

. To formulate the Company's proposed annual financial budget and final accounts;

. To formulate the Company's profit distribution plan and plan for making up for
losses;

. To formulate proposals for the increase or reduction of the Company's registered

capital, and plans for the issue of corporate bonds or other securities and the listing

plan;

. To draw up plans for material assets acquisition or disposal, purchase of the

Company's Shares, or merger, demerger, dissolution or change of the form of the

Company;

. To decide on the establishment of the Company's internal management
organization;

. To appoint or remove the Company's general manager and secretary of the Board;

to appoint or remove other senior management officers pursuant to the general
manager's nominations, and to determine the abovementioned matters relating to

the remuneration, incentives and punishments of the senior management officers;
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To formulate the Company's basic management system;
To formulate proposals for any amendment to the Articles of Association;

To decide on the matters such as merger, division, reorganization or dissolution of

the Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries and subsidiaries;

To change the use of the placement to the extent beyond the decision of the

general meeting as required by laws and regulations;

To decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and to

appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

To propose at the general meetings a resolution in respect of candidates for

independent Directors and replacement of independent Directors;

To propose at the general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of

accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the Company;,

To hear the work report and inspect the work of the general manager;

To manage information disclosure of the Company;
To formulate the equity incentive plan;

Save as otherwise required to be decided by the general meetings under laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association, the Board exercises its power to make
decisions on external investments (including capital increase and equity transfer
of the invested enterprises), financing, risk management and trust management,

extemnal guarantees, etc;

To decide on other major affairs of the Company, save for matters to be resolved
at the general meetings as required by the PRC Company Law and the Articles of

Association;

To exercise other functions and powers as granted by the Articles of Association

or the general meetings of the Company; and

To conduct other matters as required by PRC laws and regulations.
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In addition, the Board undertakes corporate governance function includes:

. To establish and review the Company’s corporate governance policies and codes;

. To review and supervise the training and sustained professional development of the

Company's Directors, Supervisors and senior management officers;

. To review and supervise the Company's policies and codes in connection with

compliance with laws and regulatory requirements;

. To establish, review and supervise the codes of conduct and compliance handbook

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

. To review the Company’s compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices and the disclosures made in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board had reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and codes; the
training and sustained professional development of the Company's Directors, Supervisors
and senior management officers; the Company's policies and codes in connection with
compliance with laws and regulatory requirements and the Company's compliance with
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices and the disclosures made in the Corporate

Governance Report.

The Group’s management team, which possesses extensive operating experience and
industry knowledge, has been delegated by the Board with the authority and responsibility
for the day-to-day management of the Group. During the year, the Board considered and
approved the annual budget and its performance under management supervision together
with the business reports from the management. The Board also reviewed and approved
the final results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and other critical business
operations. The Board also assessed the internal control and the financial matters of the

Group.

In addition, this corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge

of its corporate governance function.
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OPERATION OF THE BOARD

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least 4 times each year. Such meetings

shall be convened by the Chairman of the Board.

In case of any of the followings, the Chairman of the Board shall convene an interim

meeting of the Board of Directors within 10 days:

. When proposed by Shareholders representing one tenth of voting rights or more;
. When proposed by one third of Directors or more;

. When the Chairman of the Board deems it necessary;

. When proposed by two or more independent Directors;

. When proposed by the Supervisory Committee; or

. When the General Manager proposes the convening of the interim meetings of the

Board of Directors.

To convene a regular or interim meeting of the Board of Directors, a written notice shall
be sent to all Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the date of a regular meeting
or 3 days prior to an interim meeting. By written consent of all Directors present at the
meeting, the above time limit may not be observed. The office or other department
designated by the Board of Directors is responsible for serving the written meeting notice
to all Directors and Supervisors by direct service, fax, e-mail or other means. If an interim
meeting of the Board of Directors needs to be held quickly due to urgent circumstances,
a meeting notice may be given at any time by telephone or other oral methods, provided

that the convener makes an explanation thereof at the meeting.

Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held only if more than one half of the
Directors are present. Each Director shall have one vote. Unless specified otherwise in
the laws, administrative regulations or the Articles of Association, resolutions of the Board

must be passed by more than half of all the Directors.

Directors shall not vote the resolution on the approval of contract, arrangement or
other suggestions that they or their associates maintain interests inside (which shall not
be included in the quorum of the relevant meetings). Even though such Directors claim
to vote, the votes will not be counted, unless otherwise specified in laws, administrative

regulations, relevant regulatory regulations or rules.
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In 2016, the Board held four meetings and the attendance records of Directors at the

Board meetings were as follows:

Name of Directors

R016F EZCERIT4EE ESHE
EZeeRNEMNRHNT

Meeting attended/Number of

Board meetings convened

HESE BHESETANR

BB

Mr. Tang Xinfa BELE
Mr. Zhu Yingwei REBRE
Mr. Jiang Juncai BErkE
Mr. Wang Danjin FrREE
Mr. Chen Yangui BREELE
Mr. Mo Kit ENRE
Mr. Tang Jianxin BRI
Mr. Fu Hailiang amEsE
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREE

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR

The Company has formulated a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new Directors to the Board. Nomination of new Director is first considered by the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and then
recommended to the Board for consideration. All newly nominated Directors are subject
to the approval of the Shareholders at the general meetings of the Company. Removal
of members of the Board are also subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the

Company's general meetings.

DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

The Directors are continually updated their knowledge on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefing and professional development for Directors will be arranged by the
Company where necessary. Individual Directors also participated in the courses relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further enhancement of
their professional development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or

reading relevant materials.

4/4
4/4
4/4
34
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that they could make
contribution to the Board based on their possessing of comprehensive professional
attainment. In 2016, the Directors are committed to complying with the provision A.6.5 of
the Code on Directors' training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional

development and provided a record of training they received.

The list below summaries the training received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 201 6:

TRERBE

ADFHBESLABENTELE  UBR
REHBEEOMSE B  ABERESEARE
PEBERENNRTAZEESELER - 1
016F EERRETTARIACSETES
Bl - 2BESHEL2EBENEREEE I
E AR 1% S EIMIE IR 8% o

UTHIESREZE206F 1283 BILFE
BEXHE

Reading materials like

Attending seminar, newspaper, journals and
conference and workshop updates relevant to
related to director’s duties corporate governance

Name of Directors HERESHEMEN BEER  fINEE - M8

EEnS MNE  BERAWRE EEEREREHRER

Mr. Tang Xinfa il e V V

Mr. Zhu Yingwei REBEE V \

Mr. Chen Yangui BRAEE LA \ \

Mr. Jiang Juncai BOT RS \ \

Mr. Mo Kit EAKE V v

Mr. Wang Danjin THEESE V \

Mr. Tang Jianxin BEMEE V V

Mr. Fu Hailiang TE=%E V \

Mr. Lee Chiming FERELE \ \
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

The roles and duties of the Chairman of the Board and the general manager of the
Company are separate and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in
the Articles of Association. Mr. Tang Xinfa and Mr. Jiang Juncai act as the Chairman of the

Board and the general manager of the Company respectively.
Mr. Tang Xinfa, the Chairman is entitled to exercise the following functions and powers:

. To preside over Shareholder’s general meetings, to convene and preside over

meetings of the Board of Directors;

. To procure and inspect the implementation of the resolutions of the Board of
Directors;
. To sign the share certificates, corporate bonds and other negotiable securities

issued by the Company;

. To sign important documents of the Board of Directors and other documents to
be signed by the legal representative of the Company, and to exercise the functions

and powers of the legal representative;

. To organize and establish various systems and harmonize the operation of the

Board of Directors;
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. To hear the regular or irregular work reports of the senior management officers of
the Company, and give guidance on the implementation of the resolutions of the

Board of Directors;
. To nominate the list of the secretary candidates of the Board of Directors; and

. Other functions and powers conferred by the laws, regulations or the Articles of

Association, and the Board of Directors.

Mr. Jiang Juncai, the general manager of the Company is responsible to the Board of

Directors and exercises the following functions and powers:

. To be in charge of the production, operation and management of the Company,

and report to the Board of Directors;

. To organize and implement the resolutions of the Board of Directors, annual

business plans and investment schemes of the Company;

. To prepare the annual financial budget plan, and final account plan of the Company,

and make recommendations to the Board of Directors;

. To prepare the basic management system and plan for establishment of the

Company's internal management organization;

. To formulate specific rules of the Company;

. To request the Board of Directors to engage or dismiss other senior management
officers; and

. To engage or dismiss the responsible managers except those who shall be engaged

or dismissed by the Board of Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The Company had
established three Board committees, being the Nomination Committee, Remuneration

and Appraisal Committee and Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lee
Chi Ming (an independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhu Yingwei (a non-executive
Director) and Mr. Fu Hailiang (an independent non-executive Director), among whom Mr.

Lee Chi Ming serves as the chairman of Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition of
the Board, assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors and make

recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of Directors.

The Company had adopted a diversification policy aims to set out the approach to
achieve the diversity of members of the Board to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. It
endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. All Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits

of diversity of the Board members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified criteria, including but not
limited to sex, age, cultural and education background, race, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and years of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the possible

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

In 2016, the Nomination Committee held one meeting and the attendance records of

Directors at the Nomination Committee meeting were as follows:

Name of Directors

REREE
ARAIERE L TR 4FEEXERT
AR ER S YHEAEABELE -
REZEEH=-RNEBANK  BIFTHELCE
UFNTES)  KREBRLECERTES)R
NERELE(BUFMTES)  APFTHL
EHERRZEENIRE

REZEEMIZRERERESSNNEA
Ko HEBUFRTESNBUMARNES
SREZAINERES -

ARBEERBZLCBE  BREINEZENK
EZcz B UMRAESENE - AD
AIARYTEXSTANETERENES - B
RN ERESSHRNEARAXBHFRAR
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NERERARNRRYZEHEFENES
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RAZBEBUSTEARS THRRETE
B BRESRRERN  Fik - XLRBE
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RWI6F REZEGEDBIT-AEE EF
HERAZEQEBRHMTHMT :

Meeting attended/Number of

Nomination Committee convened

HEEE BHREZEEEENY

EsnA

Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREE
Mr. Zhu Yingwei REBRE
Mr. Fu Hailiang amEsE

In 2016, the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in
accordance with the requirements as stipulated in the Code and concluded that the Board
comprised members with diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured balance and

safeguarded the interests of Shareholders as well as the public.
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Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Company had established a Remuneration and Appraisal Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 325 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Fu Hailiang (an independent
non-executive Director), Mr. Jiang Juncai (an executive Director) and Mr. Tang Jianxin
(an independent non-executive Director), among whom Mr. Fu Hailiang serves as the

chairman of Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee are to advise on
and formulate the remuneration and appraisal policy in respect of Directors, senior
management and other managing members of the Group and make recommendations to

the Board.

In 2016, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee held one meeting, at which the
resolutions in relation to the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
of the Company in 2015 and the remuneration policy for the executive Directors and
senior management for 2016 were discussed and proposed. The attendance records of

Directors at the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee meeting were as follows:

Name of Directors

%A—A— ‘Ai

FHEREREZES
ARAIERE EIAAE 325 RAR LA A
Wﬁw%ﬁﬁ%am?wmi%ME%ﬁéé
CUHIEAEEBERE  FHEEREE
SH=RKEANK - INEREECBLIFT
EX) BOIREBTER)RERFNLAE
(BUFHTES)  APNERAEHEHM
HERZBEMERE -
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EEHEFMRERZE QR ABMCHEN
T

Meeting attended/Number of
Remuneration and Appraisal

Committee convened

HEEE BHEmHE
EEpR EREEEERNE
Mr. Fu Hailiang ks /1
Mr. Jiang Juncai BHr s [/
Mr. Tang Jianxin BENEE 11

In 2016, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee assessed the performance of
executive Directors, reviewed the remuneration policy, considered and approved the
proposed 2017 Director’ s fees for executive Directors and made recommendation to the

Board on the Directors’ fees for non-executive Directors.

Remuneration of Directors and senior management

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating policies
on remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
each of the Directors for the year ended 3| December 2016 are set out in Note 6 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors) by bands for the

TRENHEZ2016F 12 A3 B LEERRE

year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below: AN TEREEAE(TERESR)NG
B :

Remuneration bands (RMB) Number of individuals

FHER(ARY) A"

Nil to $1.00 millon TE-HERL 6

Audit Committee ERERS

The Company had established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference in =~ AR FIBRE LR AIE 321 AR TR A

compliance with Rule 3.2 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code ek 14 BB EERTAKIEGREZES I

as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee consists of three HITHEABESE BEREEeHR=4KE

members, namely Mr. Tang Jianxin (an independent non-executive Director), Mr. Lee AR ERHAE(BUIERITES) 5

Chi Ming (an independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Tang Xinfa (a non-executive BAEBUFNTES) REFRELE(FER

Director), among whom Mr. Tang Jianxin serves as the chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting system
and interal control procedures of the Company, review the financial information of the

Company and consider issues relating to the external auditors and their appointment.

The work performed by the Audit Committee in 2016 included review of the annual
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015, interim results of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2016. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system and
making recommendation to the Board for improvement of internal control, credit control

and risk management.
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In 2016, the Audit Committee held two meetings and the attendance records of Directors

at the Audit Committee meetings were as follows:

Name of Directors

TRERBE

RWI6F  BRZESGEETRANEE &5
HEERZECEZNAMTENT

Meeting attended/Number of Audit

Committee convened

HEES ERERZEESSRNY

BB

Mr. Tang Jianxin BRI
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FERRE
Mr. Tang Xinfa BELE

In 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed, discussed and approved the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and the interim results for the period ended 30 June
2016. As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee also reviewed the auditor's
remuneration for 2015 and recommended the Board to re-appoint KPMG as the
Company's auditor for the year of 2016, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at

the 2016 annual general meeting.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended 3| December 2016. The Directors consider that the
Group has sufficient resources to continue its business for the foreseeable future and
are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Company's

ability to continue as a going concem.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements and other disclosures

required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company's

Financial Statements, which are put to the Board for approval.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the Company maintains
sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the Shareholders' investment and the
Group's assets at all times. In preparation for the Listing, we engaged an internal control
consultant to perform certain procedures in May 2015 in respect of assessing our internal
control. Upon completion of such procedures, the internal control consultant provided
us with a number of assessment results and the relevant recommendations, which we
have adopted in full. In particular, we have adopted a series of internal control policies,
procedures and programmes designed to achieve effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Highlights

of our internal control system include the following:

. Internal Audit. We put in place the internal audit charter that clearly states
the objectives, organisation, functions and responsibilities, working scope and
procedures of our internal audit functions. We established an internal audit
department that is responsible for internal auditing and execution of anti-
bribery measures in accordance with the internal audit charter. The intemal audit

department reports to our senior management and the Audit Committee.

. Listing Rules Compliance. We have adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to corporate
governance, connected transactions, notifiable transactions, inside information and
securities transactions by the Directors. We have designated staff to monitor our
compliance with Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations who have
the power to investigate relevant incidents if any and communicate with the related

authorities or advisers.

. Code of Conduct. Our code of conduct explicitly communicates to each employee
our values, acceptable criteria for decision-making and our ground rules for
behaviour. Our code of conduct also includes whistle-blowing policies to encourage
all employees to speak up against any sub-standard behaviour. We also established
an anti-money laundering management group and a related working group that
are responsible for monitoring and supervising the implementation of our code of

conduct and our anti-money laundering policies.
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The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group to ensure that major risks that
may impact on the Company's performance are appropriately identified and managed
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
These measures are regularly reviewed and updated.

The Board, on the basis of the target setting, identifies the risks in the process of internal
control through daily and regular assessment procedures and methods, classifies the risks
and prepares the Company's risk list. The Company understands its obligations under the
SFO and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should be
announced immediately after such information comes to our attention and/or it is the
subject of a decision unless it falls within the SFO safe harbours. Meanwhile, the Company
has set up an inside information management system, the insider internal reporting
obligations, reporting procedures and liability of disclosure of information of the personnel
concerned has been clearly stated, and the Company shall arrange self-examination in a
timely manner in accordance with the provisions of the relevant regulatory authorities.
The real-time monitoring performed by the Company may involve the inside information,
and should organize intermediary agencies to determine whether the information belongs
to an inside information and practical, if it has fulfilled the disclosure requirements, will
soon organize the disclosure and will strictly control the scope of the monitoring before
the disclosure, the volatility of share price will be monitored until the disclosure of inside
information is completed; if the disclosure requirements are not satisfied, the Company
will also maintain strict confidentiality. The main functions of the risk management and
internal control systems are to safeguard assets, to ensure proper maintenance of
accounting records and provide reliable financial reporting, and to ensure compliance with

relevant legislation and regulations.

The Company will review the internal control and risk management twice a year. The
Board has reviewed the internal control and risk management system for the year ended
31 December 2016 and confirmed its effectiveness and appropriateness.

The Company's internal audit function is performed by the Internal Audit and Risk
Department. It is responsible for conducting independent reviews of the appropriateness
and effectiveness of the Company's intemal control and risk management system. It also
assesses the risks inherent in particular business or functional areas, including fraud or
corruption, and conducts reviews or audits to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance that adequate governance and controls are in place to address such risks.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities
for the Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on page |13
to | 14.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid/payable to the

Company's external auditor, KPMG, is set out below:

BB e
RDAIINEDAZ SNED A B E 3h B 5 R B R R
HREFETHERENE 13 1 4ENBULZ
ZRIRE A -

TREVNEZ2016FNA3BILEEE - I
VA R NGRS G - g
FTREFEN -

Amount
RMB’000
&5
AR®T R

FRERRY
FEZ IR
EREE

Annual audit services
Non-audit services

Total fees

The non-audit services were included interim review service and capital verification

service.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable Shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions. The general meeting of the Company

provide a forum for face-to-face communication between the Board and the Shareholders.

Shareholder rights

Right to propose to convene extraordinary general meeting
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholders request for the convening of the
extraordinary general meeting or meeting of class Shareholders shall follow the procedure

below:

Shareholders individually or jointly holding a total of 10% or more of the shares carrying
the right to vote at the meeting sought to be held may sign one or more written requests
of identical form and substance requesting the Board to convene an shareholders’
extraordinary general meeting or a meeting of shareholders of different classes and state
the subject of the meeting. The Board shall convene an shareholders' extraordinary
general meeting or a class meeting as soon as possible after having received the above-
mentioned written request. The shareholding referred to above shall be calculated as of

the day on which the written request is made.
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If the Board fails to issue an announcement on the convening of meeting within 30 days
after receiving the above-mentioned written request, the proposing shareholders are
entitled to submit a written request to the Supervisory Committee on the convening of

shareholders” extraordinary general meeting or meeting of the class shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to issue an announcement on the convening of meeting
within 30 days after receiving the above-mentioned written request, the shareholders
individually or collectively representing 10% or more of the Company's voting shares at
the proposed meeting for at least consecutive 90 days may convene the meeting on their
own within four months after the Board receives the request. The convening procedures
shall be the same as the procedures for the convening of shareholders general meeting by

the Board.

Shareholders’ right to propose resolutions at the general meeting

Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3% or more of the total voting shares of
the Company shall be entitled to propose an interim resolution and submit the same to
the convener. The convener shall issue a supplemental announcement of shareholders'
general meeting within 2 days after the receipt of such proposal and submit such interim
resolution to the shareholders’ general meeting for consideration and approval. The
contents of an interim resolution shall fall within the authority of the shareholders’ general

meeting and maintain topics for discussion and specific matters to be resolved.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to communicate

with the Company:

Telephone number 86-769-81768866

Company website www.hec-changjiang.com

E-mail address pansanxiong82@dyg-hec.com

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

There had been no significant changes in constitutional documents of the Company during

the year ended 3| December 201 6.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pan Sanxiong and Ms. Ng Wing Shan act as joint company secretaries of the
Company. For the biography of Mr. Pan and Ms. Ng, please refer to the section headed

“Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.

Ms. Ng is an assistant vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited and her
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Pan Sanxiong. In compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Mr. Pan and Ms. Ng has undertaken no less

than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 201 6.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company had entered into the Non-Competition Agreement on 6 December 2015
with the Controlling Shareholders. Please refer to page 78 of this Annual Report for

details,

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-competition
Agreement and had determined that the Controlling Shareholders have not been in

breach of the Non-competition Undertaking for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of YiChang HEC Changjiang

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YiChang HEC Changliang
Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. ("the Company”) and its subsidiaries (‘the Group”) set out on
pages | 16 to 194, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3|1 December 2016 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code™) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the People’s Republic of
China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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Timing of revenue recognition

AR B B

BRI BHZMTFIRE 14| ERIBFHEE

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 14/.

The Key Audit Matter
ARELEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEGPNEERR %

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises sales of pharmaceutical
products to a large number of distributors.

ZEENERUATERRRAZED HBHEERANBA

The Group enters into standard sales contracts with each distributor
and manufactures and sells its products in accordance with the terms
agreed in the sales contracts.
ZEEEEDHERRENHER
- HEEm -

R AR 1 A (R 40 7E O R0 A

Once the products leave the warehouse and are delivered to the
location designated by the distributor, the risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are considered to have been transferred to
the distributor and revenue is recognised accordingly.
BEMEREBLEXAE N HBETENMEE  BRmAELN
TERRMBMERSCEREDHE  ZREBLERZENR
NG

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of revenue recognition

included the following;

HMARHEE R VAR RN ERFEEEE
0 obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,

implementation and operating effectiveness of management's

key internal controls in refation to revenue recognition'

© TERAFEEEZWARRREEBOEH AR - BT
FEITRAMIL
0 inspecting sales contracts with customers, on a sample basis,

to understand the terms of the sales transactions including
the terms of delivery and acceptance and any sales return
arrangements to assess the Group's revenue recognition
policies with reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards;
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The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HRENSER EERTNEERE
The Group's sales contracts are standardised and do not include | ° inspecting goods delivery notes and logistics records, on a

terms relating to discounts or rebates and do not permit sales return
except for where the products are damaged or defective.
SERADHEBRIOGRCHEESR TR HRTRE IR K
e REARAT KEREERAIN TRXEFAFAMNER
5o

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group and therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

MBI ERRANEREHE —EHRENFE  ARES
BARZEEBRROXERS . FEEEERBRAERK
ABEREHAZENE B IRAEMEARER

sample basis, to assess whether revenue transactions recorded
just before and after the financial year end date had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period on the basis of

the terms of sale as set out in the sales contracts;

© BEAMEREEREBERMRLE  URELHEEE

BEXRAMRNEZRAZTRIEHE S RRTEMNERC
B LR R AR
. inspecting underlying documentation for manual journal entries

and adjustments relating to revenue raised during the year
which were considered to be material or met other specific
risk-based criteria; and

© REELXWARBORZSEAXNTE E M5 ERRE
PFRF T8 R B R ORI + &

0 inspecting actual sales returmns and credit notes recorded after
the financial year end and evaluating whether the related
adjustments to revenue had been recorded in the appropriate
financial period.
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Recoverability of trade receivables

L R % 49 T (2] i e

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 30-132.

BRI AR IR EN G 14 RE 130F 132 BRI S 5HE

The Key Audit Matter
BRELEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEGPNERL A

The carrying value of the Group's gross trade receivables as at
31 December 2016 totalled RMB286 million, which included an
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB 4 million.

2016F 12 A3 BZEENEREFRERBER286EARE -
EP B2 EMEERERNBUIRT0I4EARE -

The Group's allowance for doubtful debts is based on management's
estimate of the recoverability of individual trade receivables with
reference to the ageing of overdue balances, repayment histories of
individual debtors, existing customer-specific and market conditions
and the fulfilment of repayment arrangements agreed with specific
debtors, all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.
ZEEHEREFNHERENEEBY ER YR BT
HORHAE © a@F%FTﬁ%% m%w RPWESLBRER
EPEANTSERARERERPRINERLANETERS
REFHESRIRFOA RN - AEREBSRT —FRE
THREEEHIE -

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade receivables

included the following;

BRI AT @Rt E R TR 0R

c obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the

calculation of the allowance for doubtful debts;

« TEHERIFARERES  EHRRERERHE
IREFIERAAO BA SR M BRIE M A0 RET - BT BTV A AL
. assessing the classification of individual balances in the trade

receivable ageing report by comparing the details in the trade
receivable ageing report with the underlying goods delivery

notes and invoices, on a sample basis;

© BBEERETR LUEKEFRERBSNHABOLEER
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The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HRENSR EERTNEERE
We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key audit | obtaining an understanding of the basis of management's

matter because of the inherent uncertainty in assessing if trade
receivables will be recovered in full and because the assessment of
the allowance for doubtful debts requires the exercise of significant
management judgement.

I R R B R R — AR R E S FR - AR
WEERR B AZBRENFEFEEEN TN - A&
BRSO YR F R EAE RN IR HIE

judgements about the recoverability of individual overdue
balances and evaluating the allowance for doubtful debts made
by management for these individual balances with reference
to the industry in which the debtors are operating, the ageing
of overdue balances, historical and post year-end payment
records and repayment arrangements agreed with specific
debtors. This included inspecting relevant correspondence with
individual debtors;

« THRERE AR A E EUR IR R E A R AR
BREROKE  GLKBEERRERMENTEMRR - A
HEBERGENRER - BLRARERER  EFER
BRTNERZHS - BRREEEMNTHNLR

. assessing the historical accuracy of the estimates made by
the management for the allowance for doubtful debts by
comparing the level of provision made by management as
at 31 December 2015 with the actual new provisions, write
offs and recoveries in respect of trade receivables as at 3|
December 2015 during the current year; and

« BBHBREEEBE0ISF2A3 BENEREGNE
BRETE20155F 12 A31 A RBERSBREHN R ERRRRER
AR R REEER - FHEEEERRERRIUER
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0 comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to trade receivable balances at 3|
December 2016 with bank statements and relevant underlying
documentation, on a sample basis.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report

thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such intermnal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for

overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Lam
Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2017
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for the year ended 31 December 2016

HBZE2016F12A31 BILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZ51)
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETR ARETT
Revenue RS 3 941,504 692910
Cost of sales HERAK (214,234) (178334)
Gross profit E£7 727,270 514576
Other revenue H i A 4(@a) 15,998 15,801
Distribution costs GaE = 1DWN (180,887) (77,287)
Administrative expenses THEERX (132,711) (120,171)
Other net income H WA TR 4(b) 30,629 6,686
Profit from operation R T 460,299 339,605
Finance costs B 5(a) (7,233) (24,899)
Profit before taxation BRBLAT R 5 453,066 314,706
Income tax gt 6 (72,469) (48,956)
Profit for the year attributable to equity AAREGEREABEFERRT
shareholders of the Company 380,597 265,750
Total comprehensive income for the year ERREEREA
attributable to equity shareholders BEER2ERERAE
of the Company 380,597 265,750
Basic and diluted earnings per share SREAREBERF 9 RMB0.84 RMB0.79

The notes on pages 122 to 194 form part of these financial statements. Details of S I BEZE 4B 2 MEBRZSHHEBRER —
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the B o ARE AN R A R SRR AR

year are set out in Note 22(b). BFE  SRKIE20) °
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at 31 December 2016
R2016F 12 A31A

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZ51)

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BT ARET T ARBTT
Non-current assets *RBEE
Fixed assets TEE
— Property, plant and equipment — W% BERSE 10 413,915 378,801
— Interests in leasehold land held for own — RIS ERE
use under operating leases BRzHEE T iERS 10 81,767 83,699
495,682 462,500
Prepayments BANTIE 12 422,544 294,599
Deferred tax assets BEREMIEEE 21(b) 11,415 10,392
Total non-current assets FRBEELHE 929,641 767491
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 3 110,624 154,628
Trade and other receivables 85 R YA 14 337,149 260,568
Time deposits EHER 5 238,988 33,000
Pledged deposits EERER 16 2,635 8,077
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeFEER 17 1,212,072 1,353,651
Total current assets hRBEEAR 1,901,468 1,809,924
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE 18 182,377 155,961
Bank loans RITER 19 70,000 105,000
Deferred income B 20 4379 4379
Current taxation e RN AR IR 21(a) 27,525 5,826
Total current liabilities hRBEEAE 284,281 271,166
Net current assets RBEETH 1,617,187 1,538,758
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRDERE 2,546,828 2,306,249

The notes on pages 122 to 194 form part of these financial statements.
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at 31 December 2016
R2016F 128318

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(XARHZ5])
2016 2015
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
P EE AR®T R AREFT
Non-current liabilities S h=R
Bank loans RITEN 19 20,000 90,000
Deferred income S 20 69,021 73,400
Total non-current liabilities FRBaEEsE 89,021 163,400
Net assets FEE 2,457,807 2,142,849
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital R 22(c) 450,823 450,659
Reserves [ 22(d) 2,006,984 1,692,190
Total equity BED 2,457,807 2,142,849

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 March 2017. MBHREREHESEN2017F3A20BAER

RAET% -

Tang Xinfa Chen Yangui
B PR AE
Director Director

B ES

FINAZIMEIHTENZETBHRE—

#Bin o

The notes on pages 122 to 194 form part of these financial statements.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZ0I6FA3NBILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZ51)

Share Capital Statutory Retained
capital reserve reserve earnings Total equity
B EAfife LR REWE L $o
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

izt ARBTT AR®Tn AR®Tn AR%®Tn  AR%ETx
Note22(c) ~ Note22(d)()  Note22(d)(i)
WaE2©  KERG0 B0

Balance at | January 2015: R20I55F 1 B | BREER 170,800 8064 97,726 665 277255
Changes in equity for 2015: WHFREES
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEMARE - - - 265,750 265,750
Conversion to joint stock limited S ARAERAT]

liability company 129,200 (635) 97722 (30843) —
Capital injection & 60527 456,567 = = 517,094
Shares issued upon initial public offering  BAAREERETMRG 220 90,132 992618 — = 1,082,750
Appropriation to statutory reserve BRELTHE - - 26567 (26567) -
Balance at 3| December 2015 R20I5F12R318K

and | January 2016 W16F 1 A1 BREER 450,659 1,456,614 26,571 209,005 2,142,849
Changes in equity for 2016: WI6FEHET
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2EHALE — = = 380,597 380,597
Dividends approved in respect HEBEEERS

of the previous year 22(b) — - — (67,623) (67,623)
Shares issued upon the over-allotment 1T AR AL IR B R R 1THY

options exercised ) 2() 164 1,820 = = 1,984
Appropriation to statutory reserve BRELTRE - - 38,065 (38,065) —
Balance at 3| December 2016 R20165F 12431 B&H 450823 1458434 64,636 483914 2,457,807
The notes on pages 122 to 194 form part of these financial statements. FINEEFIMEZMTBRZEHBERE
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE0I6F 2R3 BILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZ51)

Year ended 3| December

BZENA3NBLEE

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®FR ARETT
Operating activities ReEs
Cash generated from operations REMGzZRE 17(b) 448,999 343,998
The People’s Republic of China B EARLNE
(the “PRC"") income tax paid ([HhE])FAEHR 21(a) (51,793) (56,604)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHELENRESFE 397,206 287,394
Investing activities REEH
Interest received BUFIS 8,104 2,172
Payment for the purchase of property, BENE  BFERREBANHE
plant and equipment (62,987) (28,004)
Proceeds received from disposal of property, HENE  BEREEMERE
plant and equipment — 5257
Prepayment for intangible assets B BERNR 12 (110,000) (290,000)
Investment in time deposits with maturity IR =EA 2 EHEIRE
over three months (235,826) (33,000)
Proceeds from time deposits EHERAEHE 33,000 —
Net cash used in investing activities RETHTEANREEE (367,709) (343,575)
The notes on pages 122 to 194 form part of these financial statements. FINEEFIMEZMTBERZEHHERE

—$5 ©
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZ0I6FA3NBILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AREZ5)
Year ended 3| December

BZNA3IHLEE

Note 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®TR ARETT
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from issuance of shares BRI AES 7\ 1,984 1,613,481
Payment of listing expenses R X AR (22,535) (14,916)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRTER Fﬁ?ﬁewtﬁ( — 50,000
Repayments of bank loans BERTEK (105,000) (270,000)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders ENAREERERAANRE
of the Company (67,623) —
Repayments to related parties BE M A — (30,091)
Interest paid RESEINS (7,454) (25,196)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BR)/ REMEED
financing activities MRELFE (200,628) 1,323,278
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and Iﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ A#
cash equivalents ),/ (171,131) 1,267,097
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIAIBNEERASEEER 1,353,651 86,554
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEEXRSBNTE 29,552 —
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December RI2A3IBNERER
Re%EER 17(a) 1,212,072 1,353,651
The notes on pages 122 to 194 form part of these financial statements. FINEEFIMEZMTBERZEHHERE
#Ho
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are

disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note |(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of presentation of the financial statements (Cont )

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiary (together referred to as “the
Group").

The Company was formerly named as Yichang Changjiang Pharmaceutical
Company Limited, which was established as a limited liability company
in Yichang City, Hubei Province, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
on 8 August 2001. On || May 2015, the Company was converted into
a joint stock limited liability company and with a registered capital of
RMB300,000,000 in preparation for the listing of the Company's shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Upon completion of this
conversion, the Company changed its name to YiChang HEC Changliang
Pharmaceutical Co, Ltd. (EE RS HRIIEERNBRAR)).

All matenial intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on

consolidation.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“‘RMB"), rounded to the

nearest thousand.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is

the historical cost basis.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of presentation of the financial statements (Cont d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in Note 2.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the Group's results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or

presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Cont d)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note I(h)) unless the
investment is classified as held to sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale).
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note I (h)):

—  Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land

classified as held under operating leases (Note |(g)); and

—  Other items of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes
the cost of materials, direct labour and the initial estimate, where relevant,
of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production

overheads and borrowing costs (see Note |(r)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no

more than 50 years after the date of completion

— Machinery 15 years
— Motor vehicles 10 years
—  Office equipment and others—

5 - 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment losses (Note | (h)). Cost
comprises direct costs of construction during the construction period.
Capitalization of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when the asset is substantially
complete and ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided in

respect of construction in progress.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(

(®

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise all costs that are directly
attributable to research and development activities or that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the nature of the Group's
research and development activities, the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late in the development stage of
the project when the remaining development costs are immaterial. Hence
both research costs and development costs are generally recognised as

expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land held for own use under operating leases

Leasehold land held for own use under operating leases represent cost of
land use rights paid to the PRC government authorities. Land use rights are
stated as cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (Note
[(h)). Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the respective period of the rights.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)  Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other current and non-current receivables that are stated
at amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or

legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)  Impairment of assets (Contd)

()

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Cont d)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognized as follows. For trade and other receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables (Cont d)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote,
are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries

of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)  Impairment of assets (Contd)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased:

= Property, plant and equipment;

= Interest in leasehold land held for own use under operating

leases;
- Prepayments; and
- Investments in subsidiaries of the Company.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Cont d)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, expect that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less

costs of disposal, or value in use (if measurable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

U]

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (Note | (h)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(k)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would

be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within six months of maturity at acquisition.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would

be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Annual contributions to retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government in the PRC are recognised in the profit or loss as and when

incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

periods.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©)

Income tax (Cont d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©)

Income tax (Cont d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are

recognized when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©)

Income tax (Cont d)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(P)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated

at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods leave the warehouse and are
delivered to the location designated by the customers and the related
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are considered to have
been transferred to the customers. Revenue excludes value added tax

or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(9)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statements of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are recognised initially
as deferred income and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the useful life of the asset by way of recognized in other

revenues.

Service income

Service income is recognised when the relevant services are rendered.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(")

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred,

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)  Related parties

@

()

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.
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[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)  Related parties (Contd)

()

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies: (Cont'd)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)

Segment reporting

Management has determined operating segments with reference to the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker of the Group that

are used to assess the performance and allocate resources.

The chief operating decision maker of the Group assesses the performance
and allocates the resources of the Group as a whole, as all of the Group's
activities are considered to be primarily dependent on the performance on
sales of pharmaceutical products. Therefore, management considers there to
be only one operating segment under the requirements of IFRS 8, Operating
Segments. In this regard, no segment information is presented for the year
end 31 December 201 6.

No geographic information is shown as the Group's operating profit is
derived from activities of manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products in
the PRC.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments in

applying the Group's accounting policies are described below.

(b)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over

the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual

value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value,

if any. The depreciation expense for future years is adjusted if there are

significant changes from previous estimation.

Impairments

0

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for certain
property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments, recoverable
amount of these assets needs to be determined. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. It
is difficult to precisely estimate selling price because quoted market
prices for these assets may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions

and projections of items such as revenue and operating costs.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(b)  Impairments (Contd)

(i) Impairment losses for doubtful debts are assessed and provided based

on the directors’ regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of

collectability. A considerable level of judgment is exercised by the

directors when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection

history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment losses would affect

the net profit or loss in future years.

3 REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sales of pharmaceuticals.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to customers. Revenue

excludes sales taxes and surcharges and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows:

2

eGSR YEE)
(b) BEE)

(i)

EXH

AERREBEIREES
TE % Bkl D AT R VB
R E2E A bt ETRY
fh IEHERE - ESNE
EBAERNEFPHNEE KA
FRREEERRELAE
2l

THREBRNERETE
RAREFNFEMNHER

AEENEREBREMEERHE -

EREERELREPNEMNHER
B EEXETREHERRMME - I
ENRAEMES TN - ST ELEBEE
RIEREEIT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Sales of anti-viral drugs HEMRTEY 739,824 457436
Sales of cardiovascular drugs HELME Y 89,182 107,083
Sales of endocrine and metabolic drugs HERND W RAHEY) 46,739 39,047
Sales of other medical products iHEH By 65,759 89,344

941,504 692,910
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

REVENUE (Cont @) 3 ERE#A)

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes one customer (2015: one) AEENEFEZ T BE0I16F 12
with whom transactions have exceeded 0% of the Group's revenues for the A3IBIEFEE  BFE-AQ015F : —
year ended 3| December 2016, including sales to entities which are known to the LIRS BBBAEELERE I%NEF
Group under common control with this customer. Revenues from this customer (BEAAEEAREZ AT P X HRE
amounted to approximately RMB384,468,000 (2015: RMB202,478,000). HZEBHEE) REZXEEFPNERH

#E A R #3844680007C(20154F © A
R #202,478,0007T)

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 4 HWAREMWBAEE
(a)  Other revenue @ HittlA
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFR ARETT

Government grants AT BD
— Unconditional subsidies —EREEE 3,322 4,490
— Conditional subsidies (Note 20) — F A8 (5T 20) 4,379 7,886
Interest income MEKA 8,104 2172
Research service income I ARAS WA — 1,129
Others it 193 124
15,998 15,801
(b)  Other net income (b) HftWAFE

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

UN- S ARETT

(Loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets HEETEEN(BE) e (136) 3
Exchange gain B 5 Yras 32,765 8,001
Others At (2,000) (1,328)

30,629 6,686
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@)

(b)

Finance costs

BR B AT A
BB ATEF DR/ GEA) AT R IRE

/8
F

(@ BERKX
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®FR ARETT

Interest expenses FERX 7,233 24,899
Staff costs (b) EBIME

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETFT

Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits e 1B FEAREM 71,942 47,964

Contribution to retirement schemes RINET 2R 7,820 4513

79,762 52477

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
(the “Schemes") organised by the local government authorities whereby
the Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes based on
certain percentages of the eligible employee's salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees. The Group has no other obligations for payments of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the

contributions described above.

REFENRAESDHRARAH -
AEE2EG I BAREAEHN
REBRFRKEM (8] -
Bt AREARBAERERS
SNEXB D LRFSIELHR - it
PR EAERRKAEEX N2
HEARERNR o B LA -
AEBYEAMEENEENR
KRR AMRKREN o



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Contd) 5 BRBEDER(E)
() Other items () HftEE
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ AR®FR ARETFT
Depreciation e 10 27,449 25,747
Auditor's remuneration A Gl kA
— audit services —BR% 1,200 800
— non-audit services —EERRG 600 2,763
(Reversal) / provision of impairment i {EE18 (8 [E]) /5%
losses on
— trade receivables —E5RMR 14 500 7,064
— other receivables —Hfi R RIE (1,064) 994
Operating lease charges REHEER 1,094 364
Research and development cost (i) BFEERKA (i) 64,236 52,303
Cost of inventories (ii) TR (ii) 13 136,793 130,546
Listing expenses EHAx — 23,815
()  Research and development cost include RMB27,068,000 () WMEKABEEEINA  FER
(2015:RMB21,796,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses XNBEHEZRBANIEAR
and operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the #27,0680007L(20156F : A R #
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in the Note 21,7960007C ) + WA EFRIBIRET A
5(b) for each of these types of expenses. IR S (b) SRR BB

BENREBEEA -

(i) Cost of inventories include RMB31,400,000 (2015:RMB24,761,000) (i) FERABDERSETINA  HER
relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease XNBEHEERBEANIEAR
charges, which amount is also included in the respective total amounts #31,4000007C(2015%F : AR
disclosed separately above or in the Note 5(b) for each of these 24761,0007T) - A ES&BAME A
types of expenses. kM 5(b) B & R > R E L

%
RENRERESER -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

(@)

OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B
Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other @ HFeBERRkEMEZEKRKRANM
comprehensive income represents: FhiE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARET T
Current tax BEBE
Provision for PRC Corporate Income AEEPRECEMETERE
Tax for the year (Note 21(a)) (PE21(2)) 73,768 53,501
Over-provision for PRC income tax in BEFERBEPEHBEERE (276) —
respect of prior years
Deferred tax B IE
Origination and reversal of EREEMESERER (1,023) (4.545)
temporary differences
Total income tax FEmas 72,469 48,956
Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profit at (b) FBRAYEEERRETENE
applicable tax rates: AT M B EER -
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TFR ARBETT
Profit before taxation FR B AT A 453,066 314,706
Applicable tax rate (i) BERTE () 25% 25%
Notional tax on profit before taxation BREA R N HEE A 113,267 78,676
Over-provision for PRC income tax in BEFERBEPEHEERE (276) —
respect of prior years
Effect of non-deductible expenses BRI E 8,630 4796
Effect of preferential tax rate (ii) BEHENZE (i) (45,303) (31,475)
Effect of bonus deduction of research and T3 T EHHRHZE (ii))
development expenses (iii) (3,849) (3,041
Income tax expenses IR 72,469 48,956

GRREREMEZERERANFE




6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Contd)

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates: (Contd)

0

(i

(iif)

The PRC corporate income tax rate is 25%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law allows enterprises to apply for
the certificate of “High and New Technology Enterprise” ("HNTE")
which entitles the qualified companies to a preferential income tax
rate of 15%. The qualification is valid for three years from 2014 to
2016. Therefore, the Company was entitled to a preferential income

tax rate of 5% for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. (EE R BEEGR A7),
“Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical”), a PRC subsidiary of the Group, is
qualified as a Small Micro-Size Enterprise (/]Ml{E3), which entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 10% for the years ended 3|

December 2016 and 2015.

According to relevant tax rules in the PRC, qualified research and
development expenses (“R&D expenses”), which are not capitalised,
are allowed for bonus deduction for income tax purpose, i.e. an
additional 50% of such expenses could be deemed as deductible

expenses.

6

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

ESRESHE
EEME 2 HEREQNT :

7  DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION 7

The details of directors’ remuneration are disclosed as follows:

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits retirement  Discretionary 2016
fees in kind plans bonuses Total
Fe - BER  ERAHTER 20165
E3Hs BNEN EI 258 Bisa @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE  ARBTR AREBTR ARMTR  ARETR
Executive directors HITEE - 163 16 Y] nl
Mr. iang Juncai (i) BEA R () - 156 14 4 202
Mr. Wang Danjin FAEgE — 23 2 60 293
Mr. Chen Yangui (i) B 2 4 (i)
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Tang Xinfa (i) FEATE LA (i) = — = = =
Mr. Zhu Yingwei REREE - — - - -
Mr. Mo Kit (i) ERTAE (i) - — - — -
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
Mr. Tang Jianxin (i) FE R £ (i) 80 — — — 80
Mr. Fu Haliang (ii) 78 5% 55 4 (i) 80 — = = 80
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (ii) 2 BR 5T A (i) 160 = = = 160
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Huang Fangfang (iv) BAEH L (V) = - = = =
Ms. Xue Lian (iv) BEEXT(v) — 128 14 4 184
Mr. Lin Jian (i) MR 5 A (iv) - — - - -
Tota ) 320 660 64 186 1,230




7

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont d)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

7 EBREBEMEE)

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contrbution
Directors and benefits retirement  Discretionary 2015
fees in kind plans bonuses Total
e 2MR  ERMAFEK 205§
£3108 BiEh st IR (RN At
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  ARMTT ARETT ARETR  ARET:x
Executive directors BITES
Mr. iang Juncai (i) BT K& () — 146 13 47 206
Mr. Wang Danjin FrAEtE — 144 13 51 208
Mr. Chen Yangui (i) BRAE S5 4 () — |64 2l 60 145
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Tang Xinfa (i) FERE LA (i) — = — — =
Mr. Zhu Yingwei RAEERE — - - - -
Mr. Mo Kit (i) ENFTAE (i) — — - - -
Mr. Lou Wangjun (v) BEMREE () — — - — -
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
Mr. Tang Jianxin (ii) R SRR 9 A (i) 54 - - — 54
Mr. Fu Halliang (i) 1518 52 5 £ (i) 53 - - - 53
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (i) B (i) 107 = = = 107
Supervisors E=x
Ms. Huang Fangfang (iv) "A B (W) — — — — —
Ms. Xue Lian (i) Bt (v) — 12 13 47 172
Mr. Lin Jian (iv) N () — - - - -
Total st 214 566 60 205 1,045
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(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

7  DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd)

() Mr Jiang Juncai and Mr. Chen Yangui were appointed as executive directors

on 4 May 2015.

(i) Mr. Tang Xinfa and Mr. Mo Kit were appointed as non-executive directors

on 4 May 2015.

(i)~ Mr. Tang Jianxin, Mr. Fu Hailiang and Mr. Lee Chi Ming were appointed as

independent non-executive directors on 4 May 2015.

(iv)  Ms. Huang Fangfang, Ms. Xue Lian and Mr. Lin Jian were appointed as

supervisors on 4 May 2015.

(v) M. Lou Wangjun resigned as non-executive director on | | May 2015.

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2015: three) are the

directors whose endowments are disclosed in Note 7. The aggregate of the

emoluments in respect of the other two (2015: two) individuals are as follows:

Ex
()

REEME ()

B R R R L AR 2015
FSR4BEZIANTES -

iy EMBLEREALER20I5ES
A4BEZTAFNTES -

(i) FEEMELE  MEREEREEH
TERWISFESR4BEZERE
VIERTEE -

vy EBEFFLL BELLRMEEE
RISES B4 REZEARES -

(v) BEEREER0I5FSAIIAE
EERTEE -

REHEMAL

hEEREMALS  Ed=4(2015

F:ZR)AREE  REFHHERKT
7o B TMAATQ0I55 - WA )HHH

mEMT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R ARETIT
Salaries and other emoluments e M E M 406 356
Discretionary bonuses ETEA 78 102
Contribution to retirement schemes RIRET BT 52 27
536 485
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(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Cont ) 8 BReEFMALE)
The emoluments of the two (2015: two) individuals with the highest emoluments MAQI5F : M) &aHMA TN
are within the following bands: M FATEE :
2016 2015
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A" AR
Nil to HKD1,000,000 T 1,000,000 7T 2 2
EARNINGS PER SHARE 9. BREN
(a)  Basic earnings per share @) BREXZEF

The calculation of basic eamnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB380,597,000
(2015: RMB265,750,000) and the weighted average of 450,814,367
(2015:335,564,823) ordinary shares in issue during the vear, calculated as

follows:

AT ESRERAFIEHUAR
AERERFEARERNAR
1 380,597,00070(2015F + AR
265,750,000 7C ) ME N E #1TL &
AR D0 39 8450,814,367 B2 (2015
F 1335564,823 /%) AEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: LB IAE TS
2016 2015
shares shares
gy i
Issued ordinary shares at | January RIAIBENEETERR 450,659,450 300,000,000
(Note 22(c)) (B #E22(c))
Effect of shares issued upon certain new RWISF6ASHRETHERES
investors on 5 June 2015 (Note 22(c) (i)  ZE4TRR1D AR 2 (M5 22(c) (i) — 34824012
Effect of shares issued upon initial 20156 12 A29 BETTE
public offering on 29 December 2015 BRALRABEERTRONTE
(Note 22(c) (i) (PR &E 22(c) i) — 74081 |
Effect of shares issued upon BRLRESRITEBRLRE
the over-allotment option of initial BITRMONTE
public offering (Note 22(c) (iv)) (PR EE 22(c)(iv)) 154917 —
Weighted average number of ordinary P12 A3 BERRIETHE
shares at 3| December 450,814,367 335,564,823

o/



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd) 9. BRER(Z
(b)  Diluted earnings per share b) BREFER
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in 2016 and 2015, and R2016FR20I5F - TEREEE
therefore, diluted eamings per share is the same as the basic eamings per MEMEBEELAR  HEREER
share. MEFREARBMER -
10 FIXED ASSETS 0 BEEEE
Interest in
leasehold
[and held
for own
Office use under
Plant and equipment Motor  Construction operating
Buildings ~ Machinery  and others vehicles in progress Sub-total leases Total
RESERE
BOERE KRR

HERET BE Rt nE ERIR M BEErMEE 4R
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBON  RMBOOO
ARRTL ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTn ARBTR ARRTR ARMTR

Cost: B

At | January 2015 201551 A1 A 23933 178376 52660 647 293 473953 96,709 570662
Additions NE 2110 5183 3943 - 18620 2985% - 2985
Transfer from construction in progress BERIRREY 29% 4186 1 406 - (8688) - - -
Disposals RE - (4,184) (2017) - - (6:201) - (6201
At3I December 2015 R2015512A31H 2444 183661 55992 647 12,866 497608 96,709 594317
Additions NE 15,289 13278 869 130 13380 60768 - 60768
Transfer from construction in progress BEERIREEY 16,244 6,063 10297 - (32604) - - -
Disposals BE - (17 4 (136) - (531) - (531)
At 3 December 2016 20165 12A31H 175975 202831 T475% 64l 3642 557845 96,709 654,554

158



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

FIXED ASSETS (Contd) 10 BE&EE
Interest in
leasehold
and held
for own
Office use under
Plant and equipment Motor  Construction operating
Buildings ~ Machinery  and others vehicles inprogress  Sub-total leases Total
REGEHE
HROERE BFEAZ
BERET BE  REM RE  HEIR Mt BEIHER &3t
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBO000 RMBO00O RMBOOO RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO0O
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Accumulated depreciation: REHE
At | anuary 2015 R2015F1 811 G476 (9313 (1% (302) — M) (105 (l0702)
Charge forthe year FRHG @557 (10810) (53%) (58) - (193)  (5M4)
Whitten-back on disposals R E R HUE - 43 Si4 - 957 - 97
At 3] December 2015 72015412831 8 @) o) 03 (360) — (8% (130IO)  (131817)
Charge forthe year FRMER 754 (11359) (655) (66) - (5 (193)  (7449)
Witten-back on disposals R B W i 8 = [0} 0 9 = 3% = 3%
At 31 December 2016 720165128318 W6 (0B (333%) (34) = (1B90)  (149%%) (15887
Carrying amount: BREME
At 31 December 2016 20165 12A31H 226699 1418% 41371 307 3642 413915 81767 495,682
At 31 December 2015 R2015612A31H 202,709 133981 28958 27 12866 378801 83699 462500
(i) All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are located in the () ZAEBRBZAENZE  BFE &R
PRC. RN -
(i) As at 31 December 2016, the Group was applying for certificates of (i) M2016F12A318  AREER

ownership for certain properties, with carrying value of RMB5,171,000
(2015:RMB13,226,000). The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the use of and the conduct of operating activities at the properties

referred to above are not affected by the fact that the Group has not yet

obtained the relevant property title certificates.

RAEAARESI171,0007C(2015
F AR®132260007T)KE T
NERFMERZE - ARAES
RAREE R ARBGIHEYEERE
FIEREY T ERRALMMER
HEEBES -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

Il INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES I REEREZERE
As at 31 December 2016, the Company has direct interests in the following R2016F 128318+ ARAR A TH
subsidiary, which is a private company. The particulars of the subsidiary are set out BRENRIELTARBREEE#ER
below: AR B AR BHIMT -
Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation fully paid up/  direct ownership
Name of company and business  registered capital interest Principal activities
AMRIR SROTRBE &R
NEER BRI AEfRA gL TEXRB
Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2,000,000 100%  Sales of pharmaceutic al products

(*Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical”)

(EERHHE ﬁﬁﬁﬁé al) ()

HERGHRBEFRRA FE AR20000007T 100% HEBREEMD
([EERGLE atJ ) (i)

()  The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The English translation of the () HEBIZEAELBATX  EXGE
entity's name is for reference only. LEHRBE -
12 PREPAYMENTS 12 BNRE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Prepayments for intangible assets R EERNTA 400,000 290,000
Prepayments for fixed assets EEERNKE 22,544 4,599
422,544 294,599
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PREPAYMENTS (Contd)

On 22 July 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with Sunshine Lake Pharma
Co, Ltd. (BRFIZHEE B AR, “Sunshine Lake Pharma”) which is a related
party of the Group. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group have acquired the
right to use all the relevant knowhow and patents relating to yimitasvir phosphate
and follow-up direct anti-viral agent compounds (the “Compounds”) and, upon
obtaining the necessary government approvals, the right to manufacture and sell
worldwide. A consideration is RMB700,000,000, which comprised a down payment
of RMB250,000,000 and eight milestone payments totalling RMB450,000,000
payable upon each stage of development or approval of yimitasvir phosphate or
the Compounds. The agreement expires on 31 December 2030 or the date when

the first patent mentioned above expires, whichever is earlier.

Up to 31 December 2016, the Group had made payments of RMB400,000,000
to Sunshine Lake Pharma. During 2016, the Group paid RMBI1 10,000,000 in
aggregate to Sunshine Lake Pharma while the second, the third and the fourth
payment milestone according to the agreement achieved. By end of 2016, the clinic
experimentation application for the first follow-up direct anti-viral agent compounds

product has been submitted to China Food and Drug Administration.

Phase | clinical trial of yimitasvir phosphate was accomplished, and the application
for phase Il and Ill clinical trial has been approved by 31 December 2016.
Sunshine Lake Pharma is targeting to obtain the necessary approvals and permits
for yimitasvir phosphate on or before 2019 and begin commercial introduction
of relevant products in 2019. The necessary approvals and permits for the

Compounds are expected to be obtained in 2020 and onwards.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BSEEB - BUARSTIR)
ANREE)
R20I5F7ANE AEBEEEHERE
BREEERAR([BERRBGLEE]
RSB BER )L HE - RIEZH
% AEEERGEENEBHRAKM
EREBEETAS LA M(THEKK
2L A ¥ 1) &6 57 18 B B 1 A R &
e - WA RS BRI BUR S0 PT MY 8L XX
MFAER  BEERREENHEEN
BER - BARERARE7000000007T
BEBEENK AR 250,000,000 7TH/\
S5 A AR 450,000,000 T H 2 BIR
BRI EREEEENRSLLEN
ERBEXEHERONT - ZBHEHR
2030 12 A3 R Lt 5 —THE F 3|4
AMEFERETE -

BZE06F1283 8L AEEER
J& R R 5 % % % 32 (1 A R # 400,000,000
Lo RWI6E AERERBEXNH
RERE_Z2 F-SREMNENH
NRABERRGZHEXINEEARE
110,000,0007C ° 2016 FERT * AKEE
MPEARANBEBERRREREREE
BRRREHERREERNRELE
MERETHRRGR

R216FNA3 BHEBERAMCEE R
iR — SRk BRKR- 53R
RFECDEMRE - BREBLEZRR
019F K2 A BHEBARMENLE

BRI R 2019 FHRBEMER
MEEEE - BEBREKMELSYOY
YR EBEERN 2020 F 3K A&
E5 -
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(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

13 INVENTORIES 13 %®E
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETTT
Raw materials Rkt 56,260 110,684
Work in progress R m 33,051 17,140
Finished goods B 21,313 26,804

110,624 154,628

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in ERARFAX I ABRGRNTESED TN

profit and loss is as follows: I
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt &£ AR®F ARETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EERERAEE 135,769 127,773
Write down of inventories FERR 1,803 2,786
Reversal of write-down of inventories T & MR B el (779) (13)
Cost of inventories FERAK 5(c) 136,793 130,546
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[4 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

B2 RAMERRE
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Current mE
Trade receivables 2 WA 286,176 241,308
Bills receivable eSS 56,409 22,133
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note [4(b)) B RERER (M 14(0)) (13,847) (13,347)
328,738 250,094
Prepayments for inventories BNEEX 5,538 7393
Other receivables H Y zaa 2,873 3,08
Total et 337,149 260,568
(a)  Ageing analysis @) BN

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade debtors
and bills receivable (which are included in trade and other receivables),

based on the invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as

REREHR - BURR L ERRE
(BEFAE S REMRYFIR) ZE
FRBENRREEENRE DN

follows: mE
As at 31 December
RI12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFIT
Within 3 months 3EAR 280,266 193214
More than 3 months but within | year HB3EAE I FR 48,472 56,880
328,738 250,094

Trade debtors are generally due within 30-90 days from the date of billing.
Bills receivable is due in 3 months or 6 months from the date of billing. The
Group's credit policy is set out in Note 23(a). All of the trade and other

receivables of the Group are expected to be recovered within one year.

FRERS M B % L RE B st
30Z90BATE - BKZREEHE
HEERBHRA3EALCEAR
38 - AEEZ GERRE NI
2@  AEEMEES REME
WFIETRE K AT —F A E o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFRBIN - BAAREIR)

4 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is

written off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly (see Note | (h)

)}

14

BEREMERRERE)
(b) BYERARRERRENRE

BRRYES kBN R ERER
BIONBRRCE  RIFAKER
MU B BRI RE M - Al
ERERT  HEBESLER
B X e R R Bk R (BB
I(h)(i)) °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as FARKRENEHNT -
follows:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
At | January RIAIH 13,347 6,283
Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE 500 7,064
At 31 December RI2A318 13,847 13,347
At 31 December 2016, trade debtors of RMBI17,609,000 (2015: RWI6FEI12A31IB AR ¥

RMB18,049,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts of RMB 13,847,000 (2015:RMB13,347,000) were recognised.

17609000 C(2015F : A B
18,049,000 7T ) & & U AR 7K 1 7l 2
FERE o BRI E R B EE
DEBLRMBRENES « B
BIR T TARHE AT B 2510 FE I
R Al - ERERREERE
Bt B AR 13,847,00070(2015
F: AR¥13347,0007T) °
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

(c)  Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not impaired
The aging analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

14 BEZREMEBKREE)
(0 AEHENEUERREKRE
I & (@ 5l % KRR IERE R YR
AERBREEREDTWT :

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Not past due If f8 dan HA 274,284 191,924
Less than 3 months past due BN 3EA 36,512 36916

More than 3 months but AEEAIEAR | FR
within | year past due 14,180 16,552
324,976 245,392

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range

of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

TIME DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2016, the time deposits represented bank deposits
denominated in Hong Kong dollars with original maturity of one year, carrying at an

interest rate of 1.290% per annum.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

The amount represented bank deposits pledged to secure certain bills payable as at

31 December 2016 and 2015 (see Note 18).

AT B AR R A MR IR S
Y EFRCENSRELAR -

EBHERAENEYTRTLES
TEALB®FRIFRFLENE
VEFAR - RIFBELR &2
ERRBARZSERIELRER
B REEERTEEREHEHE
SRINBR B 2EMRD -

15 EHER
R216F 128318 WETHEZTE
BRTEXRINBBRA—F  REF
K 1290%5t 8 -

l6 BEAER

M20I6FER20I5F12A318 A@E%
HERECERNRTESR  #HRES
FTRAZER(RMEIS) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 HREeRkFRLEEER
(a)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ BRERALEFEEBEERE:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREF T
Cash on hand FHEES 44) 234
Cash at bank RITHE 1,211,630 1,353,417
1,212,072 1,353,651

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from

BRHAGNEZSLERBRENY

operations: i :
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Profit before taxation Br B AT R A 453,066 314,706
Adjustments for: LS
Depreciation nE 27,449 25,747
Interest income FIEWA (8,104) (2,172)
Impairment (reversal)/recognition of (), TR E 5 K E fh TR IE R A
trade and other receivables (564) 8,058
Finance costs N 7,233 24,899
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets HERTEENER,/ (W) 136 (13)
Net foreign exchange gain BE 5 e FEE (32,714) —
Listing expenses Niilaha — 23,815
Changes in working capital LEEREY
Decrease in inventories FERAD 44,004 45,648
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R E A FEYCTRIEIE N (76,017) (122.901)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 RE MR FIEE N 29,068 26211
Cash generated from operations ReEmBRE 443,557 343,998
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

18 EBZREMENKE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®FR ARETT
Trade payables (i) B 5 R (i) 19,279 31,258
Bills payable (i) BREE () 2,635 2,153
Trade and bills payables BHRNFBRENRE 21,914 33411
Amount due to related parties FE 1 B 6 5 7R 0R 25(b) (ii) 2,392 —
Receipts in advance BHIE 9,933 5934
VAT and other taxes payable JE TIZ (B 75 Jo B A A5 76 17,605 16,357
Accrued payroll and benefits fEst T & K& 17,483 12,397
Other payables and accruals Hi RN RIERESER 113,050 87,862
182,377 155,961
(i) Certain bills payable of the Group as at 3| December 2016 and 2015 were secured (i) R20165F 2015 12A318 - AKE
by pledged deposits (Note 16). METENZEATREER (M
16)
(i) Anageing analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice date is as follows: (i) NABZEHAEENEFHRENFER
ROME
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Within | month & AR 14,554 10,467
Over | month but within 3 months BBIEAEMEAA 2,109 8,123
Over 3 months but within | year HBEEARIFER 1,392 10,600
Over | year R | F 1,224 2,068
19,279 31,258

167



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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19 BANK LOANS 19 RITER
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the bank loans were repayable as follows: R2016F K20I5F 128318 |/ITE

FABEMT :

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Within | year or on demand | FNSIRFE K 70,000 105,000

After | year but within 2 years | FEE2ER 20,000 80,000

After 2 years but within 5 years 2ERESFR — 10,000

Subtotal I 20,000 90,000

Total st 90,000 195,000
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the bank loans were secured as follows: R2016&20I15FNA3I A RITER

EHROT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFR ARETT

Bank loans RITER
— Secured —BEH 60,000 145,000
— Unsecured — I 30,000 50,000

90,000 195,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

BANK LOANS (Contd) 19 SM|ITERE)
At 31 December 2016, the bank loans of the Group of RMB60,000,000 were R2016F 124318+ AR # 60,000,000
secured by certain buildings, machinery and interests in leasehold land owned by TZASERITEREHRNTREG K
Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co, Ltd. (RIITTRIGAEXEZEEER A EXRRARRAIRITRE LE
a,"“Shenzhen HEC Industrial”) and its subsidiaries (2015: RMB145,000,000). ¥ REMBARMBEAZETET
HELHETERER(Q0I5F AR
% 145,000,000 7C) ©
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the bank loans of the Group were guaranteed by R2016F R2015F12A318 A% H
Mr. Zhang Zhongneng, who is the director of the Shenzhen HEC Industrial, and his ZBIEFERITRGEAEEESR
spouse Mrs. Guo Meilan. g R AR BEER L T ER -
DEFERRED INCOME 20 EEWE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTT
At | January RIAIR 77,779 85,665
Credited to profit or loss (Note 4(a)) T ABE (M 4G) (4,379) (7,886)
At 31 December R12A318 73,400 77,779
Net carrying amounts representing: FREDHETS -
Current portion ENERED 1D 4,379 4,379
Non-current portion JERNERER D 69,021 73,400
73,400 77,779

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, deferred income of the Group mainly included
various conditional government grants for research and development projects of
new or existing pharmaceutical products and subsidies relating to purchase of fixed

assets.

Deferred income relating to purchase of fixed assets are recognised as income on a

straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant assets.

R2016FR20I5F 128318 AEEH
BN T EORARN End R A Em
B IE B S IEA R RE) - AR
BB E T A EE MImEL o

FABREECEENETRGERRBE
ENEAAEAFANNEREERR
UG

N

S o

B
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(BAEERN  GUARKIIR)

21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 2 BEMBERRERANAEHR
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position () HAHBRRRANDEBIEE
represents:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Provision of PRC Corporate Income FRAMPECEREHEEHT6A)

Tax for the year (Note 6(a)) 73,768 53,501
Over-provision for PRC income tax in BEFEPBEAGEERE

respect of prior years (276) —
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid AEFAHENPECEMER

for the current year (51,793) (56,604)

21,699 (3,103)

Balance of PRC Corporate Income RIR | BOHRBEEERERAER

Tax at | January 5,826 8929
Balance of PRC Corporate Income K12 A3 BMPBEGERERER

Tax at 31 December 27,525 5826
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(b)

Deferred tax assets recognised

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated

statements of financial position and the movements during the year are as

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

2 GEMBRRARANHFEH(F)

b) CRIABTHEEE
e SRR RN RER AR

BEENERBHRAEENE

follows: mnF
Provisions for Accrued
inventory and expenses
Deferred receivables and others
revenue FEREWR FEStE F Total
BT i HERE R EAt Bt
Deferred tax arising from: KB THBEE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BERIA ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR%®TR
At | January 2015 R20I5F 1 A1 H 999 404 3,444 5,847
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (1B} ) /zH AJEzS (576) 1,643 3478 4,545
At 31 December 2015 K215 12H318
and | January 2016 K2016%1 A1 H 423 3,047 6922 10,392
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (B} ) /zH AIEzS (50) (558) 1,631 1,023
At 31 December 2016 2016512 431 A 373 2,489 8,553 11415
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22

@)

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS 22 EX - RERRE
Movements in components of equity of the Company (@) AARZEZDHED
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AEEGERRE DN 2 FIRE
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated Rissh FMBEREN G A ERE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's BERA - BRAARAIFHNEFRY
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the AL EER R B < BBt 1E
year are set out below: T -
Share Capital Statutory Retained Total
capital reserve reserve earnings equity
k&  EXRE iERHE  RERA Y 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARET:
Note 22(c) Note 22(d)()) Note 22(d)(ii)
BaE22(c) BHFE22(d)() PR 22(d) (i)
Balance at | January 2015 R2I5%1 A1 A& 170,800 8,0% 97,722 508 277,126
Total comprehensive income FAZERGEE
for the year — — — 265,664 265,664
Conversion to joint stock limited 28l AR A B R A A
liability company 129,200 (635) (97,722) (30,843) —
Capital injection *E 60,527 456,567 — — 517,094
Shares issued upon initial EVONGE -5
public offering BITMRD 90,132 992618 = = 1,082,750
Appropriation to statutory reserve B8 1% 2 A TE (& - - 26,567 (26,567) —
Balance at 31 December 2015 R20I15F128318
and | January 2016 R2016F 1A 1R
5] 450,659 | 456,646 26,567 208,762 2,142,634
Total comprehensive income FAZEKEHEE
for the year — — — 380,657 380,657
Dividends approved in respect HEBTFERS
of the previous year — - — (67,623) (67,623)
Shares issued upon the TEBERR R E
over-allotment options exercised  BFETTRIR D |64 1,820 — — 1984
Appropriation to statutory reserve B E AT (& - - 38,065 (38,065) —
Balance at 3| December 2016 R2016E 128318
AR 450823 | 458466 64,632 48373 2457652




22

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(b)

Dividends

0

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable

to the year

22

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

RBREAREEERARE
of the reporting period of BREBRARE030T
RMB0.30 (2015: RMBO.15) (20155 : AR®0.157T)

Final dividend proposed after the end

per ordinary share

BX - RERRE(E)
b) BKE
() FABRNAKRRIERKRES
85
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR AREFT
135,607 67,599

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 20
March 2017, a cash dividend of RMB0.30 (2015: RMBO.15) per
share for the year ended 31 December 2016 were proposed for

shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.

The final dividend proposed after the end of the year has not been

recognised as liabilities as at 31 December 2016.

BER2017F3A20BEZ
CERMBBIAER  BZE
W6ENAIBIEEEZ
FhALKREARE030T
(20155 : AR¥0.157T)8
RRERFAG LIRERE
BLfE o

RAFRZBRBRM 2K

BB RERAE0I6F 12
A3 BzE&E-
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Cont'd) 22 EX - RERREE)
(b)  Dividends (Contd) b) REE)
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i) RERRERZM EFHK
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year FEEMAAR A SRR
BB
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Final dividends in respect of the PR R A B S &) 67,623 =
previous financial year, approved AEREFREBRAREI5T
and paid during the year of (2015%F : &)
RMBO.15 per ordinary share
(2015: nil)
(c)  Share capital ) B=E
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid ERITRHEEER
2016 2015
Number Number
of shares RMB’000 of shares RMB'000

ROBE AR®TR Bi#B ARETT

At | January RIAIB 450,659,450 450,659 — —
Shares issued upon RIBEHEITHRG ()

reorganisation (i) — — 300,000,000 300,000
Shares issued to certain mETHREEET

new investors (ii) 9B (if) — — 60,527,450 60,527
Shares issued upon initial BEERAREEET

public offering (i) AR 17 (iif) — — 90,132,000 90,132
Shares issued upon the TR R R T

over-allotment options B (iv)

exercised (iv) 163,400 164 — —
As at 3| December RI12A318 450,822,850 450,823 450,659,450 450,659
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(c)  Share capital (Cont'd)

0

(i

(i)

On |1 May 2015, the Company converted into a joint stock company
and 300,000,000 shares of RMBI each were issued. The retained
profits and statutory reserve of the Company upon the conversion
were transferred to share capital and capital reserve of the Company
accordingly under rules and regulations in respect of conversion to a

joint stock company in the PRC.

On 5 June 2015, the Company entered into a capital injection
agreement with certain new investors (the “Investors”). Pursuant to
the capital injection agreement, the Company issued and allotted
60,527,450 shares to the Investors, at a price of RMB8.54 per share.
Proceeds of RMB60,527,450, representing the nominal value of the
shares, were credited to the Company's share capital and the excess
of the proceeds over the nominal value of the total number of shares

issued were credited to the capital reserve account of the Company.

On 29 December 2015, the shares of the Company was listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited following the completion of its
initial public offering of 90,132,000 ordinary shares of RMBI.00 each
issued at a price of HK$15.00 per share. Proceeds of RMB90, 132,000
representing the par value of these ordinary shares, were credited
to the Company's share capital and the excess of the proceeds over
the nominal value of the total number of ordinary shares issued after
offsetting share issuance costs of RMB992,618,000 were credited to

the share premium account of the Company.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

2 EX- RHERRE(E)
) BEE)

(0

(i)

(il

R20I15F58 118 RAR
IR G RE - BT
300,000,000 R B REE AR
BTz o BRIEPES
AR 10 22 ) 2 3 Al K&
B ADRZRBENRZE
ERERERREE ARA
Al 2 RA R B ARG o

R20I15F6 /58 AR 7]
BETEHREE(RE
EDITUIEME  BRE
ZEXBEME AARNE
A R 854 TR B K A%
& & 17 R % 60,527,450
BikH- MERBEBARE
60,527450 TT{E R IR £ E B
FARRARA - BHEE
BEITROEEMZIEGTA
ARRIEARGHE -

R2015F 128298 -
AR AR 1R & R 15.007%8
i :0f =R e D A= W/ NN
590,132,000 B Ik A R#&
L0072 BimiRiE  NEER
BERZMARAR LT -
P15 5018 A R % 90,132,000
TTRZELRR 2 EE DG
ARRRIRA » LR HR G
BITKAR  BREBTE
BREFEENAEREA
R#992,618000 Tt ARLD
AR R B o
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22

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(c)  Share capital (Cont'd)

)

On 20 January 2016, 163,400 additional ordinary shares of RMB1.00
each issued at a price of HK$15.00 per share by the Company as
the over-allotment option had been partially exercised. Proceeds
of RMBI163,400 representing the par value of these ordinary shares,
were credited to the Company's share capital and the excess of the
proceeds over the nominal value of the total number of ordinary
shares issued after offsetting share issuance costs of RMB1,820,000

were credited to the share premium account of the Company.

(d)  Reserves

()

(i)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve of the Group and the Company mainly represented

premium arising from capital injection from equity owners.

Statutory reserve

According to the Company's Articles of Association, the Company
is required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit as determined in
accordance with the Company Law of the PRC to its statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of a
dividend to equity owner. The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or
to increase capital of the subsidiary, provided that the balance after

such issue is not less than 25% of its registered capital.
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CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(e)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of Company Law of the PRC, was RMB483,731,000 (2015:
RMB208,762,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for its shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of bank loans and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total debt (which includes interest- bearing bank loans), less cash and cash

equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity.

During 2016, the Group's strategy was to maintain the capital in order to

cover any debt position, which was unchanged from 2015.
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(

Capital management (Contd)

The Group's adjusted net debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2016 and

2015 are as follows:

22 EX- RERREE)

()

BRER(E)

REBR2016FR20I5F 12 A3
AR FaEHERL RN
—|T:

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Bank loans-current

BITER A 70,000 105,000
Bank loans-non-current FATER—FEENER 20,000 90,000
Total debt BEY 90,000 195,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B REeEkREFHEER (1,212,072) (1,353,651)
Adjusted net debt RAREETH (1,122,072) (1,158,651)
Total equity BiEn 2,457,807 2,142,849
Adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio RARFEEHRERLR N/A N/A

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary are subject to externally imposed

capital requirements.

ARBREEFMBARHES
BRIAINEBHEANE) EARE S



23

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal

course of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the

financial risk management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to

these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Credit limit is established for each distributor which
represents the maximum open amount or credit term without requiring
approval from the Board of Directors. The Group chases the customers
to settle the due balances and monitors the settlement progress on an
ongoing basis. The Group usually granted credit term to distributors which
was generally due within 30 - 90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the

Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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23

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(@)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual

customers.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk of the total trade receivables

due from the Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors as follows:

23
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(2)

FERR(E)
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2016 2015
Due from el
largest trade debtor RAEBA 13% 8%
five largest trade debtors TREBA 42% 23%




23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit

risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 4.

The maximum exposure of credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit

risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may encounter deficiency of funds
in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Company and
its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own cash management,
including short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company's board
when the bank loans exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of each report periods of the Group's financial liabilities (excluding advances
from customers and provision for sales return), which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed

at contracted rates) and the earliest date the Group can be required to

repay:
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd)

) HBEREERAAEEE)

b) RBELEKRE)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHRRTRAER
More than

Within | year but 2016
| year or less than Carrying
on demand 5 years Total amount
K3 Bl F 2016
FEER B5FR #st REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥Trn ARBTRT AR¥Trn
Bank loans RITER 74316 21,361 95,677 90,000
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTIE 182,377 — 182,377 182,377
Total a5t 256,693 21,361 278,054 272,377

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRRFREA LR
More than

Within | year but 2015
| year or less than Carrying
on demand 5 years Total amount
| 1% il | F 20156
FIREK B5ER @t ARE(E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETR AR%TR
Bank loans RITER 112,781 96,676 209,457 195,000
Trade and other payables 85 REMENTIE 155,96 — 155,961 155,96 |
Total st 268,742 96,676 365418 350961

182




(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 23 HEEREERAAEEE)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIXER

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. Bank loans ZFEEZ*'JKH BREERERTE

that are at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow  FEREEFERIEREAR

interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group's SESRIEERERENEER K

interest rate profiles as monitored by management is set out in (i) below. ARBEMNERR - TX0OFEH
NEHEEBERAKBR RN
W o

() FIEHSKE

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's TREMRBEHRRE
bank loans at the end of the reporting period: RITERZFEMR -
2016 2015
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BRA= &8 BRA= x|
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETFT
Fixed rate instrument: EEMETA
Bank loans RITER — 6.55% 90,000
Floating rate instrument: ¥ ST &
Bank loans RITER 5.01% 90,000 490% 105,000
Total instruments THEER 90,000 195,000
Net fixed rate instruments &7 7% T )5 &5
as a percentage TAEBENADL
of total instruments N/A 46.15%
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23

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(©

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 25 basis points in bank loans interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decrease/increase the Group's
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately RMBI191,000
(2015:RMB223,000). Other components of equity would not be

affected by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the Group's
profit for the year and retained profits that would arise assuming
that there is an annualised impact on interest expense by a change in
interest rates. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as
2015.

Currency risk

The group is exposed to currency risk primarily through shares issued upon

initial public offering which give rise to cash balances and time deposits

that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the

functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The

currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars.
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24

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)
(d)  Currency risk (Contd)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general appreciation/
depreciation of 5% in RMB, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group's net profit for the year and retained
profits by approximately RMB19,815,000 (2015:RMB47,970,000).

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rate had
been applied to re-measure the bank deposits which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the translation of the financial

statement of foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 not provided for in the

consolidated financial statements were as follows:
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23 BERREERAABEE)
d) E¥ERE)

ar

HREREDN

[

R2016F 128318 EFAEM
FERETENBERT « Bt AR
MEBAE/RE% BERK
SEMFNFHERKRER RN A
i,/ mA# AR 19,815,000 7T
(2015 : AR¥47,970,0007T) °

TAHBRES N RREXEHE R
REFMAERBERRSAEERT
BRSNS REBEVRITER - O
BREKBIEGRHHRRBE DA
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24  BREE

R2016F12A31 B EREHBHRE
RARBEORBTERAENT -

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Contracted for EEED
— Acquisition of fixed assets BEETEE
— Acquisition of intangible assets (Note 12) BEEPEEMEI2)

24,835 13,266
300,000 410,000
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 5 BABELRZ

During 2016 and 2015, the directors are of the view that related parties of the R2W016FR20I5F  EXTRRAEEN

Group include the following: HEABREATER

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group

BES AR EASEMER

Shenzhen HEC Industrial the intermediate controlling shareholder

AIMRBE L EF PR BR

HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd. the immediate controlling shareholder
(EERBAEXRMNBARIF) BREBRKRR

Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co,, Ltd. the ultimate controlling shareholder

FUREKRB AEBHETEXERAR) R R

Sunshine Lake Pharma effectively owned by the controlling shareholder

BREMGAESR HERBRESES

Dongguan HEC Medicine Development and Research Co,, Ltd. effectively owned by the controlling shareholder

(REmREALEDMEERAR) HERBRRERER

(“Dongguan HEC Research™)
([RERFG M)

Shaoguan HEC Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd. associate of the intermediate controlling shareholder
(ARG EENRBRAR) o R R AR R VB 2 1 )

(“Shaoguan HEC Printing”)
([ ERBARFE S ENRI )

Yichang HEC Power Plant Co,, Ltd. effectively owned by the controlling shareholder
(EERBAINEETFRAT) HERERERER

("HEC Power Plant")
(EERGEEH])

Yidu Shangchengshuidu Project Construction Co., Ltd. effectively owned by the ultimate shareholder
(BB RETRARAT) HRRBRRESHES

("Yidu Construction”)

([E#EE])

ko The English translation of the above companies’ names is for reference only. The LR ARz ENELE R E

Nz

w
Rl
B
el
N

official names of these companies are in Chinese. TR amAanT -
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

@)

Transactions with related parties

During 2016 and 2015, the Group entered into the following material

25

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

EXBERRZ(E)
@) HEREERZRZ

R2016F F20I5F » KEBDE]

related party transactions: VATERBERRS -
Recurring transactions REMRZ
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Purchase of goods from: BATETBESR !
HEC Pharm Co, Ltd. HERBAEXBHBERAT 10,375 17,254
Shaoguan HEC Printing ARG N 8,407 10,578
HEC Power Plant HERGHEER 4,632 4,283
23,414 32,115
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25  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 25 BABERRZ(E)
(@)  Transactions with related parties ) HBELZRZ(E)
Non-recurring transactions EREURS
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

() Sales of goods to () MATSHHEEER:

Sunshine Lake Pharma BREGHEX 242 1,002
(i) Sales of fixed assets to: (i) RATEHHEETEE -

Dongguan HEC Research Roe R[5 8 B — 5189
(i) Interest income: (i)  FBHA :

HEC Pharm Co, Ltd. HERBIEXBNERAF — 737
(iv)  Processing service received from (v) BXERRGLEE

Sunshine Lake Pharma RN TRS — 1,982
(V) Research and development v)  RATETREN

services provided to: R

Dongguan HEC Research RERG B — 1,129
(vi)  Other services received from: (Vi) BRATEHREHEMRS -

Yidu Construction HEPRE 2,093 8317
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(b)

0

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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25 BREEAFRZ(E)

Balances with related parties (b) EERBERMESH
Amounts due from related parties () ER@EELFE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Prepayment and trade receivable from: R B A T & 7 89T 5 &
B SRR -
Sunshine Lake Pharma BRRR R B 400,000 290,000
Amounts due to related parties (i) ENBELIFE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFTT
Trade payables to: ERUATERNESE
Shaoguan HEC Printing ARG ER 2,392 —
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(©

(d)

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

25 BEXBEARS(E)
() EEEBEABNRMH

FEEEABORMELRE -
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Salaries and other benefits o REmEN 1,936 1,576
Contribution to defined retirement plans TE IR RG24 R 116 95
2,052 1,671

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions

The recurring transactions with related parties in respect of Note 25(a)
above constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter [4A of
the Listing Rules are provided in section headed “Continuing Connected

Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

d HREBEXZEENLHRUNER
#
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COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 26 BB HE 2R R E
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets TEE
— Property, plant and equipment W% - BEREHE 413,851 378,728
— Interests in leasehold land held for - RBELEHEFREEA TR
own use under operating leases 81,767 83,699
495,618 462,427
Investments in subsidiaries RINB AR ZIRE 2,032 2,032
Prepayments BAFIE 422,544 294,599
Deferred tax assets EEHIAEE 11,392 10,372
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 931,586 769,430
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 110,624 154,628
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E AW IR 336,650 270,055
Time deposits EHEH 238,988 33,000
Pledged deposits EERER 2,635 2,153
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReFEER 1,210,177 1,347,666
Total current assets REEEMAE 1,899,074 1,807,502
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTE 182,083 155,704
Bank loans FITER 70,000 105,000
Deferred income B 4379 4379
Current taxation BIEATE 8 27,525 5815
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 283,987 270,898
Net current assets RBEEZH 1,615,087 1,536,604
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 2,546,673 2,306,034
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26 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd) 26 PREEEHZHBRRRE)
Note 2016 2015
ik RMB’000 RMB'000

UN- ARETT

Non-current liabilities ERBAERE
Bank loans RITE 20,000 90,000
Deferred income IEREM S 69,021 73,400
Total non-current liabilities FRBREAE 89,021 163400
Net assets REE 2,457,652 2,142,634
Capital and reserves EXR %
Share capital fix 22(c) 450,823 450,659
Reserves [ 22(d) 2,006,829 1,691975
Total equity s 2,457,652 2,142,634
27 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 27 BEHERFARER
(i) On 6 February 2017, the extraordinary general meeting had resolved to () MRW17F2A6R8 BRREAE
issue 1,200,000 additional shares of RMBI.00 each to HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd. BARAERI1805ATHERAT
(EERBGHEERMNBRAF) (the immediate controlling shareholder) ERGREERHERAR(EE
at a price of HK$18.05 per share. Proceeds of RMBI,200,000 representing PERR AR 3R ) #2 % 1,200,000 AR AR 17 -
the par value of these ordinary shares, were credited to the Company's SREABARE 00T -BE5ES
share capital and the excess of the proceeds over the nominal value of PHERZEFERRAENAR
the total number of ordinary shares issued after offsetting share issuance % 1,200,000 7T 5t AR 2 AR A -
costs of RMB17,729,000 were credited to the capital reserve account BARETERNAEENMG
of the Company. As the completion of the private issue, the Company's TR RO BITRAEHOARE
share capital and the capital reserve increased to RMB452,023,000 and 17,729,000 L5t AZR 2 B] 69 B A
RMBI,476,163,000 respectively o ZIBAALETHE - RRF]
H B A A KR #5452,023,000 7T -
BERFER AR 1476163000
T o

ke
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28

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Contd)

(i)~ The Company and TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co. (Beijing), Ltd. established
a joint venture of company, Dongguan HEC TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals
Co, Ltd. (RERBHAARBERERREL AT, "HEC TaiGen") on
10 January 2017. HEC TaiGen is engaged in the research and development,
production and sales of medical drugs. The Company invested RMB348.4

million in cash, representing 51% equity interests of HEC TaiGen.

(if)  After the end of the reporting period, the board of directors of the
Company approved a distribution of dividends. Further details are disclosed

in Note 22(b).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate parent of the Group
to be HEC Pharm Co, Ltd, while the ultimate controlling party of the Group to
be Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co,, Ltd, which is
incorporated in the PRC. This entity does not produce financial statements available

for public use.
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29

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 29
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a number
of amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

REZ2016F 12831 BLEFECEMG
B REMMIET - FEARZREN

BETE

BEAMBHRATEER  BEREHE
AZEEEBHZERNEZE2016F 12
3IBIEFE MARERE I RAAT B R
RATKME BT RFER - B AlgeHE
AEBEBENBETIIRE -

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

BUTBE#Hz%&
R Est AL X
Amendments to |AS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative | January 2017
B RAE T R(BAIAN)  HLREX - HEE 2017F1 A1 H
Amendments to IAS |2, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses | January 2017
BERGEERE 12K (BRIAR) « 7 - BRAZLE R ELTERE WI7F 1A IE
Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions | January 2018
BRR A BREENE 2R (BRIR) - RGO BERGNH - URG BERONHLZ 5 0 E Rt E 0I8F 1 AR
IFRS 9, Financial instruments | January 2018
BEREHERERANEIR  2H LA 201851 A I H
IFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with customers | January 2018
R BIRERANE 155 KEELEH KA 2018F 1 A 1B
IFRS 16, Leases | January 2019
BRMBREENE 65 HE 20191 A 1 B

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to

have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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“2016 AGM”
[0l6FREREFAZ ]

“Annual Report”
[ ]

“Articles of Association”
[Ar)EE]

"“Board of Directors” or “Board”

(E%g

"Board of Supervisors”

[E%E]

“China” or “PRC"

(e

"“Controlling Shareholder(s)"
[ AR AR

"“Company”, "we" or "HEC Pharm”

[RRR] - THA IR RGAE]

"Director(s)"
(&%)

"Domestic Share(s)"

[RER

"Group”
[A&E]

"HEC Group”
[RGEEE

“Hkscc
[BEGEE

DEFINITIONS
B

the forthcoming annual general meeting for the year 2016 of the Company

AARWNI6FEERREFAE

the annual report of the Company for the year 2016
ADA016 FER

Avrticles of association of the Company
AREER

board of directors of the Company

ARFEEE

board of supervisors of the Company

ARAEES

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purposes of this annual report and for

geographical reference only (unless otherwise indicated), excluding Taiwan, Macau and

Hong Kong
REARANE - ERAFRRBE LTS - BIAEBN  TRESH  RMRE
)

has the meaning given to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmARRIATE T HRE

YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (EEEREH RTEER M AR F),
a company established in the PRC on || May 2015 as a joint stock company
BERBARIERBRNERAG - —KR2015F5A 1| BEFEKIHMBRIHAA

director(s) of the Company
AREES

issued ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of
RMB .00 each, which is (are) subscribed for or credited as fully paid in RMB
ARTBRAPERAEARK 100 THEBETERKR - AAARBRBERER

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARAREMBAR

Shenzhen HEC Industrial and its subsidiaries
FMITmRGREERENBAR

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
BRPREEBRAT
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DEFINITIONS
B

“HK$" or “HKD"
[

"Hong Kong"
(&)

“H Shares”

[H 3%

“IFRSs”

[ BIFR B 75 o 5 A

“[atest Practicable Date”

“Listing Date”

[EHEE]

“Listing Rules”

[ Em#RRY

“Model Code”

[R2EsrAl

“Parent Company”

196

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for the time being of Hong Kong
B BERRETER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEERHITHR

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, which is (are) listed on the Stock Exchange and is (are) subscribed for and traded in
HKD

ARARADERABARE 100 THERR  EABIA LRI NETRERESR

the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards and interpretations
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and the International
Accounting Standards (IAS) and interpretation issued by the International Accounting
Standards Committee (IASC)

BIRM GRS ER  BRERSHENEZERAOENRZENALER S ENZ
SempmnERet A R2E

5 April 2017, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining certain

information contained in this Annual Report prior to its publication

01754 A58 RAFRHEFSETETHAHE TENNSRERATAS

29 December 2015, on which the H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and from

which dealings in the H Shares were permitted to commence on the Stock Exchange

015F 128298 HERRBE X EmR B H - A Ik B - HIRIEE B A
REE
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,

as amended from time to time

BRBARZMERARES LTRA  EFEEE]

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules
THRAM SR BN LM BETAESETEFZSNRETE

HEC Pharm Co, Ltd* (BB RGN XN B2 7)), a company incorporated in the
PRC on 12 January 2004 and the immediate controlling shareholder of the Company as at
the Latest Practicable Date
HERBAEXRMARDA - —KR2004F | A RBEFEFAMKILHAF R
REERATEE - RARFEEERRR



“PBOC”
[PEARET)

“Renminbi” or “RMB"”
[ARE]

"Reporting Period”
[4R& 8

"SFO”

[ &5 AR &S]

"SFC”

(&g

Jils)S

“Shareholder(s)"

MR

“Shares”

[ctn

“Shenzhen HEC Industrial”

DRIMREER]

"Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

or “Stock Exchange”

[ BBHE P ISk B A

"Supervisor(s)"

(&%)

"Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical”

[EERGALEE]
o
[%)

DEFINITIONS
B

H B A R #8177 (People’s Bank of China)
REARRIT

the lawful currency of the PRC
hEEE RS

the year ended 3| December 2016
HZ2016F 12831 RILEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended,

supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BRAPIESTI EEFRIE R - EARHERT - BRIAEMTT B

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BREFNAREHERRES

holder(s) of our Shares, including holders of H shares and holders of domestic shares of the
Company
ARBBRDEEA - RREARAHBRFEEARNERSEA

shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each

ARARADGREBARSE 100 TR

Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co, Ltd. (R R X EXERERAA), a
company incorporated in the PRC on 27 January 1997) and a Controlling Shareholder
AITRGHEXBRBRAF - —RKN 1975 | A7 AERBEEMRIHORE -
R—BEEKRR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BREBMARAMERAF
the supervisor(s) of the Company
ARBES

Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (E2REHBEBMRAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 8 July 2005
HERBABERRDR  —KMN2005F7 A8 BEFEEMKLAHLF

per cent.

B
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REGISTERED NAME
YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd.

DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Mr. JIANG Juncai
Mr. WANG Danjin
Mr. CHEN Yangui

Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Yingwei

Mr. MO Kit

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Ms. LEE Chi Ming

REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE

Mr. FU Hailiang (Chairman)
Mr. JIANG Juncai
Mr. TANG Jianxin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. TANG Jianxin (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Chi Ming
Mr. TANG Xinfa

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LEE Chi Ming (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Yingwei
Mr. FU Hailiang
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. HUANG Fangfang
Ms. XUE Lian
Mr. LIN Jian

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. PAN Sanxiong
Ms. NG Wing Shan (FCS, FCIS)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. TANG Xinfa

West Fourth Floor, Building 106

Huafa North Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
Guangdong Province, the PRC

Ms. NG Wing Shan
18/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

No. 38 Binjiang Road
Yidu, Yichang, Hubei Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 38 Binjiang Road
Yidu, Yichang, Hubei Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

|8/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

China Construction Bank Co,, Ltd.
Qingjiang Branch

56 Changjiang Avenue

Yidu, Hubei Province, PRC

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

BE

BRARLE
3 3
MigEE

NAWE
B
KM L (FCS, FCIS )

RERE
BHERE
REERE

AR EEEEIE
|06 BRI

Rekf& £

ERBET
ERABRFLEBEDL 1818

AMmMRERE
PEML A EEEHH
BB 385

FREEEEMY
B EEEEHT
B 3855

EREEEENY
EBEFEEAEE 8%
SEEDL 1812

FTEFRET

PR RRTRDBRAA]
BIIXAT
REIL e E& T
RIIKE565%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

AUDITORS

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISORS

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
I'I/F, Two Exchange Square,
Central, Hong Kong

PRC LEGAL ADVISORS
Jia Yuan Law Offices

F408 Ocean Plaza

158 Fuxingmennei Avenue
Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
01558

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.hec-changjiang.com

LISTING PLACE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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